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Independent auditor’s report
To the shareholders of Jordan Kuwait Bank - Public Shareholding Company
Amman- the Hashemite Kingdom of Jordan

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated
financial position of Jordan Kuwait Bank (the “Bank”)} and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) as at
31 December 2021, and their consolidated financial performance and their consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as amended by the Central
Bank of Jordan instructions.

What we have audited
The Group's consolidated financial statements comprise:

the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2021;

the consolidated statement of income for the year then ended;

the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year then ended,

the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then ended;

the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and

the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the International Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants {(including International Independence Standards) issued by the International Ethics Standards
Board for Accountants (IESBA Code). We have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
the IESBA Code.

PricewaterhouseCoopers "Jordan™,3rd Circle, Jabal Amman — 14 Hazza' Al Majali Street, P.C. Box 5175, Amman 11183, Jordan
T: +{962) 6 500 1300, F: +($62) 6 4610880, www.pwc.com
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independent auditor's report to the shareholders of Jordan Kuwait Bank {continued)
Our audit approach

Overview

Key Audit Matter e Measurement of Expected Credit Losses
e Assets seized by the bank against debts

As part of designing our audit, we determined materiality and assessed the risks of material misstatement
in the consolidated financial statements. in particular, we considered where the directors made subjective
judgments; for example, in respect of significant accounting estimates that involved making assumptions
and considering future events that are inherently uncertain. As in all of our audits, we also addressed the
risk of management override of internal controls, including among cther matters, consideration of whether
there was evidence of bias that represented a risk of material misstatement due to fraud.

We have designed the scope of the audit to perform sufficient procedures that enable us to express an
opinion on the consolidated financial statements as a whole, taking into account the Groups structure,
accounting processes, controls and business segments.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context
of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Measurement of Expected Credit Losses

The Group applies the Expected Credit Loss model
(ECL) on all its financial instruments measured at
amortised cost, debt instruments measured at fair
value through other comprehensive income and
financial guarantee contracts including financing
commitments in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards as amended by the
Central Bank of Jordan instructions.

The Group exercises significant judgement and
makes a number of assumptions in developing its
ECL models, which includes probability of default
computation separately for retail and corporate
portfolios, determining loss given default and
exposure at default for both funded and unfunded
exposures, forward looking adjustments and staging
criteria.

We performed the following audit procedures on the
computation of the ECL included in the Group’s
consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2021:

> We assessed and fested the design and
operating effectiveness of the controls over the
calculation of the excepted credit losses model.

> We tested the completeness and accuracy of the
data used in the calculation of ECL.

= For a sample of exposures, we checked the
appropriateness of the Group’s application of the
staging criteria.
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independent auditor's report to the shareholders of Jordan Kuwait Bank (continued)

Key audit matter {continued)

For defaulted exposures, the Group exercises > We involved our internal specialists to assess the

judgements to estimate the expected future cash flows
related to individual exposures, including the value of
collateral.

The Group’s impairment policy under IFRS 9 as
amended by the Central Bank of Jordan Instructions is
presented in Note (3) to the consclidated financial
statements.

Measurement of ECL is considered as a key audit
matter as the Group applies significant judgments and
makes a number of assumptions in the staging criteria
applied to the financial instruments as well as in
developing ECL models for calculating its impairment
provisions.

following areas:

s Conceptual framework used for developing
the Group’s impairment policy in the context of
its compliance with the requirements of IFRS
9 as amended by the Central Bank of Jordan
instructions.

e ECL modelling methodology and calculations
used to compute the probability of default
(PD), loss given default (LGD), and exposure
at default (EAD) for the Group's classes of
financial instruments.

e Reasonableness of the assumptions made in
developing the modelling framework including
assumptions used for estimating forward
looking scenarios and significant increase in
credit risk.

e Recalculation of the expected credit losses for
a sample of the impaired financial assets at
each stage.

e Evaluating the impact of COVID 19 on
expected credit losses model in relation to the
future economic outlook, macroeconomic
data, the probability of default, and the losses
resulting from default and its associated
weights.

In addition, for the Stage 3 corporate portfolio, the

appropriateness of provisioning assumptions were

independently assessed for a sample of exposures
selected on the basis of risk and the significance
of individual exposures. An independent view was
formed on the levels of provisions recognised,
based on the detailed loan and counterparty
information available in the credit file. For the

Stage 3 retail portfolio, assumptions were

independently assessed for each product category

and an independent view was formed on the levels
of provisions recognised at each category level.

We recalculated the provision for non-performing
loans in accordance with the Central Bank of
Jordan Instructions Number (47/2009).
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> We compared the expected credit loss calculated
in accordance with IFRS 9 as amended by the
Central Bank of Jordan Instructions with the
provision for expected credit losses calculated in
accordance with the instructions of the Central
Bank of Jordan No. (47/2009) and ensured that the
Group has recorded whichever is higher.

> We assessed the consolidated financial statement
disclosures to ensure compliance with IFRS 7 and
IFRS 9 as amended by the Central Bank of Jordan
Instructions. We have also ensured completeness
and accuracy of the disclosures by verifying the
information to accounting records.

Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Seized Assets by the Bank against Debts

Assets seized by the bank are measured at
acquisition value or fair value, whichever is lower.
As of the consolidated statement of financial
position date, these assets are revalued individually
at fair value based on approved bases and
methods according to the requirements of the
international Financial Reporting Standards as
amended by the Central Bank of Jordan
instructions. Any related Impairment in their value
is recorded based on recent real estate evaluations
and approved by certified real estate appraisers.

Due to the importance of these estimates and
assumptions adopted in estimating the fair value,
they are considered as significant risks that could
cause a material misstatement in the consolidated
financial statements that may arise from the
inaccuracy of the estimates used to determine the
fair value and any impairment losses

As disclosed in Note (14) to the consolidated
financial statements, the seized assets held by the
Bank against debts amounted to JD 131,966,150
as of 31 December 2021.

We have performed the following procedures o assess
the reascnableness of the management’'s estimates of
the fair value and any impairment::

> Evaluated management's methodology in estimating
the fair value of seized assets against debts.

> Reviewed reports of independent real estate
appraisers assigned by the management to value
those assets.

> Evaluate the independence and competence of the
appraisers assigned by the bank’s management.

> Comparing the actual selling prices with the carrying
book value of the properties as of 31 December 2021.

> Assessed the adequacy of the disclosure about the
assels seized by the bank against debts in Note (14).
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Independent auditor's report to the shareholders of Jordan Kuwait Bank (continued)
Other information

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises all the other
information included in the Group's annual report for the year 2021 (but does not include the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor’s report therein), which is expected to be made available to us after the
date of this auditor’s report.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
and will not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consclidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consoclidated financial statements or our knowledge cbtained in the audit, or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

When we read the other information not yet received, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement
therein, we are required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance.

Responsibilities of management and those charged with governance for the consolidated financial
statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as modified by the Central Bank
of Jordan instructions. and with other identified applicable laws in the Hashemite Kingdom of Jordan, and
for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consohdated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consoclidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group's consolidated financial reporting
process.
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Independent auditor's report to the shareholders of Jordan Kuwait Bank (continued)

Auditot’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’'s report to
the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We
are responsible

for the direction, supervision and performance of the Group audit. We remain solely responsible for our
audit opinion.
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Independent auditor's report to the shareholders of Jordan Kuwait Bank (continued)
Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements (continued)

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were
of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements
The Group maintains proper accounting records that are in agreement with the accompanying consolidated

financial statements. We recommend that the General assembly of the Shareholders approve these
consolidated financial statements.

For and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers “Jordan”

g~

se No. (802)

Amman, Jordan
28 February 2022




JORDAN KUwWAIT BANK
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
As AT 31 DECEMBER 2021

Assets

Cash and balances with Central Banks

Balances at banks and financial institutions

Loan with a repurchase option at fair value

Direct credit facilities, net

Financial assets at fair value through statement of income
Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

Financial assets at amortized cost
Property and equipment, net
Intangible assets, net

Deferred tax assets

Other assets

Right of use of leased assets
Assets held for sale

Total assets

Liabilities and shareholders’ equity
Liabilities

Banks and financial institutions deposits
Customers’ deposits

Cash margins

Borrowed funds

Sundry provisions

Bonds

Income tax provision

Deferred tax liabilities

Lease liabilities

Liabilities directly associated with assets held for sale
Other liabilities

Total liabilities

Equity

Shareholders’ equity

Paid-in capital

Statutory reserve

Voluntary reserve

Financial assets revaluation reserve at fair value - net
Actuarial gain (loss) from remeasurement of defined post-employment
henefits

Equity directly associated with assets held for sale
Retained earnings

Totat shareholders’ equity - Bank’s shareholders
Non-controlling interests

Total shareholders’ equity

Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity

Note 2021 2020
1D D
4 317,205,145 361,869,605
5 142,138,455 136,758,518
6 10,000,000 10,000,000
7 1,687,286,812 1,556,512,833
8 4,133,548 E
9 74,979,107 85,867,274
10 494,569,305 402,110,610
11 33,850,914 28,527,698
12 5,664,986 1,964,717
21 43,487,269 36,718,616
14 178,976,591 170,574,955
13 12,844,569 13,347,577
a7 5,642,817
3,005,136,701 2,809,895,220
15 166,945,457 173,687,677
16 1,937,299,470 1,877,550,483
17 93,079,208 73,895,317
18 239,115,636 128,255,444
19 12,478,231 14,303,613
20 11,000,000 11,000,000
21 9,745,645 2,176,841
21 4,642,969 2,555,136
13 12,530,503 12,389,957
47 . 1,529,164
22 50,625,524 56,119,661
2,537,462,643 2,353,463,293
23 150,000,000 150,000,000
24 97,254,251 96,043,640
24 133,444,584 131,023,362
25 7,044,559 4,571,425
19 558,921 (565,736)
47 - (22,185)
26 79,094,033 75,381,421
467,396,348 456,431,927
277,710 2
467,674,058 456,431,927
3,005,136,701 2,809,895,220

The accompanying notes from 1 to 47 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements and shall be read

with them.
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JORDAN KUWAIT BANK
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

Note 2021 2020
JD D
Interest income 28 127,163,571 135,508,453
Less: Interest expense 29 42,823,508 50,697,008
Net interest income 84,340,063 84,811,445
Net commission income 30 9,662,696 8,430,916
Net interest and commission income 94,002,759 93,242,361
Gain from foreign currencies 31 2,722,720 2,940,750
{Loss) from sale of financial assets at fair value through income 8 (303,783) R
(Loss) from sale of financial assets at fair value through other 9
comprehensive income — debt instruments {89,987} (407,041)
Cash dividends from financial assets at fair value through other 9
comprehensive income 1,068,858 2,768,310
Gain from sale of financial assets at amortised cost 10 2,132,280 -
Other income 32 12,355,910 9,671,804
Total income 111,888,757 108,216,184
Employees' expenses 33 29,892,235 28,868,000
Depreciation and amortisation 11/12 4,470,471 4,715,649
Expected credit losses- direct credit facilities 7 28,707,400 38,986,214
{Reversal from) expected credit losses- indirect credit facilities (248,939} 1,485,714
!Re\.rerslal from) expected credit losses — bank depasits and financial a/5 (53,567) 5,966,519
institution
Expected credit losses - investments 10 2,142,782 5,783,115
Sundry provisions 19 2,300,042 2,085,019
Other expenses 34 32,605,633 25,904,705
Total expenses 99,816,057 113,794,935
Profit (loss) for the year before income tax 12,072,700 {5,578,751)
Less: Deficit [surplus) Income tax expense for the year 21 4,367,863 (1,606,291)
Profit (loss) for the year from continued operations 7,704,837 {3,972,460)
Net loss fram discontinued operations 47 - (538,815)
Profit (loss) for the year 7,704,837 (4,511,275}
Attributable to:
Bank’s shareholders 7,738,243 {4,511,275)
Non-controlling interests (33,406) -
Earnings per share:
Profits {losses} earnings per share for the year
Basic and diluted 35 0.052 (0.030)
Profits (losses} earnings per share from continued operations for the
year
Basic and diluted 35 0.052 {0.026)
Profits (losses} earnings per share from discontinued operations for
the year
Basic and diluted 35 0.000 {0.004)

The accompanying notes from 1 to 47 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements and shall be read
with them.
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JORDAN KuwalT BANK
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

2021 2020

Jo D
Profit {loss) for the year 7,704,837 (4,511,275)
Other comprehensive income items
Items that may be reclassified to the consolidated statement of income — after tax:
Net change in the valuation reserve of financial assets at fair value through
comprehensive income after tax- debt instruments 308,573 542,652
Items that will not be reclassified to the consolidated statement of income- after tax:

h . luati . . p oy

Net change in the valuation reserve of.fln.anual assets at fair value through 1,792,948 1,735,266
comprehensive income after tax - equity instruments
Actuarial gain (loss) from remeasurement of defined post-employment benefits 1,124,657 (565,736}
Total comprehensive income (loss) for the year 10,931,015 (2,799,093)
Attributable to:
Bank's shareholders 10,964,421 (2,799,093)
Non-controlling interests (33,406) -

The accompanying notes from 1 to 47 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements and shall be read
with them,
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JORDAN KUWAIT BANK
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

Operating activities:
Profit (loss) for the year before income tax

Net {Loss{ gain from discontinued operations

Adjustment for:
Depreciations and amaortisations

Expected credit losses- direct credit facilities

{Reversal from) expected credit losses- indirect credit facilities
(Reversal from) expected credit losses — bank deposits and
financial institution

Expected credit losses - investments

Net interest income

Provision for end of service benefits

Provision for lawsuits and legal cases

Loss on sale of seized assets

{Profit) on sale of property and equipment

Loss on sale of equity instruments through income

{Profit) on sale of debt instruments at amortised cost

Loss on sale of financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income - debt instruments

Provision for seized assets

Amortisation of right of use - leased assets

Effect of exchange rate fluctuations on cash and cash equivalents
Cash flows generated from operating activities before changes in
assets and liabilities

Change in assets and liabilities:

Decrease (increase) in deposits with banks and banking institutions
Financial assets at fair value through income

{Increase) in direct credit facilities

Loan with a repurchase right at fair value

Decrease in other assets

(Decrease) increase in deposits with banks and financial institutions
of more than 3 months maturity

Increase in customers’ deposits

Increase {decrease) in cash margins

(Decrease) in other liabilities

(Decrease) increase in liabilities directly associated with assets held
for sale

Net cash flows (used in) generated from operating activities before
provisions and income tax paid

End of service indemnity - paid

Provision for lawsuits - paid

Paid Income tax

Net cash flows {used in) generated from operating activities

Investing activities
{Increase) in financial assets at amortised cost

Decrease in financial assets at fair value through comprehensive
income

Decrease (increase) in equity directly associated with assets held for
sale

(increase) in property, equipment and intangible assets

Net cash flows (used in) investing activities

2021 2020
1D JD
12,072,700 {6,117,566)
4,470,471 4,715,649
28,707,400 38,986,214
{248,939) 1,485,714
{53,567)
5,966,519
2,142,782 5,783,115
{20,659,697) {14,611,297)
2,342,268 2,288,712
600,000 360,000
2,271,861 533,974
{36,495) (16,550)
303,783 .
{2,132,280) 8
89,987 407,041
4,392,387 365,428
2,713,528 2,163,762
5,854 (3.141)
36,982,043 42,307,574
53,567 {5,749,288)
(3,437,331) :
(159,481,379) {21,722,331)
5 {10,000,000)
16,798,828 16,941,487
(89,279,667) 82,189,677
9,748,987 11,457,977
19,183,891 (8,283,305)
(13,572,405) (15,159,262)
{1,529,164) 223,429
{135,532,630) 92,205,958
(2,043,855) (1,659,604)
(350,572} {6,624)
{2,069,670) (16,211,648)
{139,996,727) 74,328,082
(96,943,745) {93,454,500)
14,023,239
5,407,170
5,642,817 {1,324,123)
(13,457,461} {7,122,150)
(90,735,150) (96,493,603)

The accompanying notes from 1 to 47 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements and shall be read

with them.
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Financing activities

Lease liability payments (2,210,520) {2,158,876)
Bonds - 11,000,000
Increase in borrowed funds 110,860,192 26,047,980
Non-controlling interests 311,116 5

Cash dividends paid to shareholders {80,015) (455,502)
Net cash flows generated from financing activities 108,880,773 34,433,602
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents {121,851,104) 12,268,081
Effect of exchange rate fluctuations on cash and cash equivalents {5,854} 3,141
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 449,326,038 437,054,816
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 36 327,469,080 449,326,038

The accompanying notes from 1 to 47 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements and shall be read
with them.
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1. General information

Jordan Kuwait Bank was established as a Jordanian pubtlic limited shareholding company under the registration number
{108) on October 25, 1976 in accordance with the Jordanian Companies Law No. {13) for the year 1964. The Head Office of
the Bank is located in Omaya Bin Abdshams Street, Abdali. Tel. +962 (6) 5629400, P.Q. Box 9776, Amman — 11191 Jordan.
The Bank current Paid up Capital amounted to 1D 150 million distributed on 150 million shares, with a par value of 1D 1 per
share.

The Bank provides all banking and financial activities related to its activities through its head office and (67) branches inside
the Kingdom and {1) foreign branch. The Bank owns two subsidiaries, for finance leasing, and the other one for brokerage
services which owns a company for financial advisory services.

Jordan Kuwait Bank is a Public Sharehalding Company limited and is listed in Amman Stock Exchange.

Jordan Kuwait Bank is 50.927% owned at by Al Rawabi United Holding Company and the financial statements of the Bank
are consolidated within the consolidated financial statements of the ultimate parent Company Kuwait Projects Holding
Company (KIPCO}.

The financial statements were approved by the Bank’s Board of Directors at its meeting No. {1/2022} held on 12 February
2022 and are subject to the approval of General Assembly of Shareholders.

2 Summary of significant accounting policies

The significant accounting policies adopted by the 8ank in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements are
set out below.

2-1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Bank and its subsidiaries {together the “Group”) have been prepared in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards {IFRS) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board
{(1ASB), and the interpretations of the International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee (IFRIC) as amended by
the Central Bank of Jordan.

The Jordanian Dinar is the presentation currency for the consolidated financial statements and is the Group's functional
currency.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It
also requires management to exercise its judgment in the process of applying the Bank’s accounting policies. The areas
involving a higher degree of judgment or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements are disclosed in {note 3).

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost except for some financial instruments, which are
measured at fair value at the end of each period, as shown in the accounting policies below.

The main differences between the IFRSs as they shall be applied and what has been approved by the Central Bank of
Jordan are the following:

Some items are classified and presented in the consclidated statement of financial position, consolidated statement

of income and the consolidated statement of cash flows and the related disclosure, such as credit facilities, interest in
suspense, expected credit losses, investments, fair value levels, segments classification and disclosures related to risks and
others, are presented and disclosed in accordance with the requirements of the Central Bank of Jordan, its instructions
and circulated guidance which might not include all the requirements of IFRS such as IFRS 7, 9 and 13.

Provisions for expected credit losses are formed in accordance with the instructions of the Central Bank of Jordan (No. 13/
2018) “Application of the IFRS (9)” dated 6 June 2018 and in accordance with the instructions of the supervisary authorities
in the countries in which the bank operates, whichever is stricter. The significant differences are as follows:

a. Debtinstruments issued or guaranteed by the Jordanian government are excluded, so that credit exposures are treated
and guaranteed by the Jordanian government without credit losses.
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b. When calculating credit losses against credit exposures, the calculation results are compared according to IFRS (9) under
the instructions of the Central Bank of Jordan Na. (2009/47) of 10 December 2009 for each stage separately and the
stricter results are booked.

According to the instructions of the Central Bank of Jlordan No. (47/2009) issued on 10 December 2009 regarding the

classification of credit facilities and the calculation of the impairment provisions, credit facilities were classified into the

following categories:

a) low risk credit facilities, which do not require any provisions:
These are credit facilities that have any of the following characteristics:

1) Facilities granted and guaranteed by the Jordanian government, as well as to the governments of countries in which
Jordanian banks have branches, provided that these facilities are granted in the same currency of the host country.

2) Cash Guaranteed by {100%) of the outstanding balance at any time.

3) Facilities guaranteed with an acceptable bank guarantee at {100%).

b) Acceptable risk credit facilities, which do not require provision:
These are credit facilities that have any of the following characteristics:

1) Strong financial positions and adequate cash flows.

2} Contracted and covered with duly accepted guarantees.

3} Having good sources of repayment.

4}  Active account movement and regular repayment of principal and interest
S) Efficient management of the client.

€) Credit facilities listed under the watch-list {requiring special attention) which impairment allowances for are calculated
within a range of (1.5% - 15%):

These are credit facilities that have any of the following characteristics:

1} The existence of dues for a period of more than (60} days and less than (90) days for the principal of credit facilities

and/or interest.
2) Exceeding the overdraft predetermined limit by (10%), and for a period of more than {60) days and less than (90} days.
3) Credit facilities that have previously been classified as non-performing credit facilities then reclassified from the list

upon meeting the rescheduling criteria.
4) Acceptable-risk credit facilities that has been rescheduled twice in one year.
5) Credit facilities that have been expired for more than 60 days and less than (90) days and have not been renewed.

This is in addition to other conditions detailed in the instructions.
D) Non-performing credit facilities:
The credit facilities that have any of the following characteristics:

1) They are past due, or the maturity of one of their instalments, or default payment of the principal amount and / or
interest, or dormant current debit account for the following periods:

Classification Number of past due days prI:?si:n ?\r:ce)?::geeﬁ?:tt :23"
Sub-standard credit facilities {90) - (179) days 25%
Doubtful credit facilities {180} - (359) days 50%
Bad debt/loss credit facilities (360) days and more 100%

2) Overdrafts that exceed the granting limit by (10%) and more, and for the duration of (90) days and more.

3) Credit facilities that have been expired for 90 days or more and have not been renewed.

4) Credit facilities granted to any customer declared bankrupt or to any company that has been deemed under liquidation.
5) Credit facilities that were restructured three times within a year.

6) Current and on-demand accounts overdrawn for {30) days or more.

7) The value of guarantees paid on behalf of the clients and were not credited to their accounts with past due of (90) days

or more.
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The expected credit losses provision against credit facilities is calculated in accordance with the 2009/47 instructions for
this category of facilities according to the above ratios and the amount of unguaranteed credit facilities during the first year,
while the allocation of the covered amount is completed at 25% and over four years.

Interest and commissions are suspended an non-performing credit facilities and facilities classified within the third stage in
accordance with the instructions of the Central Bank of lordan and in accordance with the instructions of the supervisory
authorities in the countries in which the Bank operates, whichever is stricter.

Assets that have been seized by the Bank against debts are stated in the consclidated statement of financial position within
other assets at the acquisition cost or the fair value, whichever is lesser, and are revalued on the date of the consolidated
financial statements individually. Any impairment in their value is recorded as a loss in the consolidated statement of income
and any appreciation in value is not recorded as income. The subsequent increase is taken to the consolidated statement of
income to the extent that it does not exceed the value of the previously recorded impairment. As of the beginning of 2015,
a gradual provision was made for real estate seized for more than 4 years against debts according to the Circular of the
Central Bank of Jordan No. 4076/1/15 dated 27 March 2014 and No. 2510/1/10 dated 14 February 2017. It is to be noted
that the Central Bank of lordan issued Circular No. 13967/1/10 dated 25 October 2018, in which the Central Bank
acknowledged the enfarceability of the circular No. 16607/1/10 dated 17 December 2017, in which the Central Bank
confirmed the deferment of the calculation of the provision until the end of the year 2020. According to the Central Bank’s
Circular No. 16239/1/10 dated 21 November 2020, deduction of the required provisions against real estate acquired is to
be provided for at a rate of (5%) of the total book value of these seized properties (regardless of the violation period) as of
the year 2021, so that the required percentage of 50% of these properties are to be reached by the end of the year 2028.

According to the Circular of the Central Bank of Jordan number 13246/3/10 dated 2 September 2021, Circular number
16239/1/10 dated 21 November 2019 has been postponed for one year. Therefore, the provisions will continue to be
deducted from 2022, so that the required percentage of 50% of these properties are to be reached by the end of 2030.

Cash and balances with the Central Bank item include, the cash reserve requirement item, which represents restricted
balances according to the Central Bank’s instructions and in accordance with the instructions of the supervisory authorities
in the countries in which the Bank operates, whichever is stricter.

The accounting policies used in preparing the consolidated financial statements are consistent with the accounting policies
that were followed in preparing the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2020, with the
exception of the effect of applying new and revised IFRSs, which became effective for financial periods beginning on or after
1 January 2021, as mentioned in Note {2.2).
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2.2 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

The accounting policies used in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements are consistent with those
followed in the preparation of the last consolidated financial statements for the Group for the year ended 31 December
2021, except for the adoption of new standards and amendments to the existing standards as mentioned below.

New and amended standards issued and adopted by the Group:
- Amendment to IFRS 16, ‘Leases’ — Covid-19 related rent concessions

As a result of the coronavirus {COVID-18) pandemic, rent concessions have been granted to lessees. Such concessions
might take a variety of forms, including payment holidays and deferral of lease payments. On 28 May 2020, the IASB
published an amendment to IFRS 16 that provides an optional practical expedient for lessees from assessing whether a
rent concession related to COVID-19 is a lease modification. Lessees can elect to account for such rent concessions in
the same way as they would if they were not lease modifications. In many cases, this will result in accounting for the
concession as variable lease payments in the period(s) in which the event or condition that triggers the reduced
payment occurs.

- A number of narrow-scope amendments to IFRS 3, IAS 16, IAS 17 and some annual improvements on IFRS 1, iFRS 9,
IAS 41 and IFRS 16.

- Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and IFRS 16 Interest Rate Benchmark Reform (IBOR) - Phase 2
The IASB 1ssued amendments to IFRS 9, |AS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and IFRS 16 that address issues arising during the interest
rate benchmark reform, including the substitution of one benchmark for another alternative. Due to the prevailing
nature of IBOR based contracts, adjustments can affect companies in all sectors. The amendments are effective from 1
January 2021. The Group has no substantial expasure to instruments which are referenced to IBOR.

- The amendment to |AS 16 Property, “Plant and Equipment {(PP&E)"
Prohibits an entity from deducting from the cost of an item of PP&E any proceeds received from selling items produced
while the entity is preparing the asset for its intended use. It also clarifies that an entity is ‘testing whether the asset is
functioning properly’ when it assesses the technical and physical performance of the asset. The financial performance
of the asset is not relevant to this assessment. Entities must disclose separately the amounts of proceeds and costs
relating to items produced that are not an output of the entity’s ordinary activities.

- The amendment to IFRS 17 and IFRS 4, delay “Insurance Contracts” for IFRS 9.
The amendments delay the date of implementation of IFRS 17 for two years to be at the first of January 2023 and
change the installed date for temporary exemption in IFRS 4 from the implementation of IFRS 9 until the first of January
2023.

- Amendments were made to IFRS 3 Business Combinations

To update the references to the Internationat Financial Reporting Standard 3 Conceptual Framework for Financial
Reporting. The amendments also confirm that contingent assets should not be recognised at the acquisition date.

- Amendments to IAS 37, 'Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets’

Specify which costs a Group includes when assessing whether a contract will be loss-making.
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New and revised IFRSs issued but not yet effective and not early adopted

The Group did not apply the following new standards, amendments and interpretations which have been issued but are not

yet effective

New standards, amendments and interpretations

Effective for annual
periods beginning on
or after

IFRS 17 “Insurance contracts”: On 18 May 2017, the IASB finished its long-standing project to
develop an accounting standard on insurance contracts and published IFRS 17 “Insurance
Contracts”. IFRS 17 replaces IFRS 4, which currently permits a wide variety of practices. IFRS
17 will fundamentally change the accounting by all entities that issue insurance contracts and
investment contracts with discretionary participation features.

The standard applies to annual periods beginning on or after 1 Januwary 2023, and early
application is permitted if it coincides with the application of IFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts
with customers” and IFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”.

IFRS 17 requires a current measurement model as estimates are remeasured in each reporting
period. The measurement is based on discounted weighted cash flow bases, an adjustment for
risk, and contractual services margin that represents unearned contract profits. A simplified
premium allocation method is permitted for liabilities over the remaining coverage period if
this method allows for a measurement method that is not materially different from the general
model or if the coverage period extends for a year or less. However, claims incurred should be
measured by reliance on risk-weighted, risk-adjusted and discounted cash flow bases.

1January 2023

Amendments to 1AS 1, “Presentation of financial statements” on classification of liabilities.
These minar amendments to 1AS 1, “Presentation of financial statements” clarify that liabilities
are classified as either current or non-current liabilities, depending on equities at the end of
reporting period. The classification is not affected by the entity's expectations or events
subsequent to the reporting date (for example, receipt of a waiver or breach of an
undertaking). The amendment also clarifies any reference to a “settlement” of liability as
mentioned in the IAS 1.

1 January 2023

The amendment to 1AS 8 Accounting Policies.

Clarifies how companies should distinguish changes in accounting policies from changes in
accounting estimates. The distinction is important, because changes in accounting estimates
are applied prospectively to future transactions and other future events, whereas changes in
accounting policies are generally applied retrospectively to past transactions and other past
events as well as the current period.

1 January 2023

The amendments to I1AS 12 Income Taxes.

Require companies to recognise deferred tax on transactions that, on initial recognition, give
rise to equal amounts of taxable and deductible temporary differences. They will typically
apply to transactions such as leases of lessees and decommissioning obligations and will
require the recognition of additional deferred tax assets and liabilities.

1January 2023

Sale or contribution of assets between an investor and its associate or joint venture —
Amendments to IFRS 10 and JAS 28

The |ASB has made limited scope amendments to IFRS 10 Consolidated financial statements
and IAS 28 Investments in associates and joint ventures.

The amendments clarify the accounting treatment for sales or contribution of assets between
an investor and its associates or joint ventures. They confirm that the accounting treatment
depends on whether the non- monetary assets sold or contributed to an associate or joint
venture constitute a ‘business’ (as defined in IFRS 3 Business Combinations).

1 January 2023

There are no other relevant IFRSs standards, amendments to the published standards, or IFRSs Interpretation Committee
that have been issued but did not come into effect for the first time for the Group's financial year that began on 1 January

2021 and was expected to have significant effect on the Group's consolidated financial statements.
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23 Basis of consolidation of the financial statements

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the Bank and the companies under its control (its
subsidiaries), and control is achieved when the Bank:

s Has the ability to control the investee;
e s exposed to variable returns, or has the right to variable returns, resulting from its association with the investes;
e Has the ability to use its power to influence the returns of the investee.

The Bank will re-estimate whether it controls the investees or not if the facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes on one or more of the control points referred to above.

In the event that the Bank’s voting rights fall below the majority of voting rights in any of the investees, it will have the
power to control when voting rights are sufficient to give the Bank the ability to unilateratly direct the related subsidiary
activities. The bank takes into account all facts and circumstances when estimating whether the Bank has voting rights in
the investee that are sufficient to give it the ability to control or not. These facts and circumstances include:

The volume of voting rights the Bank has in relation to the number and distribution of other voting rights;

Potential voting rights held by the Bank and any other voting rights holders or parties;

Rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

Any additional facts and circumstances indicating that the bank has, or does not have, a current responsibility to direct
the relevant activities at the time the required decisions are taken, including how to vote in meetings of previous general
assembly’s meetings.

The subsidiary is consolidated when the Bank controls the subsidiary and is deconsolidated when the Bank loses control of
the subsidiary. Specifically, the results of operations of subsidiaries acquired or excluded during the year are included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss from the date on which control is achieved until the date the control of the
subsidiary is lost.

Profits and losses and each item of the comprehensive income are distributed to the owners in the entity and the non-
controlling interest, the comprehensive income for the subsidiaries belonging to the owners in the entity and the non-
controlling share is distributed even if this distribution will lead to a deficit in the balance of the non-controlling interest.

Adjustments are made to the financial statements of the subsidiaries, when required, to align their accounting policies with
those used by the Bank.

Non-controlling interests in the subsidiaries are determined separately from the Bank’s equity in these entities. The non-
controlling interests of the shareholders currently present in the equity granted to their owners with a proportionate share
of the net assets upon liquidation may be measured initially at fair value or by the proportionate share of non-controlling
interests in the fair value of the identifiable net purchase amount of assets. The measurement is selected on an acquisition
basis. Other non-controlling interests are initially measured at fair value. After acquisition, the carrying value of non-
controlling interests is the value of these interests upon initial recognition, in addition to the non-controlling interest's share
of subsequent changes in equity. Total comprehensive income is attributable to the non-controlling interests even if that
results in a deficit in the non-controlling interests balance.

Changes in the Bank's interest in subsidiaries that do not result in loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions.
The present value of the Bank's and non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect changes in their relative shares in the
subsidiaries. Any difference between the amount by which the non-controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value of
the consideration paid or received is recognised directly in equity and attributed to the owners of the Bank.

When the Bank loses control of a subsidiary, the profit or loss resulting from the disposal is calculated in the statement of
profit or loss, with the difference between (1) the total fair value of the consideration received and the fair value of any
remaining shares and {2) the present value of the assets {including goodwill), less the liabilities of the subsidiary and any
non-controlling interests.

All amounts previously recognised in the other comprehensive income in relation to that subsidiary are accounted for as if
the Bank had directly disposed of the assets or liabilities related to the subsidiary.
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The fair value of the investment that is held in the previous subsidiary at the date of loss of control is considered to be the
fair value upon initial recognition of subsequent accounting under IFRS (9) “Financial instruments” when the provisions of
this standard apply, or the cost of initial recognition of investment in an associate or a joint venture.

The Bank has the following subsidiary as at 31 December 2021:

Bank's
Paid in ownership Nature of Country of Date of
Name of the Company capital % operations incorporation acquisition
D %
Ejara Finance Leasing Finance
Company 20,000,000 100 leasing Jordan 2011
In phases,
United Financial Investments starting
Company * 8,000,000 96.35 Brokerage Jordan from 2002

* The proportion of non-controlling interests is 3.65% of the capital of the United Financial Investments Company, which is
an amount of JD 277,710 in equity and a loss of JD 33,406 of profit for the year.

The Bank has the following subsidiaries as at 31 December 2020:

Bank’s
Paid in ownership Nature of Country of Date of
Name of the Company capital % aperations incorporation acquisition
1D %
Ejara Finance Leasing Company Finance
20,000,000 100 leasing Jordan 2011
United Financial Investments In phases,
Company* starting
8,000,000 95.6 Brokerage Jordan from 2002
Specialized Managerial Management
Company for Investment and of issues and
Financiat Consultation ** financial 2016
530,000 100 consultations Jordan

* It has been reclassified to a subsidiary whose accounts will be consolidated as of the third quarter of 2021 based on the
management’s decision to refrain from selling it due to the lack of the appropriate opportunity at the present time.

** The Company was sold to one of its subsidiaries (United Financial Investments Co UFICO) during the third quarter of
2021,

The result of operations of the subsidiaries are consolidated in the consolidated statement of income from the date of their
ownership which is the date on which the control on the subsidiaries is actually transferred to the Bank. The results of
disposed operations of subsidiaries are consolidated in the consolidated statement of income up to the disposal date, which
is the date on which the Bank loses control over the subsidiaries.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same financial year of the Bank, using the same accounting
policies used by the Bank. If the accounting policies adopted by the subsidiaries are different, the required adjustments are
made on the financial statements of the subsidiaries to be consistent with the policies. If separate financial statements are
prepared for the Bank as an independent entity, the investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost,

2-4 Segment information

The business segment represents a group of assets and operations that jointly provide products or services subject to risks
and returns that are different from those related to other business segments and that are measured according to the reports
that are used by the executive managers and decision makers in the Bank.

A geographical segment is associated with the provision of products or services in a particular economic environment that
is subject to risks and rewards different from those related to segments operating in other economic environments.
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25 Financial instruments
Initial recognition of measurement:

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position of the Bank when
the Bank becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument and loans and advances to customers are
recognised if they are credited to the customers’ account.

Financial assets and liabilities are measured initially at fair value, and transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issuance of financial assets and liabilities are added to the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, or deducted therefrom, as necessary, upon initial recognition. Transaction costs that are directly related to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through the consolidated statement of income are
recognised directly in the consclidated statement of income.

If the transaction price differs from fair value at initial recognition, the Bank will account for such difference as follows:

s  When the fair value is evidenced by a quoted price in an active market for an identical asset or liability or based on a
valuation technique that uses only data from observable markets, the difference is recognised in the consolidated
profit or loss on initial recognition (i.e. profit or loss on the first day).

* Inall other cases, the fair value is adjusted to align with the transaction price (i.e. day 1 profit or loss will be deferred
by including it in the initial carrying amount of the asset or liability).

After initial recognition, the deferred gain or loss will be released to the consolidated statement of income on a rational
basis, only to the extent that it arises from a change in a factor (including time) that market participants would take into
account when pricing the asset or liability, or upon the de-recognition of such instrument.

Initial recognition

All financial assets are recognised on the trade date where the purchase or sale of a financial asset is made under a contract
whose terms require delivery of the financial asset within the timeframe established by the market concerned, and is initially
measured at fair value, plus transaction costs, except for those financial assets classified as at fair value in the consclidated
statement of income. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets classified as at FVTPL are
recognised immediately in the statement of income.

Subsequent measurement

All recognised financial assets that are within the scope of IFRS {9) are required to be subsequently measured at amortised
cost or fair value on the basis of the entity's business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual cash flow
characteristics of the financial assets.

Specifically:

e financing instruments held in the business model that aims to collect contractual cash flows, and which have
contractual cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest {SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding,
and are subsequently measured at amortised cost;

¢ Financing instruments held within the business model that aim to both collect contractual cash flows and sell debt
instruments, which have contractual cash flows, are SPPI on the principal amount outstanding, and are subsequently
measured at fair value through other comprehensive income;

e All other financing instruments (such as debt instruments managed on fair value basis, or held for sale), and equity
investments are subsequently measured at fair value through the consoclidated statement of income.
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However, the Bank can take a non-cancellable option/ determination after initial recognition of the financial asset on an
asset-by-asset basis, as follows:

¢ The Bank can take the non-cancellable option by including subsequent changes in the fair value of the investment in
equity that is not held for trading or a possible replacement recognised by the buyer within the business combination
to which the IFRS {9) applies, in other comprehensive income;

¢ The Bank can determine in a non-cancellable manner the financing instruments that meet the criteria of amortised
cost or fair value through other comprehensive income as measured by the fair value through the consolidated
statement of income if it eliminates or significantly reduces mismatches in accounting (referred to as the fair value
option].

Debt instruments at amortised cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income:

The Bank assesses the classification and measurement a financial asset based on the contractual cash flow characteristics
and the Bank’s business modei for managing the asset.

The contractual terms of the asset that is classified and measured at amortised cost or at FVQCI, should give rise to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal cutstanding.

For the purpose of the SPPI test, the principal is the fair value of the financial asset at initial recognition. That principal
amount may change over the life of the financial asset (e.g. if there are repayments of principal). Interest consists of
consideration for the time value of money, for the credit risk associated with the principal amount outstanding during a
particular period of time and for other basic lending options and risks, as well as a profit margin. The SPP| assessment is
made in the currency in which the financial asset is denominated.

The contractual cash flows represent SPPI, which are consistent with the basic financing arrangement. Contractual terms
that introduce exposure to risks or volatility in the contractual cash flows that are unrelated to a basic financing
arrangement, such as exposure to changes in equity prices or commaodity prices, do not give rise to contractual cash flows
that are SPPI. An originated or an acquired financial asset can be a basic financing arrangement irrespective of whether it is
aloan in its legal form.

Business model assessment:

An assessment of business models for managing financial assets is fundamental to the classification of a financial asset. The
Bank determines the business models at a level that reflects how groups of financial assets are managed together to achieve
a particular business objective. The Bank’s business model does not depend on management’s intentions for an individual
instrument; therefore the business model assessment is performed at a higher level of aggregation rather than on an
instrument-by-instrument basis.

The Bank may adopt more than one business model for managing its financial instruments which reflect how the Bank
manages its financial assets in order to generate cash flows. The Bank’s business models determine whether cash flows will
result from collecting contractual cash flows, selling financial assets or both.

The Bank takes into account all relevant information available when making the business model assessment. However, this
assessment is not performed on the basis of scenarios that expected to Bank does not reasonably expect to occur, such as
the so-called ‘worst case’ or ‘stress case’ scenarios. The Bank also takes into account all relevant evidence available such as:

e The policies and declared objectives of the portfolio and the application of those policies and whether the management
strategy focuses on obtaining contractual revenue, maintaining a specific rate of profit, and matching the period of
financial assets with the period of financial liabilities in which those assets are financed cash flows are realised through
the sale of assets.

e How the performance of the business model and the financial assets held within that business model are evaluated
and reported to the key management personnel;
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¢  Therisks that affect the performance of the business model (and financial assets held within that business model) and,
in particular, the way in which those risks are managed.

e How managers of the business are compensated (e.g. whether the compensation is based on the fair value of the
assets managed or on the contractual cash flows collected).

* Oninitial recognition of the financial asset, the Bank determines whether the recently recognised financial assets are
part of an existing business model or whether it reflects the beginning of a new business model. The Bank reassesses
its business models in each reporting period to determine whether the business models have changed since the
previous period.

When a debt instrument that is measured at fair value through other comprehensive income is derecognised, the cumulative
gain/ loss previously recognised in ather comprehensive income in equity is reclassified to the consolidated statement of
income. On the other hand, as for equity investment measured at fair value through other comprehensive income, the
cumulative gain/ loss previously recognised in other comprehensive income is not subsequently reclassified to the
consolidated statement of income but is rather transferred directly within equity.

Debt instruments that are subsequently measured at amortised cost or at FVOCI are tested for impairment.

Financial assets
- Assessing whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI):

For the purposes of this assessment, 'principal’ is defined as the fair value of the financial asset on initial recognition.
'Interest' is defined as consideration for the time value of money and for the credit risk associated with the principal amount
outstanding during a particular period of time and for other basic lending risks and costs {e.g. liquidity risk and administrative
costs), as well as profit margin.

In assessing whether contractual cash flows are only SPPI, the Bank has considered the contractual terms of the instrument.
This includes assessing whether the financial assets involve a contractual period that can change the timing or amount of
contractual cash flows and therefore they do not meet the conditions of SPPI. In making this assessment, the Bank considers:

- Contingent events that change the amount or timing of cash flows.
- Prepaid features and the possibility to extend.
- Terms that limit the Bank's claim to cash flows frem specified assets.

Financial assets at fair value through the statement of income:

Financial assets at fair value through the statement of income are:
- Assets of contractual cash flows, and which are not (SPPI); or / and
- Assets held within the business model other than those held to collect contractual cash flows or held for collection
- zggeizls;e?i;nated at fair value through the consolidated statement of income using fair value option.

These assets are measured at fair value, and any gains/ losses arising from re-measurement are recognised in the
consolidated statement of income.

Reclassification:

If the business model, under which the Bank holds financial assets, changes, the financial assets that were affected are
reclassified. The classification and measurement requirements related to the new category apply prospectively from the
first day of the first reporting period following the change in business model that results in reclassifying the Bank's financial
assets. Changes in contractual cash flows are considered within the framework of the accounting policy for the amendment
and exclusion of financial assets set out below.

Foreign exchange gains and losses

The carrying amount of financial assets recorded in foreign currency is determined and translated at the rates prevailing at
the end of each reporting period. Specifically:

* For financial assets measured at amortised cost that are not part of a designated hedging relationship, exchange
differences are recognised in the statement of income of profit or loss; and
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¢  For debt instruments measured at FYOCI that are not part of a designated hedging relationship, exchange differences
on the amortised cost of the debt instrument are recognised in the statement of profit or loss. Other exchange
differences are recognised in OCl in the investment’s revaluation reserve;

e  Forfinancial assets measured at amortised cost through the statement of profit or loss that are not part of a designated
hedging relationship, gains and losses of exchange differences are recognised in the statement of profit or loss; and

* For equity instruments measured at FVOCI, exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive income
within investments valuation reserve,

Fair value option

A financial instrument with a fair value can be measured reliably at fair value through the statement of profit or loss (fair
value option) upon initial recognition, even if the financial instruments are not acquired or incurred primarily for the purpose
of selling or repurchasing. The fair value option for financial assets can be used if it substantially eliminates or reduces the
inconsistency of the measurement or recognition that would otherwise have arisen from the measurement of assets or
liabilities, or the recognition of related profit and loss on a different basis {“accounting mismatch”), The fair value option for
financial liabilities can be chosen in the following cases:

If the choice leads to the cancellation or substantially reduces accounting mismatch.
If the financial liabilities are part of a portfolio managed on a fair value basis, according to a documented risk or
investment management strategy; or

e |f there is a derivative that is included in the host financial or non-financial contract and the derivative is not closely
related to the host contract.

These tools cannot be reclassified to fair value through the statement of profit or loss while they are held or issued. Financial
assets designated at fair value through the statement of profit or loss are recorded at fair value with any unrealised gains
or losses arising from changes in the fair value recognised in investment income.

26 Descriptive disclosures related to the application of the IFRS (9).
1. Definition of the Bank's implementation of default and the mechanism of addressing it:

The Bank defines the default and the mechanism of addressing it in accordance with the instructions of the Central Bank
regarding the application of IFRS 9 No0.13/2018 issued on 6/6/2018. The Central Bank's instructions No. {47/2009) dated
10/12/2009 (item 11/ D) include a number of indicators on a default event which must also be complied with.

- Existence of dues equal to or greater than (90) days.

S Increase in risk ratings above -7.

- Credit exposure / debt instruments that have evidence that they have become defaulted (irregular) or are expected
to be defaulted soon.

- The debtor is experiencing significant financial difficulties {very weak financial data).

- The existence of clear indications that the debtor is near bankruptcy.

Mechanism of addressing default:

The Bank will follow-up with the customer before their default, trying not to reach the stage of classification of the facilities
granted to them. In case of classification, the specific provision will be made against the facilities in accordance with the
instructions and standards. In addition, they will be followed-up by the Department of Follow-up & Collections before
starting the legal procedures in case of failure to reach solutions or schedules according to the instructions of the Central
Bank of Jordan and the supervisory authorities in the countries where the Bank operates.
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2. A detailed explanation of the Bank's internal credit rating system and its working mechanism:
- Internal credit rating system for corporate customers:

The Bank has an automated internal credit rating system from Moody's supplier. The rating system includes all of the
processes, controls, data collected, and the information system that support and asses the credit quality of the borrower. It
is then translated to the degree of risk to customers and linked to the customer’s PD. This contributes to calculating the
expected credit loss.

Moody's system that contains following model's to calculate customers credit rating:

- large Enterprises Rating Model.

- SME Rating Model {with financial data).

- SME Rating Medel (without financial data).

- Customer Rating Model for Project Financing.
- High net worth customers Rating Model.

The grades in the system range from 1 {Exceptional: a very high quality and low risk company) to 10 {Poar: a non-performing
classified company) - 7 working grades and 3 non-performing grades.

There is a clear and specific Master scale. Each credit rating is calculated by Moody's, offset by the probability of default
{PD). Financial and non-financial analysis of clients is made. Moody's Financial Analysis Structure consists of four main
sections:

1. Operations:

2. Liquidity:

3. Capital structure:

4. Debt service:
An override can be used to classify the customer through an approval of the Facility Management Committee for the
proposed ratings.
- Internal credit scoring system for individual customers:
Retail customers {individuals) are rated and given a rating grade based an their risk before their loans are approved. Such
ratings are utilised to estimate the probability of default. This is done for housing loan products, auto finance and consumer
loans.

3. The mechanism adopted to calculate expected credit losses (ECL) on financial instruments for each item:

The "loss realisation” test model is used using the ECL model, which requires the use of estimates and judgments to estimate

the economic factors that have an effect on the impairment in accordance with the new model. This model has been applied

and the impairment loss has been calculated in accordance with the following rules:

- 12-month impairment losses: The expected impairment of default is calculated within 12 months following the
date of the financial statements.

- Impairment losses for the useful life of the instrument: The expected impairment on the life of the financial
instrument is calculated until the maturity date of the consclidated financial statements.

The mechanism for calculating expected losses depends on the probability of default, which is calculated according to the
credit risk, future economic factors and loss given default {LGD), which depends on the value of the existing collateral and
the amount of the exposure at default (EAD).

In accordance with the requirements of IFRS 9, ECL measurement model is applied within the following framework (except
as measured at fair value through statement of income):

- Loans and credit facilities (direct and indirect}.
- Debt instruments carried at amortised cost.
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- Debt instruments classified at fair value through other comprehensive income.
- Trade receivables.

- Credit exposures to banks and financial institutions [excluding current balances used to cover bank transactions
such as remittances, guarantees and credits within a very short period of time (days)].

In respect of revolving facilities, ECL are calculated based on the behavioural maturity of three years.

4. Definition and mechanism for calculating and monitoring the probability of default {PD}, exposure at default
(EAD) and loss given default {LGD).

a. Probability of Default (PD):

This represents the risk arising from the borrower's inability or unwillingness to repay its debts in full or on time, which is
normally anticipated by analysing the customer's ability to repay its debt in accordance with its financial statements. The
probability of default of the customer generally relates to financial data such as insufficient cash flows to service debt, low
operating income ar margins, high leverage or low liquidity. Accounting is done as follows:

Corporate customers:

- PD is calculated by linking the credit ratings within the internal credit rating to the grade of default identified in the
Master Scale and for each individual customer. The probability of default is converted from Through the Cycle (TTC)
to Point In Time, after the credit rating has been calibrated and the probability of default to match the bank's
default data.

- For defaulted loans (Stage 3}, the probability of default is set at 100%.
- Accounts not rated internally are assumed to have a rating grade of 5 with the Bank and -5 with Ejara Company.
- The probability of default was calculated for the Jordanian government based on its external credit rating.

Retail customers:
Their PD is calculated based on Behavioural Scoring and based on logistic regression for each customer.

For debt instruments and money market, Moody's external credit rating was adopted. If the debt instrument of an unrated
company is treated as unrated companies. As for the unrated banks, the credit rating of the country to which the bank
belongs is adopted and adjusted to suit the financial solidity of the Bank.

b. Losses Given Default:

This represents the ratio of assets that are expected to be lost if the customer defaults. This ratio is defined at the level of
the facility rather than at the customer level. It is affected by various factors such as the availability of collateral, type of
guarantee, priority of payment, the duration and quality of the loan. The accounting is done as follows:

Corporate customers and debt instruments:

- An LGD accounting system is used based on a number of determinants, including the customer's credit rating,
economic sector, type and value of collateral and coverage ratio. These are calculated based on historical
information.

- Haircut rates have been made for guarantees greater than those specified by the instructions of the Central Bank
of lordan.

- Setting floor limits for LGD ranging from 0% to 10%.

S Defaulted facilities (Stage 3) - The proportion of LGD has been identified for the unsecured portion with guarantees
of 100%.
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- The ratio of LGD to the Jardanian government was set at 0%.
Retail customers:

A model was developed for the accounting {Logistic regression model) using the variables used in the accounting of the
Probability of Default model.

c. Exposure at Default (EAD)

The amount at risk is defined as the amount of the indebtedness in which the Bank is exposed to the probability of default
in the case of a customer default as following:

- The current balance of direct facilities and a CCF proportion of 100% for indirect facilities.
- In the case of limits, the value of the amount exposed to the default shall be divided into two parts: the utilised
obligations and the unutilised obligations where the balance or ceiling is calculated, whichever is higher.

- For retail, credit is used to determine the value of the default amount using the facilities prepayment ratio of
customers.

Determinants of the significant change in the credit risk on which the Bank relied in calculating expected credit losses.

Rating Criteria
This includes credit exposures / debt instruments that have not received a significant increase in their credit
risk since the initial recognition of the exposure / instrument or have a low credit risk at the date of
preparation of the financial statements. Credit risk is considered to be low if the following conditions are
met:

Stage 1: Low default risk.
The debtor has a high abifity in the short term to meet commitments.
The Bank does not expect adverse changes in the economy in the long-term working environment adversely
affecting the debtor's ability to meet its obligations (macroeconomic indicators and stress tests).
Accounts with dues more than 30 days and less than 90 days.
Accounts that were previously scheduled.
Accounts that were structured twice in a year.
Accounts rated by internal credit -7.

Stage 2: In case of reducing the actual or expected internal credit rating of the borrower or the credit exposure /
debt instrument according to the internal rating system applied by the Bank.
Actual or expected significant decrease in the external credit rating of the credit exposure / debt
instrument.
Substantial negative changes in the performance and behaviour of the borrower such as late payment of
instalments or unwillingness to respond to the Bank.
This includes credit exposure / debt instruments that have evidence(s) that they have defaulted (irregular)
or are expected to default soon.
The debtor is experiencing significant financial difficulties {very weak financial data).

Stage 3: Non-compliance with contractual conditions such as the existence of maturities equal to or greater than
(90} days, and credit rating higher than -7.
The existence of clear indications that the debtor is near bankruptcy.
In addition to the above, the Central Bank Instructions No. (47/2009} dated 10/12/2009 (item |1 / D} includes
a number of indicators demonstrating an event of default which must also be complied with.
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5.

There are clear and specific criteria for ratings in the three stages (1, 2 and 3) and the transfer among them.
According to the instructions of the Central Bank of Jordan, which state that in the event of an improvement in the
quality of credit and the availability of sufficient and documented reasons making it possible to transfer credit
exposures from Stage 3 to Stage to or from Stage 2 to Stage 1, the transfer should only take place after the
improvement of the credit position of the exposure and the obligation to pay at least three monthly instalments,
two quarterly instalments or semi-annual instalment on time, in addition to improving the credit rating of the
customer to be higher than -7 in order to be transferred to Stage 1.

The downgrade of credit rating / debt instrument by two grades on the ten-point rating system since the date of
initial recognition is evidence of a significant credit risk decline.

Key economic indicators used by the Bank in calculating expected credit loss {ECL).

The 8ank uses key economic indicators in calculating expected credit loss, as follows:

Corporate: GDP growth indicators and the financial market index

Retail: A larger number of variables has been used, the most important of which are consumer price index, GDP,
interbank rate of interest, volume of consumption, expected inflation, unemployment rate, discount rate, deposit
rate and other rates.

Governance of applying the requirements of IFRS 9, including the responsibilities of the Board of Directors and Executive
Management to ensure compliance with the requirements of IFRS 5.

The Board of Directors is responsible for establishing the Bank’s acceptable risk profile and effective management
of risk management.

The Board of Directors is responsible and authorised to approve the expected credit losses in the Bank's financial
statements.

The Board of Directors of the Bank shall provide appropriate governance structure and procedures to ensure the
proper application of IFRS 9 by defining the roles of the committees, departments and working units of the Bank,
ensuring the integrity of the work among them and providing the appropriate infrastructure.

The Board of Directors shall ensure that the Bank's management develops the necessary systems to provide
adequate and accurate information and data in order to provide the Bank with the accurate ability to calculate and
with the participation of all relevant business units in the Bank and under the supervision of the Board of Directors
and its related committees.

The Board of Directors shall ensure that the Bank's management implements high quality and reliable quality
systems in terms of inputs, operating processes and results,

The Board of Directors shall ensure that the Bank's control units, specifically risk department, internal audit
department work to verify the validity and integrity of the methodologies and systems used in the application of
IFRS 9 and to provide the necessary support to these supervisory units.

Board of Directors' Audit Committee:

The Committee monitors compliance with the expected credit loss accounting framework in accordance with IFRS
9 and ensures that internal audit carried out its duties in this regard.

The Committee recommends to the Board of Directors the adoption of expected credit loss figures as part of the
quarterly financial statements.
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Board Risk Committee:
- The Committee reviews and recommends the adoption of the credit risk assessment framework and assumptions.

S The Committee is responsible for the accounting of expected credit losses and is reviewed at the level of the Board
of Directors with respect to the roles and models used for the accounting.

Management Committee for Provisions:

- It is responsible for any exceptions to the results of the outputs of the systems, the specific procedures and the
documented models of the accounting process.

- It reviews the process of staging rules and sets the necessary recommendations.

- It views the accounting of the expected credit losses and recommends the adoption.

Risk management:

- The Risk Management Department undertakes the necessary work to verify the validity and integrity of the
methodologies and systems used in the application of IFRS 9.

- It reviews the used models and assumptions used in the accounting and recommends any required modifications
to the independent model validation.

- it evaluates the credit rating systems, determinants and results.
- it is responsible for the accounting of expected credit losses.

- It reviews the transition between different stages, compares them with staging rules and reviews these limits
periodically.

Finance Department:

o Calculation of the expected credit losses (ECL)

- It analyses the various accounting results and reviews the accuracy and efficiency of the accounting process.

- It prepares detailed statements required by the Central Bank of Jordan.

- It participates with the departments concerned with reviewing the business model, through which the objectives
and bases of acquisition and classification of financial instruments are determined, in order to ensure integration
with other business requirements.

- It prepares accounting restrictions and reverse the results of the accounting on the main banking system.

Internal audit:

The Internal Audit Department undertakes the necessary work to verify the validity and integrity of the methodologies
assumptions and systems used.

Covid-19 and expected credit loss

The existence and spread of the novel Coronavirus (COVID-19) was confirmed in early 2020, which affected the commercial
and economic activities. In response, governments and central banks launched economic support measures and relief
actions (deferred payment) to reduce the impact on individuals and companies.

The Group continues to assess various indicators that may indicate the borrowers’ probability of default, taking into account
the main reason for the financial difficulty that the borrower faces, to determine whether the cause is temporary as a result
of COVID-19 or for a longer period as a result of the situation of the borrower's financial situation.
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The Group has started implementing a payment deferral program for its customers engaged in highly affected sectors by
deferring the interest amount and the original instalment due for a period of one month to one year. These deferrals are
short-term liquidity intended to address borrowers' cash flow matters. The deferrals provided to customers may indicate to
a significant increase in credit risk. However, the Group believes that the extension of the deferrals period does not
automatically mean a significant increase in credit risk, which calls for transferring the borrower to the next stage for the
purposes of calculating the expected credit losses. The deferred payment process aims to provide assistance to borrowers
affected by the COVID-19 outbreak to resume the payments on a regular basis. At this stage, there is insufficient information
available to enable the Group to make a distinction between the short-term financial difficulties associated with COVID-19
and those associated with the borrowers’ significant increase in credit risk over the age of the financial instrument. This
approach is consistent with the projections of the Central Bank of Jordan as indicated in its circular (No. 10/3/4375 issued
on 15 March 2020} which did not consider the arrangements related to the affected sectors during this period as
rescheduling or restructuring of credit facilities during the period for the purpose of assessing the significant increase in
credit risk. Accordingly, these deferrals were not considered to be an amendment to the terms of the contract.

The impact of such uncertain econamic conditions is discretionary, and the Group will continue to reassess its position and
the impact associated with it on a regular basis. As with any economic forecast, expectations and prospects are subject to a
high degree of uncertainty and consequently actual results may differ significantly from those expected.

Reasonableness of forward-looking and weighted probability

Any changes made are subject to expected credit losses, as the macroeconomic indicators and the forward-looking of these
variables used in the expected credit loss calculation system (Moody's) have been updated according to the impact of the
COVID-19 pandemic.

When studying the impact of Coronavirus, the Group took into consideration many positive factors, including:

Initiatives of the Central Bank of Jordan and the Jordan Loan Guarantee Corporation

Central Bank instructions on deferral of loan instalments and interest

Initiatives of Government and the Social Security Corporation

Reducing interest rates

Enhancing the Bank’s liguidity by the Central Bank of Jordan (including reducing the cash reserves ratio)

Actions taken by the Bank to address COVID — 19 effect

When determining the expected credit losses for the first quarter of 2020, the group took into consideration (according to
the best available information) the uncertainties about the Covid-19 epidemic and the economic support measures and
relief work from the Jordanian government and the Central Bank of lordan, and the group also took into consideration the
instructions issued by the Central Bank of Jordan (No. 10/3/4375 issued on March 15, 2020), as well as other instructions
related to taking some measures to confront the possible effect of the epidemic on the bank, accordingly the need for
additional provision will be assessed this year.

The bank has adopted Moody's outcomes and estimates updated model, that considered COVID-19 situation in relation to
the macroeconomic and forward-looking factors in calculating the expected credit loss provisions.

The impact of such uncertain economic conditions is discretionary; therefore, The Group will continue to reassess its
position and the associated impact on a regular basis, and as with any economic forecast, expectations and paossibilities
are subject to a high degree of uncertainty and thus actual results may differ significantly from those expected.
Management expects greater clarity on the impact of Covid-19 on the outcome of the group's business and the size of
expected credit losses and the impact on liguidity at the end of Q4 2021.

2-7 Impairment

The Bank recognises loss allowances for expected limit loss on the following financial instruments that are not measured at
fair value through the staternent of profit or loss:
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Balances and deposits with banks and banking institutions.

Direct credit facilities (loans and advances to customers).

Financial assets at amortised cost {debt instruments securities)

Financial assets at fair value through the statement of other comprehensive income.

Exposures off-the statement of financial position that are subject to credit risk {issued financial guarantee contracts).

Impairment loss is not recognised in equity instruments.

With the exception of purchased or originated credit impaired {POCI) financial assets (which are considered separately
below), ECL are required to be measured through a loss allowance at an amount equal to:

e 12-month ECL, i.e. lifetime ECL that result from those default events on the financial instrument that can be realised
within 12 months after the reporting date, referred to in Stage 1; or

e 12-month ECL, i.e. lifetime ECL that result from those possible default events over the age of the financial instrument,
referred to in Stage 2 and Stage 3.7

A loss allowance for lifetime ECL is required for a financial instrument if the credit risk on that financial instrument has
increased significantly since initial recognition. For all other financial instruments, £CL are measured at an amount equal to
the 12-month ECL.

ECL are a probability-weighted estimate of the present value of credit losses. These are measured as the present value of
the difference between the cash flows due to the Bank under the contract and the cash flows that the Bank expects to
receive, which arise from the weighting of multipte future economic scenarios, discounted at the asset’s EIR.

For the limits not utilised, the expected credit loss is the difference between the present value of the difference between
the contractual cash flows due to the Bank if the borrower withdraws the financing and the cash flows that the Bank expects
to receive if the financing is utilised; and

For financial guarantee contracts, the ECL is the difference between the expected payments to reimburse the holder of the
guaranteed debt instrument Jess any amounts that the Bank expects to receive from the instrument holder, the customer
or any other party.

The Bank measures ECL on an individual basis, or on the portfolio basis that share similar economic risk characteristics. The
measurement of the loss allowance is based on the present value of the asset’s expected cash flows using the asset’s original
EIR, regardless of whether it is measured on an individual basis or a portfolio basis.

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is ‘credit-impaired’ when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash
flows of the financial asset have occurred. Credit-impaired financial assets are referred to as Stage 3 assets. Evidence of
credit-impairment includes observable data about the following events:

Significant financial difficulty faced by borrower or issuer;
Breach of contract, for example, default or delay in payment;
The Bank grants the borrower a waiver for economic or contractual reasons related to the borrower's financial
difficulty;
s The disappearance of an active market for that financial asset because of financial difficulties; or
s The purchase of a financial asset at a significant discount that reflects the incurred credit losses.”

It may not be possible to identify a single discrete event, instead, the combined effect of several events may have caused
financial assets to become credit impaired. The Bank assesses whether debt instruments that are financial assets measured
at amortised cost or FVOCI are credit-impaired at each reporting date. To assess if corporate debt instruments are credit
impaired, the Bank considers factors such as bond yields, credit ratings and the ability of the borrower to raise funding.

A loan is considered credit-impaired when a concession is granted to the borrower due to a deterioration in the barrower’s
financial condition, unless there is evidence that as a result of granting the concession the risk of not receiving the
contractual cash flows has reduced significantly and there are no other indicators of impairment. For financial assets where
concessions are contemplated but not granted, the asset is deemed credit impaired when there is observable evidence of
credit-impairment including meeting the definition of default. The definition of default includes possibility of a backstop if
amounts are overdue for 90 days or more. However, cases where the asset's impairment is not recognised after (90) days
of maturity, are supported by reasonable information.
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Purchased or originated credit-impaired’ {POCI) financial assets

POCI financial assets are treated differently because the asset is credit-impaired at initial recognition. Far these assets, the
Bank recognises all changes in lifetime ECL since initial recognition as a loss allowance with any changes recognised in the
statement of profit or loss. A favourable change for such assets creates an impairment gain.

Definition of default

The definition of default is deemed critical to the determination of ECL. The definition of default is used in measuring the
amount of ECL and in the determination of whether the loss allowance is based on 12-month or lifetime ECL, as default is a
companent of the probability of default (PD) which affects both the measurement of ECL and the identification of a
significant increase in credit risk as shown below.

The Bank considers the following as an event of default:

e The borrower defaults for more than 90 days on any significant credit obligation to the Bank; or
s The borrower is unlikely to pay his credit obligations to the Bank in full.

The definition of default is appropriately tailored to reflect different characteristics of different types of assets. Overdrafts
are considered as being past due once the customer has breached an advised limit or has been advised of a limit smaller
than the current amount outstanding.

When assessing if the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligation, the Bank takes into account both qualitative and
quantitative indicators. The information assessed depends on the type of the asset, for example in corporate lending a
qualitative indicator used is the breach of covenants, which is not relevant for retail lending. Quantitative indicators, such
as overdue status and non-payment of another obligation to the same counterparty are key inputs in this analysis. The Bank
uses a variety of sources of information to assess default which are either developed internally or obtained from external
sources.

Significant increase in credit risk

The Bank monitors all financial assets, issued loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts that are subject to
impairment requirements to assess whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, If
there has been a significant increase in credit risk, the Bank will measure the loss allowance based on lifetime rather than
12-month ECL.

The Bank will not consider that financial assets with ‘tow’ credit risk at the reporting date did not have a significant increase
in credit risk. As a result, the Bank monitors all financial assets, issued loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts
that are subject to impairment for significant increase in credit risk.

In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition, the Bank
compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument at the reporting date based on the remaining maturity
of the instrument with the risk of a default that was anticipated for the remaining maturity at the current reporting date
when the financial instrument was first recognised. In making this assessment, the Bank considers both quantitative and
qualitative information that is reasonable and supportable, including historical experience and forward-looking information
that is available without undue cost or effort, based on the Bank’s historical experience and expert credit assessment
including forward-looking information.

Multiple economic scenarios form the basis of determining the probabhility of default at initial recognition and at subsequent
reporting dates. Different economic scenarios will lead to a different probability of default. It is the weighting of these
different scenarios that forms the basis of a weighted average probability of default that is used to determine whether credit
risk has significantly increased.

For corporate financing, forward-looking information includes the future prospects of the industries in which the Bank’s
counterparties operate, that can be obtained from economic expert reports, financial analysts, governmental bodies,
relevant think-tanks and other similar organisations, as well as taking into consideration various internal and external
sources of actual and forecast economic information. For retail financing, forward looking lending information includes the
same economic forecasts as corporate lending with additional forecasts of local economic indicators, particularly for regions
with a concentration to certain industries, as well as internally generated information of customer payment behaviour.
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The Bank allocates its counterparties to a relevant credit risk grade depending on their guality. The quantitative information
is @ primary indicator of significant increase in credit risk and is based on the change in lifetime PD by comparing

¢ The remaining lifetime PD at the date of reporting; and
e The remaining lifetime PD at a point in time that was estimated based on facts and circumstances at the initial
recognition of the exposure.

The PDs are considered forward-looking, and the Bank uses the same methodologies and data used to measure the expected
credit loss provisions.

The qualitative factors that indicate significant increase in credit risk are reflected in PD models on a timely basis. However,
the Bank still considers separately some quaiitative factors to assess if credit risk has increased significantly. For corporate
lending, there is particular focus on assets that are included on a ‘watch list’ given an exposure is on a watch list once there
is a concern that the creditworthiness of the specific counterparty has deteriorated. For retail lending, the Bank considers
the forbearance and payment holidays, credit scores and events such as unemployment, bankruptcy, divorce or death.

Given that a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition is a relative measure, a given change, in absolute terms,
in the PD will be more significant for a financial instrument with a lower initial PD than compared to a financial instrument
with a higher PD.

Modification and de-recognition of financial assets

A modification of a financial asset occurs when the contractual terms governing the cash flows of a financial asset are
renegotiated or otherwise modified between initial recognition and maturity of the financial asset. A modification affects
the amount and/ or timing of the contractual cash flows either immediately or at a future date. In addition, the introduction
or adjustment of existing covenants of an existing loan would constitute a modification even if these new or adjusted
covenants do not yet affect the cash flows immediately but may affect the cash flows depending on whether the covenant
is or is not met (e.g. a change to the increase in the interest rate that arises when covenants are breached).

The Bank renegotiates loans with customers who face financial difficulties to increase collection and reduce the risk of
default. The terms of repayment of the loan are facilitated in cases where the borrower has made all reasonable efforts to
pay under the original contractual terms, and an important risk of default or default has occurred and it is expected that the
borrower will be able to fulfil the revised terms. The revised terms in most of the cases include an extension of the maturity
of the loan, changes to the timing of the cash flows of the loan {principal and interest repayment), reduction in the amount
of cash flows due (principal and interest forgiveness) and amendments to covenants. The bank has a waiting policy that
applies to corporate and individual lending.

When a financial asset is modified, the bank assesses whether this amendment leads to de-recognition. As per the Bank's
policy, the modification leads to de-recognition when it causes a significant difference in the terms.

¢ Qualitative factors, such as the non-existence of contractual cash flows after modification as SPPI, change in currency
or change in the counterparty, or extent of change in interest rate, maturity. If this does not clearly indicate a
fundamental modification, then;

s Conducting a quantitative evaluation to compare the present value of the remaining contractual cash flows under the
original terms with the contractual cash flows in accordance with the revised terms, and deduct both amounts based
on the original effective interest.

In the case where the financial asset is derecognised, the loss allowance for ECL is remeasured at the date of de-recognition
to determine the net carrying amount of the asset at that date. The difference between this revised carrying amount and
the fair value of the new financial asset with the new terms will lead to a gain or loss on de-recognition. The new financial
asset will have a loss allowance measured based on 12-month ECL except in the rare occasions where the new loan is
considered to be originated as credit- impaired. This applies only in the case where the fair value of the new loan is
recognised at a significant discount to its revised par amount because there remains a high risk of default which has not
been reduced by the modification. The Bank monitors credit risk of modified financial assets by evaluating qualitative and
quantitative information, such as if the borrower is in past due status under the new terms.
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When the contractual terms of a financial asset are modified and the modification does not result in de-recognition, the
Bank determines if the financial asset’s credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition by comparing:

¢ The remaining lifetime PD estimated based on data at initial recognition and the original contractual terms; with
e The remaining PD at the reporting date based on the revised terms.

For financial assets modified as part of the Bank’s forbearance policy, where modification did not result in de-recognition,
the estimate of PD reflects the Bank’s ability to collect the modified cash flows taking into account the Group’s previous
experience of similar forbearance action, as well as various behavioural indicators, including the borrower’s payment
performance against the modified contractual terms. If the credit risk remains significantly higher than what was expected
atinitial recognition, the loss allowance will continue to be measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECL. The loss allowance
on forborne loans will generally only be measured based on 12-month ECL when there is evidence of the borrower’s
improved repayment behaviour following modification leading to a reversal of the previous significant increase in credit
risk.

Where a modification does not lead to de-recognition, the Bank calculates the modification gain/loss comparing the gross
carrying amount before and after the modification (excluding the ECL allowance). Then, the Bank measures ECL for the
modified asset, where the expected cash flows arising from the modified financial asset are included in calculating the
expected cash shortfalls from the original asset,

The Bank derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the asset’s cash flows expire, or when the
financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset are transferred to another entity. If the
Bank neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Bank recognises its retained interest in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may have
to pay. If the Bank retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Bank
continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

On de-recognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received and receivable and the cumulative gain/ loss that had been recognised in OCI and accumulated in
equity is recognised in the statement of profit or lass, with the exception of equity investment designated as measured at
FVTOCI, where the cumulative gain/ loss previously recognised in QCl is not subsequently reclassified to the statement of
profit or loss,

Write-off

Financial assets are written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovery, such as the customer not participating
in a payment plan with the Bank. The Bank classifies the funds or amounts due for write-off after exhausting all possible
payment methods. However, if the financing or receivable is written off, the Bank continues the enforcement activity to try
to recover the outstanding receivables, which are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss upon recovery.

Loss allowances for ECL presented in the consolidated statement of financial position as follows
Loss allowances for ECL are presented in the consolidated statement of financial position as follows:

For financial assets measured at amortised cost: as a deduction from the gross carrying amount of the assets;
For debt instruments measured at FVTOCI: no loss allowance is recognised in the consolidated statement of
financial position as the carrying amount is at fair value. However, the loss allowance is included as part of the
revaluation amount in the investment’s revaluation reserve;
Loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts: as a provision; and

¢ Where a financial instrumentincludes both a drawn and an undrawn component, and the Bank cannot identify the
ECL on the loan commitment component separately from those on the drawn component, the Bank presents a
combined loss allowance for both components. The combined amount is presented as a deduction from the gross
carrying amount of the drawn component. Any excess of the loss allowance over the grass amount of the drawn
component is presented as a provision.

e  Financial liabilities and equity
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Issued Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance
of the contractual arrangement.

A financial liability is a contractual obligation to deliver cash or another financial asset or to exchange financial assets or
financial liabilities with another entity under conditions that are potentially unfavourable to the Bank or a contract that will
or may be settled in the Bank’s own equity instruments and is a non-derivative contract for which the Bank is or may be
obliged to deliver a variable number of its own equity instruments, or a derivative contract over own equity that will or may
be settled other than by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash {or another financial asset) for a fixed number of the Bank’s
own equity instruments.

2.8 Loans and advances
The "loans and advances" included in the statement of financial position comprise the following:

e Loans and advances measured at amortised cost; initially measured at fair value plus incremental direct transaction
costs, and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method;

e Loans and advances, which are measured at FVTPL or designated as at FVTPL; are measured at fair value with changes
recognised immediately in profit or loss; and

¢ Lease payables.
Interest and commissions are suspended on non-performing credit facilities granted to clients in accordance with the
instructions of the Central Bank of Jordan.

e (Credit facilities and their suspended interest covered by provisions are transferred entirely off the consolidated
statement of financial position, in accordance with the decisions of the Board of Directors in this regard.

When the Group purchases a financial asset and concludes an agreement simultanecusly to resell the asset (or a
substantially similar asset) at a fixed price at a later date (repurchase or borrowing shares), the consideration paid is
calculated as a loan or advance, and the asset is not recognised in the Group’s financial statements.

Equity instruments
Share capital

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Bank are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Treasury shares

Repurchase of the Bank’s own equity instruments is recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain/ loss is recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the Bank’s own equity
instruments.

Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities are classified either as financial liabilities at fair value through the statement of profit or loss or other
financial liabilities.

Financial liabilities at fair value through the statement of profit or loss

Financial liabilities are classified at fair value through the statement of profit or loss when financial liabilities (1) are held for
trading or (2) are classified at fair value through the statement of profit or loss. A financial liability is classified as held for
trading if:

e It is incurred principally for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term;

e Upon initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that the Bank manages and has a
recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

e Itis a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging instrument.

s Afinancial liability other than a financial liability held for the purpose of trading or the potential consideration that
a buyer may pay as part of a business combination at fair value is determined through the statement of profit or
loss upon initial recognition if:

o This designation substantially eliminates or reduces the inconsistency of the measurement or recognition that may
otherwise arise;
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* The financial liability forms part of a group of financial assets or financial liabilities or both, which is managed and
its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with the Bank's documented risk management or
investment strategy, and information about the grouping is provided internally on that basis; or

* If the financial obligation forms part of a contract that contains one derivative or more. IFRS 9 allows a fully hybrid
contract (composite) to be determined at fair value through the statement of profit or loss.

Financial liabilities at fair value through the statement of profit or loss are stated at fair value. Any gains or Josses arising on
remeasurement are recognised in the statement of profit or loss to the extent that they are not part of a designated hedging
relationship. The net gain/ lass recognised in the statement of profit or loss includes any interest paid on the financiat
liabitities and is incorporated in the item "net profit or loss from other financial instruments” at fair value through the
statement of profit or loss.

However, in respect of non-derivative financial liabifities classified at fair value through the statement of profit or loss, the
amount of the change in the fair value of the financial liabilities that resulted from changes in the credit risk of those liabilities
is recognised in other comprehensive income, unless recognition of the effects of changes in the credit risk of liabilities in
other comprehensive income would create or increase accounting mismatch in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
The remaining amount of changes in the fair value of the liability is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss, and changes in the fair value attributable to the credit risk of financial liabilities recognised in other comprehensive
income are not reclassified subsequently to the statement of profit or Joss. Instead, it is transferred to retained earnings
upon de-recognition of the financial liability.

With regard to liabilities for issued loans and financial guarantee contracts classified as fair value through the statement of
profit or loss, all gains and losses are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

When determining whether recognition of changes in the credit risk of liabilities in other comprehensive income will create
or increase the accounting mismatch in the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the Bank assesses whether it expects
to offset the effects of changes in the credit risk of the liabilities in the consolidated statement of profit or loss with a change
in the fair value of another financial instrument that has been measured at fair value through the consolidated statement
of profit or loss.

Other financial liabilities

The effective interest method is a method for calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability and allocating interest
expenses over the relevant period. An effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
payments during the expected life of the financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying
amount at initial recognition to obtain details on the effective interest rate.

Other financial liabilities, including deposits and loans, are initially measured at fair value, net of transaction costs. Other
financial liabilities are then measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

De-recognition of financial liabilities

The Bank derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Bank’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or they
expire. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and
payahle is recognised in consolidated statement of profit or loss.

The exchange between the Bank and its existing lender of debt instruments with substantially different terms is accounted
for as an extinguishment of the original financial liability and the recognition of a new financial liability. Likely, the Bank
treats the significant modification of the outstanding obligation conditions or part thereof as extinguishment of the original
financial liabilities and the recognition of new liabilities. The terms are assumed to be substantially different if the discounted
present value of the cash flows under the new terms, including any fees paid net of any fees received and discounted using
the original effective interest rate, is at least 10% different from the discounted present value of the remaining cash flows
of the original financial liability.
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Derivative financial instruments

The Bank enters into a variety of derivative financial instruments, some of which are held for trading while others are
maintained to manage exposure to interest rate risk, credit risk, and foreign exchange rate risk. Financial derivatives include
foreign currency forward contracts, interest rate swaps, interest rate swaps across currencies and credit default swaps.

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract is entered into and are
subsequently re-measured at their fair value at the date of each statement of financial position. The resulting profits/ losses
are recognised in the statement of profit or loss immediately unless the derivative is identified and are effective as a hedging
instrument, in which case the timing of recognition in the statement of profit or loss depends an the nature of the hedge
relationship. The Bank identifies certain derivatives as either fair value hedges for recognised assets and liabilities, or for the
company’s obligations {fair value hedges), potential forecasting hedges, foreign currency risk hedges for fixed obligations
{cash flow hedges) or net investments in foreign operations {net investment hedges).

Derivatives with positive fair value are recognised as a financial asset, while derivatives with negative fair value are
recognised as financial liabilities. Derivatives are presented as non-current assets or non-current liabilities if the residual
maturity of the instrument is more than {12) months and is not expected to be realised or settled within {12) months. Other
derivatives are presented as current assets or current liabilities.

Embedded derivatives

Derivatives embedded in financial liabilities or other non-financial asset host contracts are treated as separate derivatives
when their risks and characteristics are not closely related to those of the host contracts and the host contracts are not
measured at fair value through the statement of profit or loss,

An embedded derivative is presented as a non-current asset or a non-current liability if the remaining maturity of the hybrid
instrurment to which the embedded derivative relates is more than 12 months and is not expected to be realised or settled
within 12 months. Other embedded derivatives are presented as current assets or current liabilities.

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the holder for
a loss incurred because a specified debtor fails to make payments when due in accordance with the terms of a debt
instrument.

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Bank’s entity are initially measured at their fair value, and if they are not
determined at fair value through the statement of profit or loss that does not result from the transfer of a financial asset,
they are subsequently measured:

¢ The amount of the loss allowance determined in accordance with IFRS {9); and

¢ The amount initially recognised, less, where appropriate, the amount of accumulated profit or loss recognised in
accordance with the Bank's revenue collection policies, whichever is greater.

Financial guarantee contracts that are not designated at fair value through the statement of profit or loss are presented as
provisions in the consolidated statement of financial position and remeasurement is presented in other income.

The Bank did not specify any financial guarantee contracts at fair value through the statement of profit or loss.
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Commitments to provide a loan at an interest rate lower than the market price.

Commitments to provide a loan at an interest rate lower than the market price are measured initially at their fair value, and
if they are not determined at fair value through the consclidated statement of profit or loss, they are subsequently
measured:

¢ The amount of the loss allowance determined in accordance with IFRS (3); and
e The amount initially recognised, less, where appropriate, the amount of accumulated profit or loss recognised in
accordance with the Bank's revenue collection policies, whichever is greater.

Commitments to provide a loan at an interest rate lower than the market price, which are not designated at fair value
through the consolidated statement of profit or loss are presented as provisions in the consolidated statement of financial
position, and remeasurement is presented in other income.

The bank did not designate any commitments to provide a loan at an interest rate lower than the market price, which are
designated at fair value through the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Financial derivatives
Financial derivatives for trading

The fair value of derivatives of financial instruments held for trading purposes (such as foreign exchange forward contracts,
future interest contracts, swaps contracts, foreign exchange rate options rights) is recognised in the consolidated statement
of financial position and the fair value is determined according to the prevailing market rates, In the event that market rates
are not available, the valuation method is mentioned. The amount of changes in the fair value is recorded in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

Hedge accounting

The Bank identifies certain derivatives as hedging instruments with respect to foreign currency risk and interest rate risk in
fair value hedges, cash flow hedges or net investment hedges in foreign operations, as appropriate. Foreign exchange risk
hedges on the Bank’s commitments are also accounted for as cash flow hedges. The Bank does not apply fair value hedge
accounting to hedges of interest rate risk portfolio. In addition, the Bank does not use the hedge accounting rules as per IAS
(39), i.e. the Bank applies the hedge accounting rules as per IFRS {3).

e At the beginning of the hedge relationship, the Bank documents the relationship between the hedging instrument and
the hedged item, as well as the risk management objectives and strategy for undertaking various hedging transactions.
Furthermore, at the commencement of the hedging and on a continuous basis, the Bank documents whether the
hedging instrument is effective in offsetting changes in the fair value or cash flows of the hedged item that can be
attributed to the hedged risk, and for which all hedging relationships meet the following hedging effectiveness
requirements: There is an economic relationship between the hedged item and the hedging instrument;

e The effect of credit risk does not dominate the value changes that result from this economic relationship; and
The hedge ratio for the hedge relationship is the same as that results from the amount of the hedged item to which the
Bank actually hedges and the amount of the hedging instrument that the Bank actually uses to hedge that amount of
the hedged item.

The Bank rebalances the hedging relationship in order to comply with the requirements of the hedging rate when necessary.
In such cases, the suspension may apply to only part of the hedging relationship. For example, the hedging ratio may be
adjusted in such a way that part of the hedged item is not part of the hedging relationship, and therefore the hedge
accounting is suspended only for the size of the hedging item that is no longer part of the hedging relationship. The Bank
rebalances the hedging relationship in order to comply with the requirements of the hedging rate when necessary. In such
cases, the suspension may apply to only part of the hedge relationship. For example, the hedging ratio may be adjusted in
such a way that part of the hedged item is not part of the hedging relationship, and therefore the hedging accounting is
suspended only for the size of the hedging item that is no longer part of the hedging relationship.

If the hedging relationship ceases to meet the hedging effectiveness requirements related to the hedging ratio but the risk

management objective of this hedging relationship remains the same, the Group adjusts the hedging ratio for the hedging
relationship {such as the hedging rebalance) so that the qualification criteria are combined again.
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In some hedging relationships, the Bank only determines the true value of the options. In this case, a change in the fair value
of the component of the time value of the option in the other comprehensive income is deferred, over the hedging period,
to the extent that it relates to the hedged item and is reclassified from equity to the statement of profit or loss when the
hedged item does not lead to recognition of non-financial items. The Bank's risk management policy does not include
hedging items that lead to recognition of non-financial items, because the Bank's risks relate to financial items only.

The hedged items determined by the Bank are hedging items related to the time period, which means that the original time
value of the option related to the hedged item of equity is amortised to the statement of profit or Joss on a rational basis
{for example, according to the straight-line method) over the period of hedging relationship.

In some hedging relationships, the Bank does not determine the forward component of a forward contract or the difference
on a currency basis for the hedging instrument across the currencies. In this case, a similar treatment applies to the time
value of the options. It is optional to treat the forward component of the forward contract and the difference on a currency
basis, and the option is applied on a hedging basis separately, other than treating the time value of options that are
mandatory. With regard to hedging refationships and forward derivatives or foreign currencies such as interest rate swaps
across currencies, when the forward component ar the difference on the currency basis is excluded from classification, the
Bank generally recognises the excluded item in other comprehensive income.

Details of the fair values of the derivative instruments used for hedging purposes and movements in the hedging reserve
are determined in equity.

Fair value hedges

The change in the fair value of the qualified hedging instrument is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
except when the hedging instrument hedges the equity instrument designated at fair value through other comprehensive
income, in which case it is recognised in other comprehensive income. The Bank has not specified fair value hedging
relationships when the hedging instrument hedges the equity instrument designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income.

The carrying amount of the hedged item that was not measured at fair value is adjusted for the change in the fair value,
which can be attributed to the hedged risk and a corresponding recognition in the statement of profit or loss. For debt
instruments that are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income, the carrying amount is not adjusted as
it is at fair value, but the profit or loss portion of the fair value on the hedged item associated with the risk hedged is included
in the statement of profit or loss instead of the other comprehensive income. When the hedged item has a fair value equity
instrument determined through other comprehensive income, the hedging gains/ losses remain in the other comprehensive
income to match the hedging instrument.

The Bank does not suspend hedging accounting except when the hedging relationship (or part of it) ceases to meet the
qualifying criteria (after rebalancing, if any). This includes cases where the hedging instrument expires, is sold, terminated,
or exercised, and exclusion is stated for the future effect. Amortisation is accounted for the fair value adjustment to the
book value of the hedged items for which the effective interest method is used (i.e. tools we have measured at amortised
cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income) that results from the hedged risk in the statement of profit or
loss as of a date not later than the date of suspension of hedge accounting.

Cash flow hedges

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives and other qualified hedging instruments that are determined
and qualify as cash flow hedges in the hedging reserve for cash flow is recognised, as a separate component, in other
comprehensive income. This is limited to the cumulative change in the fair value of the hedged item from the start of the
hedge less any amounts recycled to the statement of profit or loss.

Amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income and the accumulation of shareholders' equity in the
statement of profit or loss in the periods in which the hedging item affects profit or loss are reclassified in the same line of
the hedged recognised item. If the Bank no longer expects the transaction to occur, then this amount is immediately
reclassified to the statement of profit or loss.
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The Bank does not suspend hedging accounting except when the hedging relationship {or part of it) ceases to meet the
qualifying criteria {after rebalancing, if any). This includes cases where the hedging instrument expires, is sold, terminated,
or exercised, or when the occurrence of a specific hedging transaction is not considered to be highly probable. Suspension
is calculated with a future effect. Any gains/ losses recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
at that time remain in equity and recognised when the expected transaction is finally recorded in profit or loss. When the
occurrence of a forecast transaction becomes unpredictable, the accumulated profits/ losses in shareholders' equity is
reclassified and recognised directly in the statement of profit or loss.

Hedges of net investments in foreign operations

Hedges of net investments in foreign operations are accounted for similarly to cash flow hedges. Any gains/ losses on the
hedging instrument relating to the effective portion of the hedge are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in the reserve of foreign exchange.

The profits and losses resulting from the hedging instrument related to the effective portion of the hedging accumulated in
the foreign currency translation reserve are reclassified into profits or losses in the same way as the foreign exchange
differences of the foreign operation as described above.

Offsetting

Financial assets and liabilities are offset, and net amounts are reported in the consolidated statement of financial position,
only when legally enforceable rights are established and when such amounts are settled on a net basis, and when assets
and liahilities are settled simultaneously.

2-9 Accounts managed for the interest of clients

Accounts managed by the Bank on behalf of clients are not considered as assets of the Bank. Fees and commissions for
managing these accounts are shown in the statement of profit or loss. A provision is made against the decrease in the value
of the capital-guaranteed portfolios, which are managed for the interest of clients.

2.10 Fair value

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Bank takes into account, when pricing
the asset or liability, if market participants would take those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability
at the measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/ or disclosure purposes in these financial statements is
determined on such a basis, except for measurements that have some similarities to fair value but are not fair value such as
value as used in IAS {36). In addition, for the purposes of preparing financial reports, fair value measurements are
categorised to level (1), (2) or {3) based on the clarity of the inputs in relation to the fair value measurements and the
importance of the inputs in relation to the full fair value measurements, and they are defined as follows:

- lLevel 1inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can
access at the measurement date;

- level 2 inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly or indirectly; and

- Level 3 inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data.

2.11 Assets seized by the Bank against debts

Assets seized by the Bank are recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position within the "other assets" item
at the lower of the value seized by the Bank and the fair value, whichever is lesser and are revaluated at the consolidated
financial statements date at fair value separately. Any impairment is recorded as a loss in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and any appreciation in value is not recognised as income. Subsequent increase is included in the consolidated
statement of profit or toss to the extent that impairment value does not exceed the previously recorded value.
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As of the beginning of 2015, a gradual provision was made for real estate acquired for more than 4 years against debts
according to the Circular of the Central Bank of Jordan No. 4076/1/15 dated 27 March 2014 and No. 2510/1/10 dated 14
February 2017. Noting that the Centrat Bank of Jordan issued Circular No. 13967/1/10 dated 25 October 2018, in which the
Circular No. 16607/1/10 dated 17 December 2017 was approved for extension. The Central Bank of Jardan also confirmed
postponing the calculation of the provision until the end of the year 2019. According to the Central Bank’s Circular No.
16239/1/10 dated 21 November 2019, deduction of the required provisions against real estate acquired is made at the rate
of (5%) of the total book values of these properties (regardless of the period of violation} as of the year 2021, so that the
required percentage of (50%) of these properties are reached by the end of the year 2029.

212 Property and equipment
Property and equipment are stated at cost, less the accumulated depreciation and any impairment. Property and equipment

(excluding lands} are depreciated when they are ready for use through straight-line method over their expected useful lives
using the following annual percentages:

%
Buildings 3
Equipment, devices and furniture 9-15
Transport 15
Computers 20
Building Improvements 20

The value of an item of property and equipment is written down to its recoverable amount if its net carrying amount is
greater than its recoverable amount. Impairment is recognised in the consolidated statement of income.

The useful lives of property and equipment are reviewed at the end of each year, and if the expectations of the usefut lives
differ from the estimates made previously, then the change in the estimate for subsequent years is recognised as a change
in the estimates.

The property and equipment are derecognised at the disposal or when there are no expected future benefits from their use
or disposal.

2.13 Intangible assets

Intangible assets that are acquired through the merger are stated at fair value at the date of acquisition. The intangible
assets that are obtained by a method other than the merger are stated at cost.

Intangible assets are classified on the basis of their estimated lifetime for a definite or indefinite period. Intangible assets
that have a definite lifetime are amortised during this lifetime and are recognised in the consolidated statement of income.
For intangible assets that have an indefinite lifetime, their impairment is reviewed at the date of the consolidated financia!
statements and any impairment is recognised in the consolidated statement of income.

Intangible assets resulting from the Bank's business are not capitalised and are recognised in the consolidated statement of
income in the same period.

Any indications of impairment in the value of intangible assets statements the consclidated financial statements date are
reviewed. Furthermore, the estimated useful life of those assets are reviewed, and any adjustment is made in the
subsequent periods.

Computer systems and software are amortised over their estimated useful lives using the straight-line method, at a rate of
20-33% annually.
2.14 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash and cash balances that mature within three months. They include cash and
balances with banks and financial institutions, less depasits with banks and banking institutions that mature within three
months, as well as restricted balances.
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2.15 Net non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets are classified as held for sale if the recovery of restricted amounts will be mainly made through a sale
rather than through continuing operations. The asset should be ready for sale in its current condition, and the sale order
should be highly probable. In addition, the management should have a commitment to the sale plan, so that the sale is
eligible to be recognised as a completed sale within one year from the date of this classification.

When the Bank is committed to a sale plan that includes the loss of control aver a subsidiary, it must classify all its assets
and liabilities as held for sale, when all the conditions referred to above are met.

Non-current assets classified as held for sale are measured at book value or fair value less costs to sell, whichever is lower.
The results of that company's business are also shown in a separate line in the consolidated statement of income as net
profit from discontinued operations.

2.16 Pledged financial assets

These are the financial assets pledged in favour of other parties, with the other party having the right to dispose of it (by
selling or re-pledging). These assets continue to be evaluated according to the accounting policies used to evaluate each
asset according to its original classification.

217 Foreign currencies

Exchange differences are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss in the period in which they arise, except
for:

Foreign currency exchange differences on transactions made in order to hedge foreign currency risk.

Foreign currency exchange differences on monetary items required to/ from a foreign operation that are not planned or
unlikely to be settted in the near future {and therefore these differences are part of the net investment in the foreign
operation), which is recognised initially in the calculation of other consolidated comprehensive income, and are reclassified
from equity to the statement of profit or loss upon sale or partial disposal of net investment.

For the purpose of the presentation of the consolidated financial statements, assets and liabilities of foreign operations of
the Bank are transferred according to the exchange rates prevailing at the date of the statement of financial position.
Revenue is also transferred according to the average exchange rates for the period, unless exchange rates change
significantly during that period, in which case exchange rates are used on the date of transactions. Emerging differences, if
any, are recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income and grouped into a separate component of
equity.

2.18 Provision for employees’ end of service indemnity

A provision is made to meet the statutory and contractual obligations of employees for the end of service or for the
accumulated service period of employees at the date of the consolidated statement of financial pasition in accordance with
the internal regulations of the Bank.

Annual compensations paid to employees who leave the service are paid from the provision, A provision for the Bank's
obligations for employees' end of service is stated in the consclidated statement of income or comprehensive income in
accordance with the provisions of 1AS 19 relating to employees’ benefits.

2-19 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Bank has obligations at the date of the consolidated statement of financial position
arising from past events and obligations can be paid and measured reliably.
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2.20 Income tax
Tax expenses represent amounts of tax payable and deferred tax.

Payable tax expenses are calculated based on taxable profits. Taxable profits are different from profits disclosed in the
consolidated financial statements, as disclosed profits include revenue that is not subject to tax, expenses that are not
recognizable in the financial year but in subsequent years or accumulated losses that are accepted in terms of tax, or items
that are not taxable or recognisable for tax purposes.

Taxes are calculated as per the tax rates established by the laws, regulations and instructions applicable in the countries
where the Bank operates.

Deferred tax is the tax expected to be paid or recovered as a result of temporary timing differences between the value of
assets or liabilities in the consolidated financial statements and the value based on which taxable profit is calculated.
Deferred tax is calculated using the liability method in the consolidated statement of financial position, and deferred tax is
accounted for in accordance with tax rates expected to be applied to settle the tax liability or realise deferred tax assets.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are reviewed at the date of the consolidated financial statements and written down when
it is not probable to utilise tax assets partially or fully.

2.21 Net interest income

Interest income and expense for all financial instruments with the exception of those classified as held for trading or
measured or those determined at fair value through the consolidated statement of profit or loss in "net interest income" as
“interest income” and "interest expenses” are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss using the effective
interest method. Interest on financial instruments measured at fair value through the consolidated statement of profit or
loss also included in the fair value movement during the period.

The effective interest rate {EIR) is the rate that discounts estimated future cash flows of the financial instrument through
the expected life of the financial instrument or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount of the
financial asset or financial liability. The future cash flows are estimated taking into account all the contractual terms of the
instrument.

The interest income/ interest expense is calculated by applying the EIR to the gross carrying amount of nen-credit impaired
financial assets (i.e. at the amortised cost of the financial asset before adjusting for any expected credit foss allowance), or
to the amortised cost of financial liabilities. For credit-impaired financial assets the interest income is calculated by applying
the EIR to the amortised cost of the credit-impaired financial assets (i.e. the gross carrying amount less the allowance for
expected credit losses). For financial assets originated or purchased and are credit-impaired, the EIR reflects the ECL in
determining the future cash flows expected to be received from the financial asset.

Interest income and expense in the Bank's consclidated statement of profit or loss also includes the effective portion of fair
value changes for derivatives that are designated as hedging instruments in the cash flow hedges of interest rate risk. As for
the fair value hedges of interest rate risk on interest expense and income, the effective portion of fair value changes for
specific derivatives are also included, and fair value changes to the specific risks of the hedged item are also included in
interest income and expense. Interest expenses also include the value of the interest against the lease obligations.

2.22 Net commission income

Commissions’ net income and expense include fees other than those that are an integral part of EIR. The commissions
included in this part of the Bank's consolidated statement of profit or loss also include commissions charged for the loan
service, non-use commissions related to loan obligations when this is unlikely to result in a specific arrangement for lending
and commissions of co-financing loans.

Commission’s expenses with regard to services are accounted for upon receipt of services.
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2.23 Net trading income

Net trading income includes all profit or loss from changes in the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities held for
trading. The Bank elected to present the movement of the full fair value of trading assets and liabilities within the trading
income, including any relevant revenues, expenses and share dividends.

2.24 Net income of other financial instruments at fair value through the statement of profit or loss

Net income from financial instruments at fair value through the statement of profit or loss includes all gains and losses
resulting from changes in the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through the statement of profit
or loss, except for the assets held for trading. The Bank has elected to present the movement at the full fair value of the
assets and liabilities at fair value through the statement of profit or loss in this line, including interest income, expenses and
related stock dividends.

The movement in the fair value of derivatives held for economic hedging is presented where hedge accounting is nat applied
in "net income from other financial instruments at fair value through the statement of profit or loss". However, with respect
to the designated and effective fair value hedge relationship, the gains and losses on the hedging instrument are presented
on the same line item in the statement of profit or loss as a hedged item. With respect to certain and effective cash flows
and hedge accounting relationships for net investment, the hedging instrument gains and losses, including any hedging
ineffectiveness included in the statement of profit or loss, are included in the same item as a hedged item that affects the
statement of profit or loss.

2.25 Dividends income

Dividends income is recognised when the right to receive payment is established, being the date preceding the dividends of
listed shares, and usually the date on which the shareholders agree to dividends of unlisted shares.

Dividends distribution in the consolidated statement of profit or loss on the classification and measurement of the shares,
i.e.:

»  With regard to equity instruments held for trading, dividend income is included in the statement of profit or loss under
the item of profit (loss) of financial assets at fair value through the statement of profit or loss;

® In the case of equity instruments classified as fair value through other comprehensive income, dividends are included
in the statement of profit or loss as dividend from financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income;
and

e  For equity instruments not designated at FYTOCI and not held for trading, dividend income is included as net income
from financial instruments at fair value through the statement of profit or loss.

2.26 Impairment of non-financial assets

- The carrying value of the Group's non-financial assets is reviewed at the end of each fiscal year except for the
deferred tax assets, to determine whether there is an indication of impairment. In the event of an indication of
impairment, the amount recoverable from these assets will be estimated.

- If the carrying amount of the assets exceeds the recoverable amount from those assets, the impairment loss is
recorded in those assets.

- The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value -less costs to sale - and the value in use.

- Allimpairment losses are taken to the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

- The impairment loss for goodwill is not reversed. For other assets, the impairment loss is reversed only if the
carrying amount of the asset does not exceed the carrying amount that was determined after deduction of
depreciation or amortisation if the impairment loss is not recognised.
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2.27 Foreign currencies

Exchange differences are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss in the period in which they arise, except
for:

e Foreign currency exchange differences on transactions made in order to hedge foreign currency risk.

s Foreign currency exchange differences on monetary items required to/ from a foreign operation that are not planned
or unlikely to be settled in the near future {and therefore these differences are part of the net investment in the
foreign operation), which is recognised initially in the calculation of other consolidated comprehensive income, and
are reclassified from equity to the statement of profit or loss upon sale or partial disposal of net investment.

For the purpose of the presentation of the consolidated financial statements, assets and liabilities of foreign operations of
the Bank are transferred according to the exchange rates prevailing at the date of the statement of financial position.
Revenue is also transferred according to the average exchange rates for the period, unless exchange rates change
significantly during that period, in which case exchange rates are used on the date of transactions, Emerging differences, if
any, are recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income and grouped into a separate companent of
equity.

When excluding foreign operations (i.e. eliminating the Bank’s entire share in foreign operations, or that resulting from the
loss of control of a subsidiary within foreign operations or partial disposal of its share in a joint arrangement or an associate
of a foreign nature in which the held share becomes a financial asset), all foreign currency exchange differences accumulated
in the separate item that represent the equity of that operation attributable to the owners of the bank, are reclassified to
the consolidated statement of profit or loss,

In addition, with regard to partial disposal of a subsidiary that includes foreign operations and does not result in the Bank
losing control of the subsidiary, its share of the accumulated exchange differences is reversed to net comprehensive income
at a rate that is excluded and is not recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. As for all other partial
liguidations (such as partial liquidation of associates or joint ventures that do not result in the Bank losing significant
influence or joint control), the share of accumulated exchange differences is reclassified to the consolidated statement of
profit or loss.

2.28 Leases
The Bank has implemented IFRS {16) “Leases” that have replaced existing guidance on lease contracts, including 1AS {17)
“Leases” and IFRIC (4) “Determining whether an arrangement contains a lease”, SIC (15) “Operating lease -incentives” and

SIC {27) “Evaluating the substance of transactions involving the legal form of a lease”.

The Bank as a lessee

On the date of signing the contract, or on the date of the revaluation of the contract that contains the lease elements, the
Bank distributes the entire contract value to the contract components in a proportional manner consistent with the value,
It is to be noted that the Bank has decided for leases that include Jand and building to treat the components of the contract
as one item.

Short-term leases and leases for low-value assets:
The Bank chose not to recognise the right of use assets and lease obligations for short-term leases for items with a 12-month

lease term or less and the low-value leases. The Bank recognises the lease payments associated with these contracts as
operating expenses on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
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The Bank as a lessor

- When the Bank is lessor, at the start of the lease, it determines whether each lease is a finance lease or an operating
lease.

- To classify each lease, the Bank performs a comprehensive evaluation to demonstrate whether the lease largely
transfers all risks and benefits associated with ownership of this asset. If this is the case, the lease is a finance lease; if
not, it is an operating lease. As part of this assessment, the Bank takes into account certain indicators such as whether
the lease is the greater part of the economic life of the asset.

The Bank applies the requirements of de-recognition and impairment in iIFRS 9 for net investment in the lease. The Bank
performs a periodic review of the expected non-guaranteed residual value that was used to calculate the total investment
amount in the lease.

2.29 Earnings per share

Basic and diluted earnings per share are calculated for ordinary shares. Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or loss
attributable to the company’s shareholders by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the
year. Diluted EPS is calculated by adjusting the profit or loss for the year, which is attributable to the company’s shareholders
and the weighted average of ordinary shares, so that it shows the effect on the share’s profit on all the ordinary shares
traded during the year and its return is likely to decrease.

3} Use of estimates

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements and the application of accounting policies require the Bank's
management to make estimates and judgements that affect the amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of
contingent liabilities. These estimates and judgments affect the revenues, expenses, provisions and reserve of valuation of
financial assets at fair value. In particular, it requires the Bank's management to issue critical judgements to estimate the
amounts of future cash flows and their timing. The mentioned estimates are necessarily based on multiple assumptions and
factors involving varying degrees of judgment and uncertainty and that actual results may differ from the estimates as a
result of changes resulting from the conditions and circumstances of those estimates in the future. Judgements, estimates
and assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. The impact of change in estimates is recognised in the reporting period
in which this change occurs if the revision affects only that period and the effect of the change in estimates is recognised in
the reporting period in which this change occurs and in future reporting periads if the revision affects bath current and
future periods.

The Bank’s management believes that the estimates included in the consolidated financial statements are reasonable and
are detailed as follows:

- Impairment of seized assets

Impairment of seized assets is recognised based on most recent property valuation approved by accredited valuatars for
the purposes of calculating the impairment. The impairment provisions for seized assets is reviewed periodically.

- Expected credit loss provisions

The Bank's management is required to use significant judgments and estimates to estimate future cash flows amounts and
timings and estimate the risks of a significant increase in credit risk for financial assets after initial recognition and future
measurement information for expected credit losses. The most significant policies and estimates used by the Bank’s
management are detailed in Note {3}.
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- Leases

Determination of lease term: In determining the lease term, the management considers all facts and circumstances that
create an economic incentive to exercise an extension option, or not exercise a termination option. The extension options
(or periods after the termination options) are included only in the term of the lease if the lease is reasonably certain to be
extended {or not terminated). The evaluation is reviewed in the event of a significant event or significant change in the
circumstances that affect this evaluation and that are under the control of the lessee. Extension and termination of leases
options: these are included in a number of leases. These conditions are used to increase operational flexibility in terms of
contract management. Maost of the extension and termination options held are renewable by both the Bank and the lessor.

Discounting of lease payments: Lease payments are discounted using the bank's incremental borrowing rate ("IBR").
Management applied judgements and estimates to determine the incremental borrowing rate at the start of the lease.

- Useful lives of tangible assets and intangible assets

Management reassessed the useful lives of tangible assets and intangible assets periodically for the purpose of calculating
annual depreciation and amortisation based on the overall condition of those assets and estimates of expected useful lives
in the future useful lives. Impairment loss is taken to the consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year.

- Assets and liabilities that are stated at cost

Management reviews, on a regular basis, the assets and liabilities that are stated at cost to estimate impairments, if any.
Impairment losses are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year.

- Income tax

The financial year is charged with its own income tax expense in accordance with the laws and regulations, and accounting
standards. Deferred tax assets and liabilities and required tax provision are accounted for.

C Provision for legal cases

A provision is made for any potential Jegal obligations based on the legal study prepared by the Bank’s legal advisor that
identifies the potential risks that may occur in the future. Such study is reviewed periodically.

{4} Cash and balances with Central Banks
2021 2020
1D 1D

Cash an hand 61,795,532 64,496,865
Balances with central banks:

Current and demand accounts 11,615,697 23,219,692
Term, notice deposits and certificate of deposits 173,036,213 202,208,130
Restricted cash reserve 70,757,703 71,944,918
Gross balances with central banks 255,409,613 297,372,740
Less: Expected credit loss provision for balances with central banks - -
Net balances with central banks 255,409,613 267,372,740
Total 317,205,145 361,869,605

- Excluding restricted cash reserve, there are no restricted balances as at 31 December 2021 and 2020.
- There are no balances that matures in a period of more than 3 months as at 31 December 2021 and 2020.

- Expected credit losses are not calculated on balances with central banks according to the instructions of the Central Bank
of Jordan relating to the application of the IFRS (9).
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The following is the distribution of total balances with central banks according to the Bank's internal classification categories
as at 31 December 2021 and 2020:

Credit rating categories based

on the Bank's internal Stage 1 Stage 2
regulations Individuals Individuals Stage 3 Total

D D D D
31 December 2021
From (1) to (5) - - - -
From (6) to (7) - - -
From (8) to (10) 2,493,743 - - 2,493,743
Unrated 252,915,870 - - 252,915,870
Total 255,409,613 - - 255,409,613
31 December 2020
From (1) to {5) - - -
From (6] to {7) - - -
From (8) to {10} 1,881,749 = - 1,881,749
Unrated 295,490,991 - 295,490,991
Total 297,372,740 - - 297,372,740

The following is the movement on balances with central banks during the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020:

Stage 1 Stage 2
Description Individuals Individuals Stage 3 Total
D D D D
31 December 2021
Balance at the beginning of the year 297,372,740 . 297,372,740
New balances during the year 611,994 - 611,594
Balances paid during the year (42,575,121) - - (42,575,121}
Transferred to Stage 1 - - - -
Transferred to stage 2 - - - -
Transferred to stage 3 - - - -
Changes resulting from adjustments - - .
Write offs - - - -
Balance at the end of the year 255,409,613 - - 255,409,613
Stage 1 Stage 2
Description Individuals Individuals Stage 3 Total
D D b D
31 December 2020

Balance at the beginning of the year
New balances during the year
Balances paid during the year
Transferred to Stage 1

Transferred to stage 2

Transferred to stage 3

Changes resulting from adjustments
Write offs

Balance at the end of the year

351,555,800
24,316,940
(78,500,000}

351,555,800
24,316,540
{78,500,000)

297,372,740

297,372,740
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The following is the movement on balances with central banks during the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020:

Description

31 December 2021

Balance at the beginning of the year
Expected credit losses on new
balances during the year

Recovered from expected credit
losses on balances paid during the
year

Transferred to stage 1

Transferred to stage 2

Transferred to stage 3

Changes resulting from adjustments
Write offs

Balance at the end of the year

Description

31 December 2020

Balance at the beginning of the year
Expected credit losses on new
balances during the year

Recovered from expected credit
losses on balances paid during the
year

Transferred to stage 1

Transferred to stage 2

Transferred to stage 3

Changes resulting from adjustments
Write offs

Balance at the end of the year

Stage 1 Stage 2
Individuals Individuals Stage 3 Total 2020
D 10 10 D D
Stage 1 Stage 2
Individuals individuals Stage 3 Total 2020
D 10 D D o
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JORDAN KUWAIT BANK

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2021

he following is the distribution of deposits at banks and financial institutions according to the Bank's internal classification
categories as at 31 December 2021 and 2020:

Credit rating categories based on
the Bank's internal regulations

31 December 2021
From (1) to {5)
From (6) to (7)
From (8) to (10}
Unrated

Total

31 December 2020
From {1) to {5)
Fraom {6) to (7}
From {8) to (10)
Unrated

Total

Stage 1 Stage 2
Individuals Individuals Stage 3 Total
D D D iD
134,803,905 - - 134,803,905
108,333 - - 108,333
62,402 - 6,116,399 6,178,801
7,163,815 - - 7,163,815
142,138,455 - 6,116,399 148,254,854
131,728,110 - 131,728,110
114,717 - - 114,717
92,952 - 6,049,581 6,142,533
4,822,739 - - 4,822,739
136,758,518 - 6,049,581 142,808,099

The following is the movement on deposits at banks and financial institutions during the year ended 31 December 2021 and

2020:

31 December 2021

Balance at the beginning of the
year

New balances during the year
Paid during the year
Transferred to stage 1
Transferred to stage 2
Transferred to stage 3
Changes resulting from
adjustments

Write offs

Balance at the end of the year

31 December 2020

Balance at the beginning of the
year

New balances during the year
Paid during the year
Transferred to stage 1
Transferred to stage 2
Transferred to stage 3
Changes resulting from
adjustments

Write offs

Balance at the end of the year

Stage 1 Stage 2
Individuals Individuals Stage 3 Total
D D D D
136,758,517 - 6,049,582 142,808,099
12,246,264 S 139,787 12,386,051
{6,866,326) - (72,970) (6,939,296)
142,138,455 - 6,116,399 148,254,854
Stage 1 Stage 2
Individuals Individuals Stage 3 Total
b D JD D
130,187,939 3,899,500 134,087,439
42,896,277 - 3,341,966 46,238,243
{36,325,698) - {1,191,885) (37,517,583)
- (3,899,500} 3,899,500
136,758,518 - 6,049,581 142,808,099
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The following is the disclosure of the provision for expected credit losses on deposits with banks and banking institutions
during the year ended 31 December 2021 and 2020:

Stage 1 Stage 2
Description Individuals Individuals Stage 3 Total

D D D D

31 December 2021
Balance at the beginning of the
year } ) 5,968,773 5,968,773

New balances during the year ) i 19,402 19,402

Balances paid during the year ) i (72,969) (72,969)
Transferred to stage 1 - S - i
Transferred to stage 2 - S .

Transferred to stage 3 - - %

Changes resulting from

adjustments

Write offs - S - )
Balance at the end of the year - - 5,915,206 5,915,206

Stage 1 Stage 2
Description Individuals Individuals Stage 3 Total
D D D D

31 December 2020
Balance at the beginning of the
year 646 1,114 - 1,716

New balances during the year 5,967,659 5,967,659

Balances paid during the year (646) - - (646)
Transferred to stage 1 . S
Transferred to stage 2 . - -
Transferred to stage 3 - (1,114) 1,114 -
Changes resulting from

adjustments

Write offs = - - -
Balance at the end of the year - - 5,968,773 5,968,773

{6} A loan with a repurchase option at fair value through the statement of income

On June 4 2020, the Bank signed a share repurchase agreement, in which 10 million shares were purchased from a customer
who owns the majority share of a public shareholding company registered in Jordan at a price of JD 1 per share, for a total
amount of JD 10 million.

The repurchase agreement states that the seller has the right/option to repurchase those shares at the initial transaction
price of 1 JD within a period of two years from the date of signing the agreement.

The above transaction did not meet the derecognition criteria from the seller perspective, as the agreement includes a
repurchase option with a share price, as a result the Bank accounted for the transaction as a loan at fair value through profit
and loss.

The fair value of the collateral represented by shares of a public shareholding company limited was 14,000,000 JD as at 31
December 2021 compared to an amount of JD 10,700,000 as at 31 December 2020.
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7 Direct credit facilities, net

31 December 2021 31 December 2020

D 1D
Individuals (Retail):
Overdrafts 72,441 82,850
Loans and bills* 252,062,593 192,437,760
Credit cards 11,072,361 9,767,487
Real estate mortgage 255,897,699 221,155,759
Corporates:
Large
Overdrafts 130,074,162 129,600,722
Loans and bills* 872,362,056 858,280,109
SMEs
Overdrafts 14,099,500 17,317,291
Loans and bills* 129,482,604 115,119,148
Government and public sector 177,939,198 112,438,870
Total 1,843,062,614 1,696,199,997
Expected credit loss provisions 126,245,225 115,101,771
Interest in suspense 29,530,577 24,585,392
Net direct credit facilities 1,687,286,812 1,556,512,833

*Net after deducting interest and commissions received in advance amounting to JD 84,885 as 31 December 2021 compared
to JD 78,089 as at 31 December 2020.

- Credit facilities within the third stage amounted to JD 147,323,386 which is equivalent to 7.99% of total direct credit
facilities as at 31 December 2021, compared to JD 187,198,381, which is equivalent to 11% of the total direct credit facilities
as at 31 December 2020.

- Credit facilities within the third stage less suspended interest amounted to JD 120,397,568 which is equivalent to 6.6% of
total direct credit facilities as at 31 December 2021 compared to JD 162,819,622 which is equivalent to. 9.7% of total direct
credit facilities as at 31 December 2020.

- The credit facilities granted and guaranteed by the Jordanian government amounted to JD 123,501,389 which is equivalent

to 7.7% of total direct credit facilities as at 31 December 2021, compared to JD 58,001,061 which is equivalent to 4.1% as
at 31 December 2020.
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JORDAN KUWAIT BANK

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2021

Retail

The following is the distribution of total retail facilities according to the Bank's internal rating categories as at 31 December

2021 and 2020:

Credit rating categories based on the bank's

internal system

31 December 2021

From (1] to (5)
From {6} to (7)
From (8) to {10)
Unrated

Total

31 December 2020

From {1} to (5)
From {6} to (7)
From (8) to {10}
Unrated

Total

Stage 1 Stage 2
Individuals Individual Stage 3 Total
D JD D D
22,317,998 5,833,564 - 28,151,562
= - 3,149,277 3,149,277
218,387,004 3,625,285 9,894,267 231,906,556
240,705,002 9,458,849 13,043,544 263,207,395
14,645,900 2,279,800 - 16,925,700
151 - 151
- - 3,541,597 3,541,597
168,640,266 3,415,163 9,765,221 181,820,650
183,286,316 5,694,963 13,306,818 202,288,097

The following is the movement on retail facilities balances during the year ended 31 December 2021 and 2020.

Stage 1 Stage 2

Individual Individual Stage 3 Total
31 December 2021 1D D D 1)
Balance at the beginning of the year 183,286,316 5,694,963 13,306,818 202,288,097
New facilities granted during the year 87,781,451 2,333,857 1,890,013 92,005,321
Facilities settled during the year (26,479,252) (1,226,077} (2,692,537} (30,397,866)
Transferred to stage 1 3,006,580 {2,504,795) {501,785) -
Transferred to stage 2 {5,336,067) 6,623,370 {1,287,303)

Transferred to stage 3 {1,554,027) (1,462,469} 3,016,496

Changes resulting from adjustments - -

Write offs {transferred off the statement of

financial position) - . (688,158) (688,158)
Amendments resulting from changes in - g S -
currency exchange
Balance at the end of the year 240,705,002 9,458,849 13,043,544 263,207,395

31 December 2020

Balance at the beginning of the year 144,111,322 4,713,354 12,288,703 161,113,378
New facilities granted during the year 59,986,952 2,008,669 1,437,921 63,433,543
Facilities settled during the year {18,531,026) (816,555} {1,937,901) (21,285,481)
Transferred to stage 1 3,333,437 (2,574,954) (758,482) -
Transferred to stage 2 (3,116,993) 3,681,950 (564,957) -

Transferred to stage 3 (2,497,376) (1,317,501) 3,814,877 -
Changes resulting from adjustments - - -
Write offs (transferred off the statement of

financial position) - - {973,343) (973,343)
Amendments resulting from changes in

currency exchange - : -
Balance at the end of the year 183,286,316 5,694,963 13,306,818 202,288,097
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JORDAN KUWAIT BANK

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2021

The following is the movement on expected credit loss provisions on retail credit facilities during the year ended 31

December 2021 and 2020:

31 December 2021

Balance at the beginning of the year
Expected credit losses on new facilities
granted during the year

Recovered from expected credit losses on
facilities settled during the year
Transferred to stage 1

Transferred to stage 2

Transferred to stage 3

Changes resulting from adjustments
Write offs

Amendments resulting from changes in
currency exchange

Balance at the end of the year

31 December 2020

Balance at the beginning of the year
Expected credit losses on new facilities
granted during the year

Recovered from expected credit losses on
facilities settled during the year
Transferred to stage 1

Transferred to stage 2

Transferred to stage 3

Changes resulting from adjustments
Write offs

Amendments resulting from changes in
currency exchange

Balance at the end of the year

Stage 1 Stage 2
Individual individual Stage 3 Total
D D D JD
6,745,505 740,634 8,901,833 16,387,972
3,055,664 534,537 3,411,057 7,001,258
{1,476,024) {443,922) {1,864,165) (3,784,111)
615,431 (312,922) (302,509) -
{105,571) 639,810 (534,239) -
{60,516} (244,267) 304,783 -
- - (512,554) (512,554)
8,774,489 913,870 9,404,206 19,092,565
5,557,870 997,362 5,283,085 11,838,317
2,043,147 435,532 5,198,548 7,677,227
(1,491,292) (169,734} {663,937) {2,324,962)
826,468 (551,037} {275,432) -
{97,795) 319,269 {221,474)
(92,893) (290,758} 383,651 -
- (802,609) (802,609)
6,745,505 740,634 8,901,833 16,387,972
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JORDAN KUWAIT BANK

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2021

The following is a disclosure of the distribution of total real estate facilities according to the Bank's internal classification

categories as at 31 December 2021 and 2020

Credit rating categories based on the bank's

internal system

31 December 2021
From (1) to (5]
From (6) to (7}
From (8) to {10)
Unrated

Total

31 December 2020
From (1} to (5)
From {6} to (7)
From {8) to (10}
Unrated

Total

Real Estate facilities

Stage 1 Stage 2
Individuals Individuals Stage 3 Total
JD D D iD
56,569,691 7,715,629 - 64,285,320
78,941 17,041,032 - 17,119,973
- - 30,528,213 30,528,213
123,199,460 7,280,590 13,484,143 143,964,193
179,848,092 32,037,251 44,012,356 255,897,699
Stage 1 Stage 2
Individuals Individuals Stage 3 Total
D JD JD JD
37,453,802 5,742,285 43,196,087
59,500 18,433,999 - 18,493,499
= - 32,057,589 32,057,589
104,831,396 7,344,788 15,232,400 127,408,584
142,344,699 31,521,072 47,289,989 221,155,759

The following is the disclosure of the movement on real estate facilities balances during the year ended 31 December 2021

and 2020:

31 December 2021

Balance at the heginning of the year

New facilities during the year

Facilities paid during the year

Transferred to stage 1

Transferred to stage 2

Transferred to stage 3

Changes resulting from adjustments

Write offs (transferred off the statement of
financial position)

Amendments resulting from changes in

currency exchange

Balance at the end of the year

31 December 2020

Balance at the beginning of the year

New facilities during the year

Facilities paid during the year

Transferred to Stage 1

Transferred to stage 2

Transferred to stage 3

Changes resulting from adjustments

Write offs (transferred off the statement of
financial pasition)

Amendments resulting from changes in

currency exchange

Balance at the end of the year

Stage 1 Stage 2
Individuals Individuals Stage 3 Total
0 D D D

142,344,699 31,521,072 47,289,989 221,155,759
63,221,222 2,080,020 2,667,102 67,968,345
{(22,588,422) (3,834,895) (6,434,498) (32,857,815}

6,118,672 (4,531,577) (1,587,095) -

{4,521,865) 8,867,960 {(4,346,095)

{4,726,214) (2,065,329) 6,791,543 -

- - (368,590) (368,590)
179,848,092 32,037,251 44,012,356 255,897,699
165,489,174 28,963,596 44,039,022 238,491,792
12,460,670 1,204,463 1,193,089 14,858,232
(24,942,933} (2,530,051) (4,649,275} (32,122,259}

4,192,921 {3,143,222) {1,049,699) -
{9,815,244) 11,225,560 {1,410,316) -
(5,039,890) (4,199,274) 9,239,164 -

- {72,006) (72,006)

142,344,699 31,521,072 47,289,989 221,155,759
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The following is the movement on the expected credit loss provisions of real estate facilities during the year ended 31

December 2021 and 2020:

31 December 2021

Balance at the beginning of the year
Expected credit losses on new facilities during
the year

Recovered from expected credit losses on
facilities paid during the year

Transferred to stage 1

Transferred to stage 2

Transferred to stage 3

Changes resulting from adjustments
Provision for written off facilities
Amendments resulting from changes in
currency exchange

Balance at the end of the year

31 December 2020

Balance at the beginning of the year
Expected credit losses on new facilities during
the year

Recovered from expected credit losses on
facilities paid during the year

Transferred to stage 1

Transferred to stage 2

Transferred to stage 3

Changes resulting from adjustments
Provision for written off facilities
Amendments resulting from changes in
currency exchange

Balance at the end of the year

Large Companies'

Stage 1 Stage 2
Individuals Individuals Stage 3 Total
JD 1D D JO
1,294,367 2,903,994 18,762,925 22,561,285
526,411 892,859 5,265,045 6,684,316
{950,000) (1,134,839) (2,660,272) (4,745,111)
533,478 (145,622) (387,856) -
{260,858) 1,162,828 {901,970) -
{20,059) {189,809) 209,868 -
= . (227,520} {227,520)
1,123,340 3,489,409 20,060,221 24,672,970
1,099,270 2,027,354 12,599,322 15,725,946
572,682 1,003,754 7,219,931 8,796,367
(510,467) (98,732) (896,665} {1,505,864)
288,026 (140,350) (147,675} -
(101,558} 250,167 {148,6089) -
(53,587) (138,200) 191,786 -
. 5 (55,164) (55.164)
1,294,367 2,903,993 18,762,925 22,961,285

The following is a disclosure of the distribution of the total large companies’ facilities according to the bank's internal
classification categories as at 31 December 2021 and 2020:

Credit rating categories based on the bank's
internal system

31 December 2021

From (1) to {5)

From (6) to {7)

From (8) to {10}

Unrated

Total

31 December 2G20
From {1) to (5)
From (6) to (7)
From {8) to (10}
Unrated

Total

Stage 1 Stage 2
Individuals Individuals Stage 3 Total
JO D D 1D
561,314,669 15,040,998 - 576,355,667
241,576,010 111,559,292 - 353,135,302
- - 72,738,661 72,738,661
158,797 38,280 9,511 206,588
803,049,476 126,638,570 72,748,172 1,002,436,218
Stage 1 Stage 2
Individuals Individuals Stage 3 Total
D D D D
738,169,607 11,512,001 - 749,681,608
81,921,445 83,458,860 - 165,380,304
- - 112,430,264 132,430,264
87,247 10 301,397 388,655
820,178,299 94,970,871 112,731,661 1,027,880,831

63



JORDAN KUWAIT BANK

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2021

The following is the disclosure of the movement on the large companies' facilities balances during the year ended 31

December 2021 and 2020:

31 December 2021

Balance at the beginning of the year
New facilities during the year

Facilities paid during the year
Transferred to stage 1

Transferred to stage 2

Transferred to stage 3

Changes resulting from adjustments
Write offs (transferred off the statement of
financial position)

Amendments resulting from changes in
currency exchange

Balance at the end of the year

31 December 2020

Balance at the beginning of the year
New facilities during the year

Facilities paid during the year
Transferred to stage 1

Transferred to stage 2

Transferred to stage 3

Changes resulting from adjustments
Write offs {transferred off the staterment of
financial position)

Amendments resulting from changes in
currency exchange

Balance at the end of the year

Stage 1 Stage 2
Individuals Individuals Stage 3 Total
D D JD D
820,178,299 94,970,871 112,731,661 1,027,880,831
178,126,641 17,100,629 4,061,402 199,288,672
{181,470,526) (7,814,383) (16,630,240} (205,915,149)
5,294,265 (5,294,265) - -
{15,817,373) 35,690,546 {19,873,173) -
{3,261,830) (8,014,828} 11,276,658
- - (18,818,136} (18,818,136}
803,049,476 126,638,570 72,748,172 1,002,436,218
859,369,291 108,096,351 76,366,404 1,043,832,046
94,467,768 3,742,251 3,614,186 101,824,505
(111,193,526) {5,905,969) (676,225) {117,775,721)
5,432,581 (5,427,726) (4,855) -
(21,716,555} 23,684,769 (1,968,214) -
(6,181,260) (29,218,805} 35,400,066
820,178,298 94,970,871 112,731,661 1,027,880,831
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The following is the disclosure of the movement on the provision for expected credit losses of large companies facilities
during the year ended 31 December 2021 and 2020:

31 December 2021

Balance at the beginning of the year
Expected credit losses on new facilities during
the year

Recovered from expected credit losses on
facilities paid during the year

Transferred to stage 1

Transferred to stage 2

Transferred to stage 3

Changes resulting from adjustments
Provision for written off facilities
Amendments resulting from changes in
currency exchange

Balance at the end of the year

31 December 2020

Balance at the beginning of the year
Expected credit losses on new facilities during
the year

Recovered from expected credit losses on
facilities paid during the year

Transferred to stage 1

Transferred to stage 2

Transferred to stage 3

Changes resulting from adjustments
Provision for written off facilities
Amendments resulting from changes in
currency exchange

Balance at the end of the year

Small and Medium Companies

Stage 1 Stage 2
Individuals Individuals Stage 3 Total
JD JD D JD
5,837,658 5,904,996 55,865,265 67,607,915
8,552,579 10,180,758 10,498,286 29,231,623
(2,348,099) {1,679,167) (3,402,357} (7,429,623}
193,272 {193,272) - -
{26,002) 7,714,538 {7,688,536) -
(301,668) (2,727,941} 3,029,609 -
- - {17,164,329) {17,164,329)
11,907,740 19,199,912 41,137,938 72,245,590
3,620,708 7,411,315 33,413,538 44,445,561
2,854,930 3,089,846 19,108,488 25,053,263
(448,797) (494,451) {947,658) {1,850,905)
56,193 (54,411) (1,782) -
(168,511) 652,390 (483,878}
(76,864} {4,699,693) 4,776,557 -
5,837,658 5,904,996 55,865,265 67,607,919

The following is a disclosure of the distribution of total SME facilities according to the Bank's internal classification categories

as at 31 Decernber 2021 and 2020:

Credit rating categories based on the bank's
internal system

31 December 2021
From {1} to (5}
From (6) to {7)
From (8) to {10}
Unrated

Total

Stage 1 Stage 2
Individuals Individuals Stage 3 Total
D D D JD
59,688,353 12,797,452 112,485,805
10,741,789 - - 10,741,789
- 2,762,525 17,107,662 19,870,187
35,077 37,594 411,652 484,323
110,465,219 15,597,571 17,519,314 143,582,104
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31 December 2020
From {1) to (5)
From (6) to (7)
From (8) to (10}
Unrated

Total

Stage 1 Stage 2
Individuals Individuals Stage 3 Total
o) JD i ]»] D
94,245,332 8,398,695 - 102,644,027
11,215,228 4,637,768 - 15,852,997
- - 13,399,087 13,399,087
55,000 14,502 470,827 540,329
105,515,560 13,050,966 13,869,914 132,436,439

The following is the disclosure of the movement on SME facilities balances during the year ended 31 December 2021 and

2020:

31 December 2021

Balance at the beginning of the year
New facilities during the year

Facilities paid during the year
Transferred to stage 1

Transferred to stage 2

Transferred to stage 3

Changes resulting from adjustments
Write offs (transferred off the statement of
financial position}

Amendments resulting from changes in
currency exchange

Balance at the end of the year

31 December 2020

Balance at the beginning of the year
New facilities during the year

Facilities paid during the year
Transferred to stage 1

Transferred to stage 2

Transferred to stage 3

Changes resulting from adjustments
Write offs (transferred off the statement of
financial position)

Amendments resulting from changes in
currency exchange

Balance at the end of the year

Stage 1 Stage 2
Individuals Individuals Stage 3 Total
D 1D D 1D
105,515,560 13,050,966 13,869,914 132,436,440
43,181,404 7,914,391 5,522,480 56,618,275
{36,518,830}) {2,680,415) (4,692,997} {43,892,242)
3,561,933 {3,288,025) (273,908) -
(3,332,527) 3,941,926 (609,399) -
{1,942,321) {3,341,272) 5,283,553
- - (1,580,369) (1,580,369)
110,465,219 15,597,571 17,519,314 143,582,104
78,464,240 8,577,774 10,766,193 $7,808,208
55,638,906 3,507,992 1,294,495 60,441,392
(22,436,868) (1,247,742) (2,023,559) (25,708,169)
2,625,551 (2,446,914) (178,637} -
(5,518,311} 5,854,238 {335,927} -
{3,257,958) (1,194,382) 4,453,297 957
- {105,948} {105,948)
105,515,560 13,050,966 13,869,913 132,436,439
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- The following is the disclosure of the movement on the provision for expected credit losses of SME facilities during the

year ended 31 December 2021 and 2020:

31 December 2021

Balance at the beginning of the year
Expected credit losses on new facilities during
the year

Recovered from expected credit losses on
facilities paid during the year

Transferred to stage 1

Transferred to stage 2

Transferred to stage 3

Changes resuiting from adjustments
Provision for written off facilities
Amendments resulting from changes in
currency exchange

Balance at the end of the year

31 December 2020

Balance at the beginning of the year
Expected credit losses on new facilities during
the year

Recovered from expected credit losses on
facilities paid during the year

Transferred to stage 1

Transferred to stage 2

Transferred to stage 3

Changes resulting from adjustments
Pravision for written off facilities
Amendments resulting from changes in
currency exchange

Balance at the end of the year

Government and Public Sector

The following is a disclosure of the distribution of total government and public sector facilities according to the Bank's
internal classification categories as at 31 December 2021 and 2020:

Credit rating categories based on the bank’s
internal system

31 December 2021
From {1} to (5)
From [6) to (7)
From (8) to (10}
Unrated

Total

Stage 1 Stage 2
Individuals Individuals Stage 3 Total
JD D o D
546,579 818,895 6,671,695 8,037,169
129,860 37,730 4,811,227 4,978,817
(449,546) {345,346) (1,182,359) (1,977,251)
161,520 {43,761) (117,759 -
(21,690} 300,909 (279,219} -
(6,726) {612,300) 619,026 -

- - {(1,341,059) (1.341,059)
359,997 156,127 9,181,552 9,697,676
222,586 410,975 4,183,419 4,816,981
422,462 425,237 3,200,591 4,048,290
{158,788) {212,675) (355,776) {727,239)
130,016 (21,282) {108,734) -
{22,622) 231,705 {209,084) -
{47,075) (15,065) 62,141 .

- {100,862) {100,862)
546,579 818,895 6,671,695 8,037,169

Stage 1 Stage 2
Individuals Individuals Stage 3 Total
1D JD 1D Jb
89,887,857 . - 89,887,857
88,051,341 - - 88,051,341
177,939,198 - - 177,939,198
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31 December 2020
From (1} to (5)
From (6} to (7}
From {(8) to {10}
Unrated

Total

Stage 1 Stage 2
Individuals Individuals Stage 3 Total
D D JD JD
62,438,870 - - 62,438,870
50,000,000 - - 50,000,000
112,438,870 - - 112,438,870

The following is the disclosure of the movement on government and public sector facilities balances during the year ended

31 December 2021 and 2020:

31 December 2021

Balance at the beginning of the year
New facilities during the year

Facilities paid during the year
Transferred to stage 1

Transferred to stage 2

Transferred to stage 3

Changes resulting from adjustments
Write offs (transferred off the statement of
financial position)

Amendments resulting from changes in
currency exchange

Balance at the end of the year

31 December 2020

Balance at the beginning of the year
New facilities during the year

Facilities paid during the year
Transferred to stage 1

Transferred to stage 2

Transferred to stage 3

Changes resulting from adjustments
Write offs (transferred off the statement of
financial position)

Amendments resulting from changes in
currency exchange

Balance at the end of the year

Stage 1 Stage 2
Individuals Individuals Stage 3 Total
JD JO D JD
112,438,870 - - 112,438,870
73,501,342 - 73,501,342
(8,001,014} - {8,001,014)
177,939,198 - - 177,939,198
128,438,162 - 128,438,162
708 - 708
(16,000,000) - - (16,000,000)
112,438,870 - - 112,438,870
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The following is the disclosure of the movement on the provision for expected credit losses of government and public sector
facilities during the year ended 31 December 2021 and 2020:

Stage 1 Stage 2

Individuals Individuals Stage 3 Total
31 December 2021 JO 1D JO JD
Balance at the beginning of the year 107,426 - - 107,426
Expected credit losses on new facilities during
the year 428,998 - - 428,998
Recovered from expected credit losses on
facilities paid during the year - - -
Transferred to stage 1 - - -
Transferred to stage 2 - - 5
Transferred to stage 3 - - -
Changes resulting from adjustments - - e
Provision for written off facilities - - -
Amendments resulting from changes in - - - -
currency exchange
Balance at the end of the year 536,424 - - 536,424

31 December 2020

Balance at the beginning of the year 403,242 - - 403,242
Expected credit losses on new facilities during

the year - - - -
Recovered from expected credit losses on

facilities paid during the year {295,815) - - (295,815)
Transferred to stage 1 - - = -
Transferred to stage 2 - - - -
Transferred to stage 3 - - - -
Changes resulting from adjustments - - - -
Provision for written off facilities - - - -
Amendments resulting from changes in

currency exchange - - - -
Balance at the end of the year 107,426 - - 107,426

- Based on the instructions of the Central Bank of Jordan related to the application of IFRS (9), no provision was calculated
for expected credit losses on credit facilities granted or guaranteed by the Jordanian government.

{8) Financial assets at fair value through statement of income
The details of this item are as follows:

31 December 2021 31 December 2020

JD JD
Shares listed in an active market 4,133,548 -
Total financial assets through statement of income 4,133,548 -

- Total unrealized losses from the valuation of shares at fair value through statement of income amounted to ID
288,817 during 2021, which was recorded within the consolidated income statement.

- Total realized losses from sale of shares at fair value through statement of income amounted to JD 14,966 during
2021, which was recorded within the consolidated income statement,
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{9} Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
31 December 2021 31 December 2020
D 1D

Shares listed in an active market 19,114,012 17,784,848
Shared unlisted 26,204,532 25,505,244
Total shares 45,318,545 43,290,092
Bonds listed in active markets 24,660,562 29,366,838
Bonds unlisted in active markets 5,000,000 13,210,344
Total bonds (debt instruments) 29,660,562 42,577,182
Total financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income 74,979,107 85,867,274
Analysis of bills and bonds:

Fixed rate 24,660,562 29,366,838
Floating rate 5,000,000 13,210,344
Total 29,660,562 42,577,182

- Total income realized from the sale of shares at fair value through comprehensive income amounted to JD 393,798
during the year 2021 compared to JD 7,315 during the year 2020, which were credited directly to retained earnings
in the consolidated statement of equity.

- Total losses realized from sale of bonds at fair value through comprehensive income amounted JD 89,987 compared
to JD 407,041 in profits during the year 2020 that were credited directly in the consolidated statement of income.

- Cash dividends on the above investments amounted to JD 1,068,858) for the year ended 31 December 2021 { 2020:
JD 2,768,310)

The following is a disclosure of the distribution of total debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income
according to the Bank's internal classification categories as at 31 December 2021 and 2020:

Credit rating categories based on the bank's Stage 1 Stage 2

internal system Individuals Individuals Stage 3 Total

31 December 2021 D D 1D 1D

From {1) to (5) 763,026 - - 763,026
from {6) to (7) 28,206,261 - - 28,206,261
From (8) to (10) . - 691,275 691,275
Unrated - - - -
Total 28,969,287 - 691,275 29,660,562
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Stage 1 Stage 2
individuals Individuals Stage 3 Total

31 December 2020 D JD D D
From (1) to (5) 5,238,582 - - 5,238,582
From (6) to (7) 29,172,901 - - 29,172,501
From (8) to (10) - - 10,154,668 10,154,668
Reclassification of expected credit loss (96,432) ) (1,892,538) (1,988,970)
Total 34,411,484 - 8,262,130 42,577,182

The following is the disclosure of movement in the balance of debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive

income for the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020:

31 December 2021

Fair value at beginning of the year
New debt instruments during the year
Paid debt instruments during the year
Transferred to stage 1

Transferred to stage 2

Transferred to stage 3

Changes resulting from adjustments
Written off debt instruments

Fair value at end of the year

31 December 2020

Fair value at beginning of the year
New debt instruments during the year
Paid debt instruments during the year
Transferred to stage 1

Transferred to stage 2

Transferred to stage 3

Changes resulting from adjustments*
written off debt instruments

Fair value at end of the year

Stage 1 Stage 2
Individuals Individuals Stage 3 Total
D o JO D
34,315,052 8,262,130 42,577,182
33,656 - 33,656
(5,379,421) - {1,438,005) {(6,817,426)
- - (6,132,850) {(6,132,850)
28,969,287 - 691,275 29,660,562
33,433,864 9,584,794 8,731,925 51,750,583
8,210,475 - 474,456 8,684,931
(7,232,856) {6,429,744) (2,206,763} (15,869,362)
- (3,155,050) 3,155,050 =
(96,432} - (1,892,538) {1,988,970)
34,315,052 | - 8,262,130 42,577,182

* The adjustments resulted from re-stating the expected credit losses to be included in the valuation reserve in equity.
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The following is the disclosure of the movement in the provision for expected credit losses for debt instruments at fair value
through other comprehensive income during the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020:

Stage 1 Stage 2

Individuats Individuals Stage 3 Total
31 December 2021 D D D D
Balance at the beginning of the year 96,432 - 7,127,980 7,224,412
Expected credit losses on new debt instruments 139,298 - 335,768 475,066
during the year
Recovered from expected credit losses on debt {40,636) - (918,022) {958,658)
instruments paid during the year*
Transferred to stage 1 - - - -
Transferred to stage 2 - - -
Transferred to stage 3 - - - -
Changes resulting from adjustments - . - -
Provision for written off debt instruments - - {6,132,850) {6,132,850)
Balance at the end of the year 195,094 - 412,876 607,970

Stage 1 Stage 2

Individuals Individuals Stage 3 Total
31 December 2020 1D 1D D JD
Balance at the beginning of the year 81,629 440,745 918,923 1,441,297
Expected credit losses on new debt instruments
during the year* 62,332 - 5,894,628 5,956,960
Recovered from expected credit losses on debt
instruments paid during the year (47,529) {126,315} - (173,844)

Transferred to stage 1 - g . -
Transferred to stage 2 - S - -
Transferred to stage 3 S (314,430) 314,430 -
Changes resulting from adjustments - 5 - -
Provision for written off debt instruments S - - -
Balance at the end of the year 96,432 - 7.127,980 7,224,412

*Represents private sector coporate bonds that were reclassified from financial assets at fair value through statement of
comprehensive income to investments at amortised cost during 2021.

- The Bank has not calculated expected credit loss provisions on debt instruments issued by the Jordanian
government in accordance with the Central Bank of Jordan's instructions regarding the application of IFRS (9).
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{10} Financial assets at amortised cost

Financial assets with available market prices:
Foreign government bills and treasury bonds
Total financial assets with no available market prices
Less: impairment provisions for financial assets at amortised cost
Net financial assets with available market prices

Financial assets with no available market prices:
Bills and treasury bonds
Corporate loans bonds
Total financial assets with no avaitable market prices
Less: impairment provisions for financial assets at amortised cost
Net financial assets with no available market prices
Total

Analysis of bills and bonds:
With fixed rate

With floating rate

Total

- Total income realized from the sale of bonds at amrotised cost amounted to JD 2,132,280 during 2021, which was

recarded within the consolidated income statement.

- Based on the instructions of the Central Bank of Jordan related to the application of IFRS (9), no expected credit

31 December 2021 31 December 2020

JD D
6,245,547 -
6,245,547 -
{171,056) 4
6,074,491 -

482,250,189 402,110,610
8,720,000 -
490,970,189 402,110,610
(2,475,375) -
488,494,814 402,110,610
494,569,305 402,110,610
488,495,736 402,110,610
8,720,000 .
497,215,736 402,110,610

loss provisions were calculated on the Jordanian government treasury bonds and bills.

The following is a disclosure of the distribution of total financial assets at amortised cost according to the Bank's

internal classification categories as at 31 December 2021 and 2020.

Credit rating categories based on the bank's

internal system Stage 1 Stage 2

Individuals Individuals Stage 3 Total
31 December 2021 10 JO D 1D
From {1} to {5} 488,495,736 - - -
From {6) to (7) - - - 488,495,736
From (8) to (10) - - 8,720,000 8,720,000
Unrated - - - -
Total 488,495,736 - 8,720,000 497,215,736

Stage 1 Stage 2

Individuals Individuals Stage 3 Total
31 December 2020 Jb D D D
From (1] to (S} 402,110,610 - - 402,110,610
From (6} to (7] - - -
From (8} to (10} - - - -
Unrated - - - -
Total 402,110,610 - - 402,110,610
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- The following is the disclosure of the movement on financial assets at amortised cost balance during the years ended 31

December 2021 and 2020:

Stage 1 Stage 2

Individuals Individuals Stage 3 Total
31 December 2021 1D D JD D
Balance at the beginning of the year 402,110,610 - - 402,110,610
New investments during the year 217,763,801 - 8,720,000 226,483,801
Paid investments during the year {131,378,675} - - (131,378,675)
Transferred to stage 1 - - - -
Transferred to stage 2 - - -
Transferred to stage 3 - - -
Changes resulting from adjustments - - - -
Written off investments - - - -
Balance at the end of the year 488,455,736 - 8,720,000 497,215,736
31 December 2020
Balance at the beginning of the year 308,656,110 - - 308,656,110
New investments during the year 199,896,282 - - 199,896,282
Paid investments during the year {106,441,782) - - {106,441,782)
Transferred to stage 1 - - - -
Transferred to stage 2 - S - -
Transferred to stage 3 - - - -
Changes resulting from adjustments - - - -
Written off investments - - - -
Balance at the end of the year 402,110,610 - - 402,110,610

The following is the disclosure of the movement on the provision for expected credit losses of financial assets at amortised

cost during the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020:

Stage 1
Individuals

Stage 2
Individuals

Stage 3

Total

31 December 2021 D
Balance at the beginning of the year -
Expected credit losses on new investments
during the year

Recovered from expected credit losses on
investments paid during the year -
Transferred to stage 1 -
Transferred to stage 2 -
Transferred to stage 3 g
Changes resulting from adjustments -
Provision for written off investments -
Amendments resulting from changes in currency
exchange -

228,409

10

D

2,418,022

o

2,646,431

Batance at the end of the year 228,409

2,418,022

2,646,431
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31 December 2020
Balance at the beginning of the year

Expected credit losses on new investments

during the year

Recovered from expected credit losses on

investments paid during the year
Transferred to stage 1

Transferred to stage 2

Transferred to stage 3

Changes resulting from adjustments
Provision for written off investments
Batance at the end of the year

Stage 1 Stage 2
Individuals Individuals Stage 3 Total
JD D D D

- Based on the instructions of the Central Bank of Jordan related to the application of IFRS (9), no expected credit
loss provisions were calculated on the Jordanian government treasury bonds and bills.

The following is the disclosure of the movement on investments balance during the years ended 31 December 2021 and

2020:

31 December 2021

Balance at the beginning of the year
New investments during the year
Investments matured during the year
Change in fair value

Transferred to stage 1

Transferred to stage 2

Transferred to stage 3

Changes resulting from adjustments
Written off investments

Balance at the end of the year

31 December 2020

Balance at the beginning of the year
New investments during the year
Investments matured during the year
Change in fair value

Transferred to stage 1

Transferred to stage 2

Transferred to stage 3

Changes resulting from adjustments
Written off investments

Balance at the end of the year

Stage 1 Stage 2
Individuals Individuals Stage 3 Total
D D D D
436,522,094 - 10,154,668 446,676,762
217,797,457 - 14,569,612 232,367,069
{136,854,528) - {9,180,155) (146,034,683)
- - {6,132,850) (6,132,850)
517,465,023 - 9,411,275 526,876,298
Stage 1 Stage 2
Individuals Individuais Stage 3 Total
JD D D D
342,089,978 9,584,794 8,731,925 360,406,696
208,106,754 474,456 208,581,209
{113,674,637) (6,429,744) (2,206,763} {122,311,144)
- (3,155,050} 3,155,050
436,522,094 - 10,154,668 446,676,762
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JORDAN KUWAIT BANK
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2021

12 Intangible assets — net

The details of this item are as follows:

Software and programmes
31 December

2021 2020
For the year 2021 1D 1D
Balance at the beginning of the year 1,964,717 1,357,766
Additions 4,311,495 1,332,250
Amortisation for the year 611,226 725,298
Balance at the end of the year 5,664,986 1,964,717
Annual amortization rate ¥ 20-33

{13} Leased assets and liabilities

The Bank implemented IFRS {16) “Leases” as at 1 January 2019, The application resulted in the recognition of the right to
use of the leased assets amounting to 1D 12,844,569 as at 31 December 2021 (2020: JD 13,347,577) and the liabilities arising
against it amounting to JD 12,530,503 as at 31 December 2021 {(2020: JD 12,389,957), the recognized amounts represent
the present value of the expected future payments on the basis of each contract separately using a discount rate equivalent
to the incremental borrowing rate of the Bank.

All contracts that were processed under IFRS 16 represent the leasing of locations and branches of the Bank. The Bank chose
to use the exemption available in the standard by not recognizing the right of use leased assets for contracts of less than
one year with immaterial amounts.

Assets recognised in the financial position are amortized using the straight-line method and over the expected period of the
right of use, for each asset, as the value of amortization for the period amounted to JD 2,713,528 for 31 December 2021
compared to JD 2,163,762 as at 31 December 2020.

The liability is amortized by reducing the payments made to the lessor, less interest resulting from the present value. Interest
expense amounted to JD 1,212,858 for 31 December 2021 compared to JD 1,085,669 as at 31 December 2020.

14 Other assets
The details of this item are as follows:

31 December 2021 31 December 2020

D JD

Accrued interest 30,698,981 25,013,351
Prepaid expenses 2,034,183 1,867,437
Assets seized by the Bank in settlement of debts, net 131,966,150 133,538,182
Debtors* 1,157,017 3,918,612
Clearing cheques 6,422,079 301,063
Others* 6,698,181 5,936,309
Total 178,976,591 170,574,955

- ltems of debtors, assets seized by the bank in settlement of debts and other assets include balances pertaining to
subsidiaries amounting to JD 6,245,421 as at 31 December 2021 compared to JD 68,636 as at 31 December 2020.

- Theinstructions of the Central Bank of Jordan require the diposal of the assets seized by the bank in settlement of
debts within a maximum period of two years from the date of its acquisition. The Central Bank, in exceptional cases,
may extend this period for a maximum of two consecutive years.
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Below is the movement on the assets seized by the Bank:

Balance at the beginning of the year - net
Additions *

Disposals

Recovered from provision in accordance with the
instructions of the Central Bank of Jardan
Impairment

Balance at the end of the year

Balance at the beginning of the year - net
Additions
Dispasals
Impairment
Balance at the end of the year

2021
Seized properties  Other seized assets Total
D Jo D
133,533,182 - 133,538,182
15,793,842 1,040,275 16,834,117
(14,013,762) = (14,013,762)
896,846 - 896,846
(5,289,233) - (5,289,233)
130,925,875 1,040,275 131,966,150
_ 2020
Seized properties  Other seized assets Total
D o D
136,505,006 = 136,505,006
2,497,686 2,497,686
(5,099,082} o {5,099,082)
(365,428) - {(365,428)
133,538,182 - 133,538,182

*This amount represents seized shares during 2021 against debts in one of the Arab Banks.

- Real estate provision has not been deducted in accordance with the instructions of the Central Bank of Jordan
Circular No. 16239/1/10 dated on 21 November 2018, as the Circular has been postponed for one year. So that the
required percentage of 50% of these properties are to be reached by the end of 2030.

{15) Banks and financial institutions deposits

31 December 2021
Outside the
Inside the Kingdom Kingdom Total
D o 1D
Current and at call accounts - 38,791,340 38,791,340
Term deposits™ 46,085,000 82,069,117 128,154,117
Total 46,085,000 120,860,457 166,945,457
31 December 2020
Outside the
Inside the Kingdom Kingdom Total
D D D
Current and at call accounts - 25,995,596 25,995,596
Term deposits* 24,815,000 122,877,081 147,692,081
Total 24,815,000 148,872,677 173,687,677

*Deposits of banks and financial institutions maturing within a period of more than 3 months amounted to JD 37,614,010
as at 31 December 2021, compared to JD 126,893,677 as at 31 December 2020.
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JORDAN KUWAIT BANK
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2021

20 Bonds

On 15 Octaber 2020, bonds were issued by one of the bank’s subsidiary amounting to JD 11 million. The bonds mature as a
one payment on 15 October 2023, noting that the bond is not listed. Average interest rate amounted to 5% annually, to be

paid on a semi-annual basis on 15 April and 15 Cctober.

(21) Income tax

A- Income tax Provision

The movement in the income tax provision during the year is as follows:

2021 2020
D D
Balance at the beginning of the year 2,176,841 14,760,848
Income tax expense 9,638,474 3,627,641
Income tax paid (2,069,670} (16,211,648)
Balance at the end of the year 9,745,645 2,176,841
B- Income tax expense
Income tax expense charged to the consolidated statement of income are as follows:
2021 2020
JD 1D
Income tax expense 9,638,474 3,627,641
Impact of deferred tax assets for the year (5,270,611) (5,233,932)
Total 4,367,863 {1,606,291)
C- Tax Positicn
The tax position of the bank’s branches and subsidiaries is as follows:
Final
tax-assessment clearance
report submitted until the
up to the end of end of the Disputed

the year year Payment to the Tax Authorities years
Branches / subsidiaries
lordan branches 2020 2018 Accrued taxes have been paid N/A
Cyprus branch 2021 2021 Accrued taxes have been paid N/A
Ejara Finance Leasing Company 2020 2019 Accrued taxes have been paid N/A
United fFinancial Investments Company 2020 2018 Accrued taxes have been paid N/A
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JORDAN KUWAIT BANK
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2021

The movement on the account of deferred tax assets/ liabilities during the year is as follows:

2021 2020
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
D JD JO D
Balance at the beginning of the year 36,718,616 2,555,136 31,137,943 3,489,800
Added during the year 18,961,624 2,087,833 8,879,005 1,437,510
Disposed of during the year 12,192,971 - 3,298,332 2,372,174
Balance at the end of the year 43,487,269 4,642,969 36,718,616 2,555,136
E- The accounting profit reconciliation against tax profit is summarised as follows:
The accounting profit recanciliation with the taxable profit for the year is detailed below:
2021 2020
D JD
Accounting loss - statement (b} 12,072,700 5,578,751}
Add: non-deductible tax expenses {1,814,879) {21,456,059)
Less: non-taxable profits 33,550,339 30,354,281
Taxable profit 43,808,160 3,319,471
Statutory income tax rate:
Bank’s branches in Jordan 38% 38%
Bank's branches in Cyprus 12.5% 12.5%
Subsidiaries 28% 21-28%
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JORDAN KUWAIT BANK
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2021

{22) Other liabilities

The details of this item are as follows:

2021 2020
JD D

Accrued interest payable 10,069,169 10,402,054
Incoming transfers 2,670,405 1,915,411
Accounts payable 2,356,210 737,365
Accrued expenses 988,903 895,906
Provisional deposits (a) 1,568,069 10,290,860
Provisional deposits - customers 3,316,385 3,873,467
Shareholders’ deposits {b) 4,122,701 4,265,588
Certified and acceptable checks 6,301,930 6,931,979
Vaults insurance 511,986 504,536
Subscription deposits (b) 79,741 80,217
Expected credit losses against indirect facilities - Note (45) 5,576,858 6,889,297
Other liabilities 13,063,167 9,332,980
Total 50,625,524 56,119,661

- Accounts payable and other liabilities include balances attributable to subsidiaries amounting to JD 4,467,265 as at 31
December 2021 {JD 1,477,905 as at 31 December 2020).

(A) This item represents provisional deposits paid to public shareholding companies and others.
(b) This amount represents proceeds from subscription refunds in public shareholding companies under establishment.

{23) Subscribed and paid-in capital

The Bank’s general assembly, approved in its meeting held on 4 May 2020, to distribute bonus shares to shareholders at
half share per share, i.e. 50 million shares/ JD.

The stock dividends were capitalised from the voluntary reserve balance the subscribed and paid-in capital of the bank after
the distribution amounted to 150 million shares/ID (against 100 million shares/)D as at 31 December 2019).

24 Reserves
The details of these reserves as at 31 December 2021 and 2020 are as follows:

A- Statutory

This item represents the accumulated balances transferred from annual profit before tax at 10% during the year and the
previous years as per the Jordanian Laws of Banks and Companies and is not available for distribution to shareholders.

B- Voluntary reserve

This amount represents the accumulated balances transferred from the annual profit before tax that do not exceed 20%
during the year and the previous years. The voluntary reserve may be used for such purposes as deemed appropriate by the
Board of Directors and is available for distribution wholly or partially by the general assembly as profit to shareholders.
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JORDAN KUWAIT BANK
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2021

The Bank’s general assembly, in its meeting held on 4 May 2020, approved to distribute bonus shares to shareholders at
one-half share per existing share, i.e. 50 million shares/ JD.

They are capitalised from the voluntary reserve account. The movement in voluntary reserve is as follows:

- Restricted reserves are as follows:

Reserve name 31 December 2021 31 December 2020 Nature of restriction
JD 1D

Restricted under the Jordanian Companies Law

4
Statutory reserve 97,254,251 96,043,640 and the Law of Banks.

{25) Net reserve for valuation of financial assets at fair value after tax

The movement in this item during the year is as follows:

2021 2020

JO 10
Balance at the beginning of the year 4,571,425 2,296,466
Unrealised gains / (losses) - net 2,808,550 {3,887,833)
Transfer from valuation reserve to the statement of income - expected credit 416,509
losses against debt instruments ’ 5,235,443
Realised losses / {gains) 393,798 (7,315}
Impact of deferred tax liabilities {1,145,723) 934,664
Balance at the end of the year** 7,044,559 4,571,425

** The financial assets valuation reserve is shown at fair value net of deferred tax liabilities in an amount pf 1D (3,700,859)
as at 31 December 2021 against JD {2,555,136) as at 31 December 2020. It is not available for transfer to the consolidated
statement of income.

{26) Retained earnings

The movement in this item during the year is as follows:

2021 2020

D 1D
Balance at the beginning of the year 75,381,421 80,186,800
{Losses)/realised on financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income - Note (8) {393,798) 7,315
Profit/{loss) for the year - Statement (b) 7,738,243 {4,511,275)
Share capital increase expenses - (301,419)
Transferred to reserves (3,631,833) -
Balance at the end of the year 79,094,033 75,381,421
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JORDAN KUWAIT BANK
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2021

Retained earnings include a restricted amount of JD 43,487,269 as at 31 December 2021 according to the request of the
Central Bank of Jordan in exchange for deferred tax assets against JD 36,718,616 as at 31 December 2020.

- Retained earnings balance includes an amount of ID 3,009,704 as at 31 December 2021 against an amount of {JD
3,246,661 as at 31 December 2020), that is only available for disposal as per the instructions of the Securities
Commission for the impact of the adoption of IFRS (9) at the amount actually realised from it through sale operations,
representing financial assets’ revaluation differences.

- Disposal of the outstanding balance of financial asset valuation reserve is only permitted under the prior approval of
the Central Bank of Jordan.

(27} Distributed and Suggested Dividends

The Board of Directors recommended the distribution of cash dividends to shareholders at 7% of the total paid in capital
and that from the voluntary reserve This percentage is subject to the approval of the Central Bank of Jordan and the General
Assembly of Shareholders

The Bank’s general assembly, approved in its meeting held on 4 May 2020, to distribute bonus shares to shareholders at
half share per share, i.e. 50 million shares/ JD. The stock dividends were capitalised from the voluntary reserve balance the
subscribed and paid-in capital of the bank after the distribution amounted to 150 million shares/ID {against 100 million
shares/ID as at 31 December 2019).

(28} Interests income

The details of this item are as follows:

2021 2020
D 1D

Direct credit facilities:
Individuals {retail)
Overdrafts 34,594 4,251
Loans and hills 14,980,273 12,211,673
Credit cards 1,426,215 1,778,327
Real estate mortgage 15,766,268 15,075,986
Companies
Large
Overdrafts 8,097,478 8,749,554
Loans and bhills 49,295,288 59,721,494
SMEs
Qverdrafts 1,193,416 1,174,841
Loans and bills 6,514,124 6,233,071
Government and public sector 7,610,884 7,915,981
Balances with central banks 3,075,534 4,237,680
Balances and depasits with banks and financial institutions 25,890 340,311
Financial assets at amortised cost 17,293,456 15,131,045
Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income 1,850,147 2,934,239
Total 127,163,571 135,508,453
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JORDAN KUWAIT BANK
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2021

29 Interest expense

The details of this item are as follows:

2021 2020
i]») D
Depaosits with banks and banking institutions 2,046,461 2,772,800
Customers’ deposits
Current and held at call accounts 156,139 211,363
Saving deposits 569,242 643,809
Term and call deposits 28,730,061 36,623,293
Certificate of deposits 2,516 592
Cash margins 1,515,571 1,626,272
Borrowings 5,585,795 4,797,489
Deposits guarantees fees 2,362,639 2,372,028
Interests against liabilities of leased assets 1,212,858 1,085,669
Interests against defined benefit obligations 642,226 563,693
Total 42,823,508 50,697,008
{30) Net commissions income
The details of this item are as follows:
2021 2020
D 1D
Direct credit facilities commissions 2,326,251 2,474,340
Indirect credit facilities commissions 4,782,100 4,006,398
Other commission 2,554,345 1,950,178
Total 9,662,696 8,430,916
{31) Foreign currency gain
The details of this item are as follows:
2021 2020
D JD
resulting from trading/ transaction 2,728,574 2,937,609
{loss) Profits resulting from valuation {5,854) 3,191
Total 2,722,720 2,940,750
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JORDAN KUWAIT BANK
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2021

(32) Other income

The details of this item are as follows:

Vaults and safes rent

Stamp’s revenues

Credit cards income

Bad debts recovered

Telecommunication revenues

Transfers income

Gain from sale of property and equipment

Recovered from impairment losses on assets held for sale (note 47)
Others

Total

33 Employee expenses

The details of this item are as follows:

Employees’ salaries, benefits and bonuses
Social Security contribution

Medical expenses

Employees training

Per diems

Employees’ life insurance expenses

Total

2021 2020
D D
202,964 192,302
29,636 51,579
5,607,614 5,361,711
885,926 636,994
93,258 283,453
1,160,154 1,001,732
4,535 16,550
1,529,842 -
2,841,981 2,127,483
12,355,910 9,671,804
2021 2020
D b
24,497,761 23,867,803
2,886,336 2,611,304
1,980,882 1,874,591
177,157 155,122
259,001 159,866
91,098 195,314
29,892,235 28,868,000




JORDAN KUwAIT BANK

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2021

34 Other expenses

The details of this item are as follows:

Rent

Stationary

Advertisement

Subscriptions

Communication expenses
Maintenance and repairs

Insurance expenses

Judicial charges and fees

Electricity, water and fuel

Fees, levies and stamps

Professional fees

Card service expenses
Transportation expenses
Corresponding bank service expenses
Safety and security services
Donations and social responsibility
Hospitality

Board of Directors remunerations
Seized assets provisions

Loss on sale of seized assets
Management fees

Impairment losses of assets held for sale
Amortisation of right of use leased assets
Others

Total

(35) (Loss) earnings per share for the year attributable to the bank’s shareholders (basic and diluted)

The details of this item are as follows:

Profit (Loss) for the year
Profit (Loss) for the year from continuing operations
Loss for the year from discontinued operations

Weighted average of the number of shares
{Loss) earnings per share for the year {Basic and diluted)
Profit (Loss) for the year

Profit (Loss) for the year from continuing operations
{Loss) for the year from discontinuing operations

2021 2020
D D
60,870 63,297
585,459 505,562
1,319,939 1,255,420
281,136 341,663
1,536,708 1,433,062
4,723,033 4,322,511
1,499,578 1,305,838
190,205 212,714
642,794 494,274
1,344,303 1,076,481
307,307 141,038
4,378,826 3,959,510
251,213 146,849
373,019 294,917
529,310 370,589
545,770 2,563,441
123,263 68,105
90,000 25,000
4,392,387 365,428
2,319,793 533,974
- 504,684
- 35,160
2,712,528 2,163,762
4,398,192 3,321,425
32,605,633 25,904,705
2021 2020
D 1D
7,738,243 (4,511,275)
7,738,243 (3,972,460)
- (538,815)
Share Share
150,000,000 150,000,000
JD/ share JD/ share
0.052 {0.030)
0.052 (0.026)
- (0.004)
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JORDAN KUWAIT BANK
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2021

(36} Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and balances at Central Banks with maturity within three months
Add: Balances at banks and financial institutions with maturity within three
months

Less: Deposits at banks and financial institutions with maturity within three
months

Restricted balances - Note (5)

Total

2021

2020

D

317,205,145

D

361,869,605

142,138,455 136,758,518
129,331,447 46,793,738
2,543,992 2,508,347
327,468,161 449,326,038




JORDAN KUWAIT BANK

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2021

{37} Transactions with related parties

The bank has entered into transactions with subsidiaries, sister companies, major shareholders, members of the board of directors and

senior management within the normal activities of the bank, using interest rates and commercial commissions. All credit facilities

granted to related parties are considered operational and no provisions were taken for them as of the date of the consolidated financial

statements,

Transactions with related parties during the year summarized as follows:

31 December 2021

Items in_the consolidated statement of financial
position:

Direct credit facilities *

Deposits at banks and financial institutions
Customers’ deposits

Deposits with the banks and banking corporates
Cash margins

Financial assets at fair value through comprehensive
income

Right of use of leased assets

Liabilities against the right of use assets

Bonds

Items off the consolidated statement of financial
paosition:

Guarantees

Letters of credit

Itemns on the consolidated statement of income:
Interest and commissions income ***

Interests and commissions expense ****
Financial asset dividends

Amortisation of right of use leased assets
Interests against liabilities of leased assets

Related party
Executive
Affiliates Subsidiaries Directors * Directors Other ** Total
JD JD 10 o D
38,161,200 1,149,649 65,207 342,927 39,718,982
23,086,597 - - - 6,435,084 29,521,681
- 51,514 71,876,157 1,350,031 885,252 74,162,953
230,979 - - - - 230,979
- 4,000 - - 15,125 19,125
18,319,142 - - 14,269,220 32,588,362
- - 346,545 - . 346,545
- - 294,297 294,297
- 5,000,000 - 5,000,000
3,833,600 1,190,858 1,000 2,560,585 7,586,043
. - . 4,254,000 4,254,000
2,075,549 101,510 82,368 18,647 9,661 2,287,735
60,759 - 1,664,485 25,611 302,167 2,053,022
162,690 . 297,628 460,318
- - 29,999 - 29,999
- - 40,035 40,035
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JORDAN KUWAIT BANK

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2021

1 December 2020

:ems in the consolidated statement of financial
osition:

Jirect credit facilities *

reposits at banks and financial institutions

Yeposits

Yeposits at banks and financial institutions

‘ash margins

inancial assets at fair value through comprehensive
come

wsets held for sale

iabilities directly associated with assets held for sale
light of use of leased assets

iabilities against the right of use assets

tonds

tems off the consolidated statement of financial
osition:

juarantees

etters of credit

tems on the consolidated statement of income:
nterest and commissions income ***

nterests and commissions expense ****
JAanagement fees

‘inancial asset dividends

wmortisation of right of use leased assets
nterests against liabilities of leased assets

Related party
Executive
Affiliates Subsidiaries Directors * Directors Other ** Total
JD ID D D D
- 57,645 1,587,268 2,126,358 - 3,771,271
67,960,882 - - - 2,535,208 70,496,090
- 61,309,180 a8 1,063,795 1,365,973 63,739,036
225,708 - - - 225,708
- 13,175 13,175
21,969,533 - . 13,186,506 35,156,039
e C - 5,642,817 5,642,817
- 1,529,164 1,529,164
376,569 - 376,569
- 320,569 - 320,569
. 5,000,000 5,000,000
3,833,600 10,300 67,858 1,439,064 5,350,822
70,905 - 4,268,180 4,339,085
171,744 9,630 6,925 102,111 11,113 301,523
1,354,617 3,482,690 - 22,556 184,982 5,044,845
904,684 - - - 904,684
2,458,035 - - - - 2,458,035
- 4,184 - - 4,184
- 9,728 - - 9,728

*Direct credit facilities granted to the board of directors and executive directors include an amount of JD 96,005 relating to credit granted
to board members of ljarah Financial Leasing Company (a subsidiary company) and JD 9,852 to the United Financial Investments Company
(subsidiary) and related parties as at 31 December 2021.
**Represents companies in which the bank has the right to vote at their board meetings.
***|nterest income rates ranges from (0.75) % to (8) %.

****Interest expense rates range from (0.1) % to (3.75) %.

The bank is represented by two board members United Financial Investments Company’s board of directors, three members in Ejara
Finance Leasing Company’s board of directors and two members in The Specialized Managerial Company for Investment and Financial

Consultation’s board of directors.

Executive management salaries and remuneration

Salaries of executive management of the Bank and its subsidiaries amounted to JD 3,366,416 for the year 2021 compared

to JD 2,777,624 for the year 2020.

{38) Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities that are not shown at fair value in the consolidated financial

statements

There are no material differences between the carrying value and the fair value of the financial assets and liabilities as at

the end of 2021 and 2020.
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JORDAN KUWAIT BANK
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2021

(39) Risk Management

A- The responsibilities of the Risk Management Department of the Bank include all the Bank's departments and
branches operating inside and outside the Kingdom as well as its subsidiaries through identifying, determining,
measuring and managing risks under international best practices and within the limits of the functions and
responsibilities of Risk Management.

The responsibilities of the Risk Management Department in the Bank include the following areas:

- Credit risk:

This represents the potential loss resulting from the customer's inability or unwillingness to meet its obligations on time.
These risks are one of the most significant risks to Banks.

- Market risk:

This represents the losses that the Bank may be exposed to as a result of any financial pasitions on or off the balance sheet
due to any changes occurring in the market prices.

- Liquidity risk:

This represents the losses that the Bank may be exposed to due to lack of funds needed to finance the increase of its
investments or to repay its obligations when they become due on time with appropriate cost. (This is part of asset and
liability management (ALM). Reports, in this regard, are prepared by Risk Management).

- Interest rate risk:

This represents the exposure to adverse movements in interest rates that affects the profitability of the Bank due to the
change in net interest income and in the economic value of the cash flows of assets and liabilities.

- Operational risk:

This represents the loss resulting from the failure or inadequacy of internal procedures, human element, systems, or
external events. This definition includes legal risk but not the strategic and reputation risk.

- Information security & business continuity management risks:
This represents the loss resulting from the use of information by unauthorised persons, or the disclosure, distribution,

modification, destruction of deletion of such information. This definition applies to any type of information whether written
on paper or in a file on Internet. This also includes business continuity and disaster recovery.
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JORDAN KUWAIT BANK
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2021

Detailed responsibilities and functions of risk management sections

1

Credit risk:

The Risk Management Department reviews the credit policy periodically and in coordination with the
representatives of corporate and individual facilities. The policy is the indicator and the basic guide for the different
duty stations in clarifying the degree of credit risk acceptable to these stations.

Opinions on credit applications are expressed by the Risk Management within the credit terms specified by the
Board without financial responsibility.

The internal credit rating system is reviewed and evaluated independently of the credit marketing departments
through the Risk Management. The Bank has a system documented and approved by the Board. Any element that
may contribute to the expectation of a client's default is taken into consideration, which helps in measuring and
classifying customer risks. This should facilitate the decision-making process, pricing facilities and determining
customer and product profitability, credit management and the review and analysis of credit portfolio. In addition,
it helps to retain the necessary data that facilitate the application of foundation internal ratings-based approach
(FIRB) to credit risk within the Basel requirements. An automated credit rating system is implemented to support
this. The Scoring Card System is used in the same framework.

The Risk Department recommends, independently of the credit marketing departments, to set specific controls and
limits, documented with clear policies and procedures to ensure compliance therewith. Such limits are reviewed
periodically and adjusted, if necessary. There are specific limits set out and approved by the Board of Directors in
dealing with banks, countries and various economic sectors. One of its tasks includes defining limits for any possible
concentration of credit guarantees or products.

The Risk Management Department prepares an analysis of the credit portfolio whereby the Board of Directors is
clearly provided with an indication of the quality and different ratings thereof. The Board is also provided with any
concentrations as well as historical benchmarking comparisons along with the banking sector where possible.
Thereafter, appropriate recommendations to mitigate existing risks are made.

Market risk:

The Bank has specific policies and procedures approved by the Board of Directors for identifying, measuring,
monitoring and controlling the market risk. These are periodically reviewed, and the implementation thereof is
monitored. Such policies include:

Investment policy: the representatives of Treasury and Risk Departments develop and review this policy and amend
it annually, if required. They also present it to the Investment Committee and the Assets and Liabilities Committee.

The Bank has a written market risk policy approved by the Board of Directors that describes how to identify,
measure, control and mitigate market risks. The Bank also has written policies approved by the Board of Directors,
which define the fundamentals of portfolio management and investment funds, including operational bases,
desired investment instruments and effective controls, in addition to a policy clarifying the basis for dealing
between the Bank and its customers in convertible foreign currencies and major precious metals on a margin basis.
The Risk Management Department develops such policies in cooperation with the concerned departments.
Periodic {daily and monthly) reports are submitted by Middle Office under market risk/ risk management for
adherence with the above policies.

The Risk Management Department prepares Value at Risk ('VAR’) and measures sensitivity analysis, interest rate
risk, timits and other reports included in the relevant policies approved.
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JORDAN KUWAIT BANK
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2021

3.

6.

Liquidity risk:

The Risk Management Department, in cooperation with the Treasury Department, develops / updates a written
policy for liquidity risk management which is approved by the Board of Directors of the Bank.

The Risk Management Department maonitors the Bank's commitment to liquidity ratios set by the Central Bank of
Jordan and the supervisory authorities under which the Bank's branches operate. The Bank's liquidity is monitored
on a daily basis by the Treasury Department.

Liquidity is also monitored by the Asset and Liability Management Committee chaired by the Director General and
comprises the Head of Risk Management. It is governed by the ALCO Policy through periodic reports prepared by
the Risk Management Departments and the Treasury Department. They are presented and considered by the
Committee members who make appropriate recommendations in this regard.

The Risk Management Department, in coordination with the Treasury Department, prepares a written policy for a
Liquidity Contingency Plan to address any liquidity problems at the Bank, at various levels and scenarios, which is
approved by the Board of Directors of the Bank.

Operational risk:

The Risk Management Department prepares, and reviews documented policies and procedures for identifying,
evaluating, mitigating and controlling operational risks. This is done to ensure compliance with the Basel
requirements and to enhance the efficiency and effectiveness of the Bank's control environment. The Bank uses an
automated operational risk system covering the Self-Assessment areas and Events Collection system and identifies
and analyses Key Risk Indicatars (KRI) to the Bank's operation centres.

The Risk Management Department combines the tasks of different risk management when setting controls and
procedures to make sure that all risks are covered and to achieve the Enterprise Risk Management concept. The
Bank also has Standard Operating Procedures (SOP's) working procedures documented, reviewed and adjusted
periodically by the concerned departments and under the supervision of the Operations Development Department.
Any procedures that are modified or developed, including any new products, are presented to departments of
internal audit, compliance and risks to study possible risks and adequacy of existing controls.

Information security & business continuity management:

The Risk Management Department develops a clear, documented, and approved Business Continuity Plan. The
necessary tests are made regularly thereto, in accordance with the broad concept of Business Continuity
Management supported by the DRS automated system for more efficient business continuity management, and in
line with the instructions issued by the Central Bank of Jordan, and in accordance with international best practices
in this regard.

A team for Information Technology Security has been mobilised, reporting directly to Risk Management in order to
support them. Such team is independent in its reporting from the Director of Information Systems Department.

This is done in accordance with the international best practices including the 15027001 and PCI requirements.

Risk Management participates in the preparation of an appropriate risk assessment in the event of a new activity
or product on the verge of being launched in a particular market.

Interest rate risk:

The Risk Management Department prepares a documented interest rate risk policy that governs the identification,
measurement and control of interest rate risk within the ALM's framework - ALCO, approved by the Board of Directors. The
Risk Management Department prepares the necessary reports and submits to the ALCO Committee in the Bank.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2021

7. Compliance with Basel requirements:

The Department oversees the implementation of the requirements of the various Basel decisions, including the
accounting of Basel [l capital adequacy ratios including ligquidity ratios, and effectively contributes to capital

budgeting.

The Department prepares stress tests, evaluates internal capital and issues analytical reports on capital.

The Department also issues various financial analyses of banks with the preparation of new analyses specialised in
specific aspects by taking advantage of the disclosures issued by banks.

Credit risk exposures after netting related provisions, interest in suspense and collaterals:

Items in the consolidated statement of financial position
Balances at central banks

Balances at banks and financial institutions
Direct credit facilities:

For individuals

Real estate mortgage

For corporates

Large companies

SMEs

For government and public sector

Bills, bonds and notes:

Within financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
within financial assets at amortised cost

Other assets

Items off the consolidated statement of financial position

Guarantees

Letters of credit

Acceptances

Utilised facilities {direct and indirect)

Total

102

31 December

31 December

2021 2020
JD D
255,409,613 297,372,740
142,138,456 136,758,518
242,468,901 184,421,832
221,765,313 190,600,214
914,414,231 946,184,834
131,235,592 122,974,509
177,402,774 112,331,444
29,660,562 42,577,182
488,494,814 402,110,610
38,278,077 29,233,026
221,364,280 228,453,152
44,167,815 38,102,803
30,516,124 15,815,575
356,998,821 316,402,478
3,294,315,373 3,063,338,917
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JORDAN KUWAIT BANK
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2021

40/A Market risk

Market risks are losses of the value arising from changes in market prices as the change in interest rates, foreign exchange
rates, prices of financial instruments and therefore changes in fair value of the cash flows of financial instruments within
and outside the consolidated statement of financial position.

The bank has defined policies and procedures for identifying, measuring, monitoring and controlling market risks, they are
reviewed periodically and their implementation is monitored, where the investment policy committee studies and
recommends them after confirming their compliance with the instructions of the Central Bank of Jardan, they are then
implemented and approved by the board of directors.

The acceptable risk policy is determined under treasury operations and includes limits for market risk control, where they
are complied with and their implementation is verified periodically and continuously by monitoring their implementation
by the risk management department and submitting various periodic reports which in turn are presented to the Assets and
Liabilities Committee and the board of directors.

The bank holds a share and bond portfolio for trading purposes {Financial Assets at Fair Value though Profit or Loss}, for
which the sensitivity analysis method is used, where risks are currently measured through the standard approach to
calculate the minimum share capital as recommended by Basel Committee.

40/8 Interest rate risk:

Interest rate risk arises from the probability of change in interest rates, consequently affecting cash flows or air value of the
financial instrument. The bank is exposed to interest rate risk as a result of time gaps for repricing between assets and
liabilities, such gaps are monitored on a periodic basis by the Assets and Liabilities Committee, and sometimes various
hedging methods are used to remain within acceptable limits of interest rate risk gaps.
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JORDAN KUWAIT BANK

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2021

- Sensitivity analysis:

For 2021
Change of increase in interest  Sensitivity of interest income
Currency rate (percentage point) {profit and loss} Sensitivity of equity
% JD D
JsD 1 260,356 {433,592)
Euro 1 {34,065) -
GBP 1 (68,015) -
44 1 - -
Other currencies 1 (39,354}

Change (decrease) in interest

Sensitivity of interest income

Currency rate {percentage point) {profit and {oss) Sensitivity of equity
% D 1D
usb 1 (260,356) 490,875
Euro 1 34,065 -
GBP 1 68,015 -
IPY 1 -
Other currencies 1 39,354 -
For 2020
Change of increase in interest  Sensitivity of interest income
Currency rate {percentage point) {profit and loss) Sensitivity of equity
% o 1D
usb 1 18,454 (265,152)
Euro 1 (47,833) -
GBP 1 (69,179)
IPY 1 -
Other currencies 1 {100,540}
Change (decrease} in interest  Sensitivity of interest income
Currency rate {percentage point) {profit and loss) Sensitivity of equity
% JD D
usD 1 {18,454) 347,701
Euro 1 47,833 -
GBP 1 69,179
IPY 1 -
Other currencies 1 100,540
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JORDAN KUWAIT BANK
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2021

- Currency risk:

The table below shows the currencies that the Bank is exposed to and the effect of a possible and reasonable change on
their prices against the Jordanian Dinar on the consolidated statement of income, and the currency position are monitored
on a daily basis to verify they remain within the specified limits and submits reports thereon to the Assets and Liabilities
Committee as well as to the Board of Directors.

For 2021
Change in foreign currency
Currency rates Impact on profit and loss Impact on Equity
% JD JD
Euro 5 (24,113} -
GBP 5 5,551 -
IPY ) 384 -
Other currencies 5 (80,637 -
For 2020
Change in foreign currency
Currency rates Impact on profit and loss Impact on Equity
% JD D
Euro 5 2,912 -
GBP 5 1,373 -
IPY 5 1,617 -
Other currencies 5 14,217 -

- Risk of change in shares prices:

It is the risk of a decrease in the fair value of the shares portfolio because of the change in the value of shares indices and
the change in the value of individual shares.

For 2021
Index Change in index Impact on profit and loss Impact on Equity
% D 1D
Amman market index 5 - 225,486
Palestine market index s . 321,141
Kuwait market index 5 - 65,825
NASDACQ - USA S - -
For 2020
Index Change in index Impact on profit and toss Impact on Equity
% i1} JD
Amman market index 5 - 194,290
Palestine market index 5 - 269,225
Kuwait market index 5 - 2,765

NASDAQ - USA - S C
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JORDAN KUWAIT BANK
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2021

Second: Items off-the financial position {Total):

31 December 2021

Up to one year 1to 5 years Over 5 years Total
D 1D D JD
Letters of credits and acceptances 75,318,898 - - 75,318,898
Un-utilised limits (direct and indirect) 317,600,010 39,850,445 2,172,560 359,623,015
Guarantees 189,858,199 33,760,860 62,925 223,681,984
Total 582,777,107 73,611,305 2,235,485 658,623,897
31 December 2020
Up to one year 1to 5 years Over 5 years Total
D 1D D 1D
Letters of credits and acceptances 54,196,154 - - 54,196,154
Un-utilised limits {direct and indirect} 315,545,147 4,056,820 - 319,601,966
Guarantees 211,310,002 20,555,184 - 231,865,186
Total 581,051,302 24,612,004 - 605,663,306

{41) Information about the Bank's business segments

- The Bank is organized for administrative purposes through four main business segments that are measured according to the
reports that are used by the CEO and the main decision-makers at the Bank. The Bank also has a subsidiary specialized in financial
brokerage services and a subsidiary specialized in financial leasing services as at the date of the consolidated financial
statements:

- Retail accounts: Inciudes handling individual customers' deposits, and providing credit facilities, credit cards and other services.

- Corporates’ accounts: Includes handling deposits, credit facilities, and other banking services related to corporates’ customers.

- Treasury: Includes providing trading and treasury services and the management of the Bank's funds.

- Others: Includes activities inapplicable to the definition of the Bank's above mentioned segments.

S Financial brokerage services: Practicing most of the brokerage and financial consultation services.

- Financial leasing services: Practicing financial leasing services and real estate development projects.

= Financial consultation services and issues: Practicing financial consultation services and management of issues.
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JORDAN KUWAIT BANK
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2021

B. Regulatory requirements for capital, and how to meet these requirements.

The instructions of the Central Bank require that the paid-up capital is not less than JO 100 million, and that the ratio of shareholders'
equity to assets is not less than 6%. As for the regulatory capital, the instructions of the Central Bank require that its ratio to the weighted
assets (capital adequacy ratio) is not less than 12% and the Bank ensures that it is compliant there with.

The Bank is committed to Article (62) of the Banks Law, which requires the Bank to deduct annually 10% of its net profit in the Kingdom
to the legal reserve account and to continue to deduct it until such reserve reaches the equivalent of the Bank's subscribed capital, and
this deduction corresponds to the statutory reserve stipulated in the Companies Law.

The Bank is committed to Article {(41) of the Banks Law, which requires compliance with the limits set by the Central Bank relating to the
following:

1- Risk ratios of its assets and risk-weighted assets, as well as the elements of capital, reserves, and regulatory accounts.

2- Ratio of the total borrowings to the regulatory capital that the Bank is allowed to grant for the benefit of a person and his
associates or the related parties.

3- Ratio of the total borrowings granted to the Bank's top ten customers to the total amount of borrowings granted by the Bank.

C - How to achieve the objectives of capital management.

The Bank ensures the compatibility of the capital amount with the amount, nature and complexity of the risks to which the Bankis exposed
to, in a manner that does not contradict with the legislation and instructions in force, The Bank reflects this in its strategic plans as well
as its annual estimated budgets. For more precaution, and given the surrounding circumstances and economic cycles, the Board of
Directors decided, within the Bank’s strategy, that the capital adequacy ratio will not be less than 14%.

When entering into investments, effects on the capital adequacy ratio are recorded and capital and adequacy are monitored periodically
as the capital adequacy ratio is calculated at the Group level as well as at the Bank's level on a quarterly basis. In addition to the continuous
monitoring of capital ratios which are monitored on a monthly basis, including financial leverage ratios: assets to equity ratio, customer
deposits to equity ratio, internal growth rate of equity ratio, provisions and free share capital, which achieves the appropriate financial
leverage and achieves accordingly the targeted return on equity by which it does not drop below 10% in accordance with the bank’s
strategy.

No dividends will be distributed to shareholders from the regulatory capital components if such distribution would lead to failure to

comply with the required minimum capital. The Bank focuses on the internal generation of capital and can resort to public offering to
meet the requirements of expansions and future plans or the requirements of the regulatory authorities according to specific studies.

Capital adequacy

On 31 November 2016, the Central Bank of Jordan issued capital adequacy instructions in accordance with Basel Ill and cancelled the
implementation of regulatory capital adequacy instructions in accordance with Basel 1.

The Bank manages the capital in a way that ensures the continuity of its operations and achieves the highest possible return on equity,
and the capital is as defined by Basel Ill, as shown in the following table:

31 December

2021 2020
D D
Total basic capital for ordinary equity holders {CET 1) 456,896 456,432
Regulatory amendments (subtraction from basic capital for ordinary equity holders) {55,513) (51,091
Tier-1l Capital 27,809 18,894
Regulatory capital 429,192 424,234
Risk-weighted assets 2,266,033 2,188,199
Capital adequacy ratio for ordinary equity holders {CET 1) 17.71% 18.52%
Capital adequacy ratio on Tier-1 Capital 17.71% 18.52%
Regulatory capital adequacy ratio 18.94% 19.39%
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JORDAN KUWAIT BANK

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2021

* The basic capital was calculated after investing in banks and a financial subsidiary.

Liguidity coverage ratio {LCR):

Total high quality liquid assets

Total high quality liquid assets after subtracting the maximum adjustments

Net cash outflow
Liquidity coverage ratio

Liquidity coverage according to the average end of each month

{43) Analysis of maturities of assets and liabilities

31 December

The following table shows the analysis of assets and liabilities according to the expected period of recovery or settlement:

31 December 2021

Assets:

Cash and balances with Central Banks
Balances with banks and banking institutions
Direct credit facilities - net

Loan with right to repurchase at fair value
Financial assets through income

Financial assets through comprehensive income

Financial assets at amortised cost
Property and equipment, net
Intangible assets, net

Right of use of leased assets
Deferred tax assets

Other assets

Total assets

Liabilities:

Deposits with banks and banking institutions
Customers’ deposits

Cash deposits

Borrowings

Liabilities against right of use leased assets
Loan bonds

Various provisions

Provision for income tax

Deferred tax liabilities

Other liabilities

Total liabilities

Net assets

136

2021 2020
775,920 730,690
775,920 730,690
600,290 524,603
203.90% 139.30%
140.14% 147.88%
Up to one year Over one year Total
D D D
317,205,145 - 317,205,145
142,138,455 - 142,138,455
529,309,599 1,157,976,813 1,687,286,812
10,000,000 - 10,000,000
- 4,133,548 4,133,548
- 74,979,107 74,979,107
141,731,825 352,837,480 494,569,305
- 33,850,914 33,850,914
5,664,986 5,664,986
2,705,497 10,139,072 12,844,569
- 43,487,269 43,487,269
29,445,518 149,531,073 178,976,591
1,172,536,440 1,832,600,261 3,005,136,701
166,945,457 - 166,945,457
1,937,172,822 126,648 1,937,299,470
92,566,265 512,943 93,079,208
36,796,219 202,319,417 239,115,636
2,703,937 9,774,294 12,478,231
- 11,000,000 11,000,000
- 9,745,645 9,745,645
4,602,684 - 4,602,684
12,530,503 12,530,503
37,089,098 13,576,711 50,665,809
2,277,876,482 259,586,161 2,537,462,643
(1,105,340,042) 1,573,014,100 467,674,058




JORDAN KUWAIT BANK

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2021

31 December 2020

Assets:

Cash and balances with Central Banks
Balances with banks and banking institutions
Deposits with banks and banking institutions
Direct credit facilities - net

Financial assets through comprehensive income
Financial assets at amortised cost

Property and equipment, net

Intangible assets, net

Right of use of leased assets

Deferred tax assets

Other assets

Assets held for sale, net

Total assets

Liabilities:

Deposits with banks and banking institutions
Customers’ deposits

Cash deposits

Borrowings

Liabilities against right of use leased assets
Loan bonds

Various provisions

Provision for income tax

Deferred tax liabilities

Other liabilities

Liabilities directly associated with assets held for sale
Total liabilities

Net assets
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Up to one year Over one year Total
D JD D
361,869,605 - 361,869,605
131,493,633 5,264,885 136,758,518
295,547,628 1,260,965,205 1,556,512,833
- 10,000,000 10,000,000
8,262,132 77,605,142 85,867,274
112,488,869 289,621,741 402,110,610
- 28,527,698 28,527,698
- 1,964,717 1,964,717
3,451,885 9,895,692 13,347,577
- 36,718,616 36,718,616
24,461,737 146,113,218 170,574,955
5,642,817 - 5,642,817
943,218,306 1,866,676,914 2,809,895,220
173,687,677 - 173,687,677
1,876,967,075 583,408 1,877,550,483
73,880,037 15,280 73,895,317
14,323,252 113,932,192 128,255,444
3,184,271 9,205,686 12,389,957
o 11,000,000 11,000,000
- 14,303,613 14,303,613
- 2,176,841 2,176,841
- 2,555,136 2,555,136
= 56,119,661 56,119,661
1,529,164 - 1,529,164
2,143,571,475 209,891,817 2,353,463,293
(1,200,353,170) 1,656,785,097 456,431,927
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JORDAN KUWAIT BANK

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2021

{45) Contingent commitments and liabilities {off the statement of financial position}

A. Credit commitments and liabilities:

A. Letters of credits, guarantees and acceptances
Letters of credit

Guarantees

Payment

Performance bonds

Others

Acceptances

Total

B. Unutilised limits

Unutilised direct credit facilities limits
Unutilised indirect credit facilities limits
Total

Total indirect facilities

C. Expected credit losses

Letters of credit

Guarantees

Acceptances

Non-unutilised direct credit facilities limits
Non-unutilised indirect credit facilities limits
Expected credit losses net

net indirect facilities

D. Contractual liabilities (capital expenditure):

Contracts to purchase property and equipment
Project construction contracts

Other purchase contracts

Total

140

31 December

2021 2020
D D
44,478,714 38,279,039
136,955,343 134,385,721
62,481,131 70,233,996
24,245,510 27,241,469
30,840,184 15,917,115
299,000,882 286,061,339
265,242,287 206,560,567
94,380,728 113,041,399
359,623,015 319,601,966
658,623,897 605,663,306
310,899 176,236
2,317,704 3,412,034
324,060 101,539
1,903,105 2,171,442
721,089 1,028,046
5,576,858 6,889,297
653,047,039 598,774,009

31 December

2021 2020
D D
2,084,739 2,099,640
2,966,582 1,891,195
5,275,606 977,834
10,326,927 4,968,669




90£’'€99°509 €£5'815°T = 895 THY'TT S9T'EL9°06S Jeak ay} 40 pua ayi Je duejeg
% - = HO u31lum Sa1| 1oy
= sjuawisnipe woay Buynsal saduey)
- 19’928 - {ge6'z6T) {ezs'e€9) € a8e)s 0] pasasuer)
: {€59'6VT) - T68'€80'Y {8e7'pERE) 7 28e35 03 pasaysuel)
: {zss'esT) : {r0°T0L'2) 979'098'C T 38e3s 01 pailajsuel]
{089'T6V'S6T) (£8¢'9vL) . {661°982°¢) (¥69'65116T) JeaA 3y Buuinp ajqeAed sanijioey
009'75¥'sZT 199'821 : ZIS'TLTT 89€'ZST'ETT Jeah ays Buunp sani(1ze) man
98E€'€0L5L9 EVVErLT : LTE'99€°ZT 979'£85°099 1ead ayy Jo Buluuidaq 3y 1e duereq
0Z0T 1aquiadaq 1€
ar ar ar ar ar ar
£ ade3s FETEETT S Ajjenpiaipu) Alaanaa)od Allenpiaipu uonduasaq
lesoL
7 ede)g T 3%exs

168'€79'859 T€9°280°T 2 B6IT'EE9'D " Lt1'806°TS9 12k Y3 JO pUD Y31 e dlue|ey
(00s'€90'T) {005°€90'T) - S : - 1O USNILIM SaN|IDRY
- = & - - sjuaunsnipe woyy Buninsal sadueyd
- $SE'STS : (or0'61¢€) - {(8£2'96T1) ¢ 98e)s 01 paliajsuely
- {058'vLT) IPO'ET6 - (ze1'8EL) Z 39e3s 03 pauiajsues
- {zzs'vv) . (£9Z°758'€) v64'968'E T 28e)s 0} pasajsues)
(T8¢'¥18°991) {Legtzs) - {85£'090°S) - {981'920°19T) Jeak ay) Bulinp a|qeied sanyidey

£LE°8€8°0TT L1682 = 119°0TS SYR'862'0Z2
90£'€99'509 €15°8K5'2 2 895’ ThY'TT % S9T'€/9°065 Jead au) jo FuluuiEaq ay) 18 dueeg
170 12qwaeQ 1

ar ar ar ar ar ar
B € 98e3s Ajanpagod Ajjenpiaipu) A@andajo) Ajlenpiaipuj uoiduasag
lelol 120z Jequadaqg TE
z 28e1s T afers

:0Z0Z PUB 1707 J2qwiadaq TE papua s1eai ayy Suunp A[aA1133)§00 Sail[19) 1IPa43 12341pUl JO 33URIE] AL} UQ JUIWBAOL BYI JO AUNSO(ISIP Y1 S| MO|ag -

1Z0Z ¥38W353Q LS LV SV

SINIWILVYLS TVIONYNI4 G3LVAITOSNOD 3HL 0L S31ON

MNVE LIVMNY NvauOof



crl

£67'688'9 629'T€0'Z - TIT'Z6S 0 £55'59T'Y Jeak ayy Jo pua ayy Je ajuejeg
- - - - - - HO UM S31|10e4
g ) . - - syuauwnsnipe woiy Fupnsas sadueyd
PSL8T - logeL'or) {ezo's} £ 99e15 03 palIajsuelL
(181'TP1) EpSE9T {eoe'ze) 7 @8e31s 0} pausjsues)
{zz9'v9) (08686} £09'€91 1 38e15 01 pasajsuel)
1eaA 3y1 Sunnp pled
(25£°825°T) (600°3€T) : (t188'68T) - (zog'00T'T) SINIJIDE) UD 5D550] YPAID PBIIBCXD WIOLY PAIIACIY
1eah
99" PTO'E L96'vPY E LIS'E6E 3 786'SLTT 3y} SuInp SIU[IDR) MU UO SIS50| WPaLD PaRaadx]
EBSEOP'S TZL'T10°T - Zr9pER = 022'L56'2 Jead ayy jo Buuuidaq ay) 3e asueeg
0Z0Z J2qui2Qq T€
ar ar ar ar ar ar
el € adeyg Ajanragiod Ajlenpiaipu) AP0 Ajienpiatpu) uopdiiasag
z @8e1s T 28e1g
§58'9L5'S 9’799 0 €S5'0ET - £99°€89'Y Jeah ayy jo pud 3y} e aduejeg
(00S€90°T) (0DS'€90°'T) - - - - JO UM sIed
- - - - - - sjuaw)snipe wouy Bunynsal saduey?)
3 0rE'0L : (PTT'L9) - (s6T'€) € 98e)s 03 pausgysuel)
- (969°€6) - SES'YOT ) (ec8’0T) 7 o8e1s 0) passajsuel)
: (tze'vz) - (gzZ’'05) 2 0sSvL T @de1s 01 pasajsuel]
{£€1'696°2) (6EZ'8SY) : (964'L¥t) " {zot'e90t)
Jeah ayy Buunp pred
S3jI08} UO $S3SSO| JPaJD PaIdXe Woly paIsA0ddYy
86T'0ZL'T 65¥°002 9r0'66 T69'0ZV'Z Jeah
33 Suunp sanyioey Mau UG $3SS0| IP3LI PR1IadX3
L62'688'9 629'TE07 TET'Z6S £56'692°Y JeaA ays jo Juuuidaq ay) 1e aduejeg
1Z0Z 19qwa33q TE
ar ar ar ar ar ar
jejol € adeig Ajaa|a)|00 Ajjenpiaipu) Alaapago) Allenpiaipug uonduasag
Z °3eys T adeis

1020z Pue 1207 49qwada( T€ Papua s1eak ayl Jupnp A|aanajjod sanijoey 1921puUl JO $3550] UPII P12adxa J0) UOISIAGI AY) UG JUSWSAOW 3] JO 3INSO[ISIP 3Y1 5| MO|24

LZ0T ¥38W303Q |LE LV SV

SINIWILVLS TVIONYNI4 d3LVAITOSNOD 3HL Ol S31ON

ANVE LIVMNY Nvador



vl

YIL'BLY VY = o YIL'BLY' VY Jeal ay3 Jo pua ay) Je adue|eg
- - - - (volnsod jeiaueuny
JO JUSIBIEIS 3YI-4J0 PIIBJSURI] PUB JJO UBJILIM] S3NI|IDeY O UM
5 . sjuawisn{pe woyy Bunynsal safuey)
- - . € a8e3s 0} passajsues)
- - . Z 28e3s 0] palajsuel]
- - - 1T a2e1s 0] padsajsues]
(68p'E2Z'6T) 2 (t6L'2vT) {769'026'81) Jeah ayy Buunp pred sam|ae4
Pat'eEzy'se = POTETY'ST Jeah ay) Bunnp sanue) MaN
6E0'6L7'BE k5 LBL'TYE Z¥Z'9E0"BE 1834 2y) jo Bupwidag ay; je douejeg
TT0Z soqu=0aQ TE
ar ar ar ar
lejoL € 98e3g Ajlenpiaipu) Allenpiapu) uonduasag
Z 2deyg T @deys
:070Z PUE TZ0Z 12qWadaQ T¢ popud sJead ay) Bulnp 1IP3Jd JO $15119] JO 3IUL(EQ L) U0 JUBWIAOW 3Y] JO 3UNSOISIP 3Y) SI MO)3g
6E0'6LT'BE g 162'The THT'9E0'BE el
- - - - paieaun
: 7 - (0T} 01 {8) woyy
0S0'€Z8°9 = L6LTRE £62'085'9 {£} 03 (9) wouy
686'GSY'TE - 686'SSY'1E {s) 03 (1) wouy
0202 12quiadag TE
ar ar ar ar
|ejoL ¢ adeys Ajlenpiaipu) Ajjenpiaipug mejAqg sueg ay) uo paseq sauodajed Sunes Hpas)
7 aders T 2338
AT TN = " PILSLY' VY |eroL
. - = pajeaun
= - - {o1) 03 (8) woxny
658'P60'9 N 658'¢60°9 {£) 01 (9) wouy
SS8'E8E'SE = CS8'E8E'8E {(5) 01 (1} wouy
TZ0T J9quadag 1t
ar ar ar ar
|exol € aders Ajlenpiapu) Ajlenpialpu) mejAq s)ueg ayi uo paseq sallodaned uies Ypasd
z aders T 3deys

:0Z0Z PuUe TZ0T JAqWIIRg 1§ e se sauodajed Bunel [eusdlul s, ueg 3y) 01 Buipiodde Ypasd 40 S13333| |E10] Y] JO UOHNGUISIP Y1 JO BINSOPISIP AU S MO[2E -

LZ20Z ¥39W323Q LE Lv SY

SINIWILVLS TVIONVNI4 3LVAITOSNOD 3HL OL S3LON

MNVE LIVAMNY NYaHOor



Lad

668°01TE . 2 668'01TE Jeah ay) JO pua 3y} e duejeg
- = - = SANI|10.4 JJO-UIINIM JOJ UDISIADI
) . - suawisnipe wouy Sunnsas sadueyd
. . € adels o) passajsues|
- . - ¢ adels 0] padiajsuely
- - . 1T afeys o) pauajsues]
Jeah

{pzs'sET) - (9€T) {685'SET) 3yl Buunp pred 2131|1084 UC 53550] JIP3JI P12adxa WOL4 paIaA0IY
|RE0DLT - 88042 Je3A aY) SuLNp $311]178) MaU U0 SISSO} 1P paldadx]
952’941 - 9€T 007941 Jeah au) Jo Buluuidaq ayl 1e sduejeq
TZ0T 12quiadag TE

ar ar ar ar
|eioL € adexg Allenpiatpul Aylenpiaipu) uondirsag

Z adeys T @8e3s

:0Z0Z PUE TZ0T J2qwa3aq TE PApUa SIEAA 31 SULINp NPaID JO 519113 40} $3550] PaLI Pa)Iadxs Jof LOISIACID AU} UD JUIWIACLU 3Y) JO INSOISIP 3U1 S MOJ3Y -
6E0'6LT'BE 5 L6L'IvT TYT'9E0'8E Jeal a3 jo pua ay) je acuejeg
{uonisod |epueuyy
- - - - 10 JUBWAIEIS Y140 PAIIRJSUEI) PUE JJO UINILIM] SAIL|I0R) HJO USIILM
- - sjuawysnipe wouy Sunynsal saduey)
- - ¢ 98eys 0] passajsuet]
z 9.9'8F {9298t} ¢ 33e3s 0] pasajsuely
- {es1'tOT) €£1°101 1 99e)s 01 paJiaysues)
{1e6°L1'99) {965'95) (TT6°08€) (vz¥'o10'99) Jeah ayy Bupnp pred sanoey
vI5'9Y8'L L6L'TPT 9TL'E09'L Jeah ay} Supinp sanijoe maN
95¢°088'96 96595 80P'EEY TSY'06€£°96 Jeah ay; jo uiwuidaq sy Je aduejeq
0Z0T JaquiadaQ TE

arf ar ar ar
jeo) ¢ afers Allenpinmpuy) Aenpiaipu) uvondiasag

Z 2deys 1 2deys

LZ0T 438W323(Q LE LV SV

SINIWILVLS IVIONYNIJ O31vaNOSNOD IHL OL SI10N

MNVE LIYMNY NVQHOr



sl

981°G98'TEZ T91'020°T LIYV'ETE'D 9IS TTSETT |eiol
791'020°C 791°020°C - - pajen
3 : {oT) 01 (g) wou
LY'rT9'ee LTT'PT0'9 95£'019'41 (£) o1 {g) woyy
165022902 T9€'60E 06T'TT6'S0T () oa (1) weouy
CZ0TZ /BqWadag Te
ar ar ar ar
jelog ¢ 2835 Ajjenpiaipu) Aflenpiapu MEJAQ S, jueg 3yl uo paseq saodayed Juies ypaudy
z @8e1s T adeys
v86°TBI'EZT 800°SP8 885°695'¢ 8BE'L9T'6TT jeroL
- - - paieiufn
800518 800°st8 E {D1) 01 (8) w03
869°052'8Y 2 00T ZYH'E 665'808'vP (£} 01 (9) wouy
£LT'98S' VLT * 28 L2T 68L8SK' VLT {s) 03 (1) woyy
TTOT 19quad3q 1€
ar ar ar ar
|exoL £ 9de3s Alenpimpuy Allenpiaipu) me) Aq s,jueg ay3 uo paseq sauodaied Junes ypa1)
Z 99e35 1 23ey5
10707 pue 120z Jaquiadag T¢ 1€ se sauodajed Bujjes |ewsdul syueg ayl o) Buipiodle s3aajuesend |30l sy) Jo uoNNQUISIP 3] JO AINSOPSIP 3y 51 MOjag -
9ET'ILT = 9tT 00T'9LT 4e3A 3y jo pua ay) e Nuejeg
- - - - SBINIIRY $JO-UINIIM 10} UDISIACL
- - syuawisnipe woyy Suninsal saduey)
- . ¢ 98e1s 01 pausajsues |
- Z2ES (zes) ¢ 98e1s 0] pauiajsues)
- {teg'z) 1482 1 a8e)s 0) pauajsuel)
1eak
(¥69'vLY) (994 1%) {zs6'9) {9s6'szt) ayy Supnp pred sa|13e) UO S3SSO| UPAUI PalIadxa WOy PpIIaAnIDY
756'901 9sT 918'901 JeaA 3Y) BulINp S31)1I8) MAU UD 59550 JIPRJI paydadxy
846'€VS 994°TY 1648 TZ'E6r Jeak ay) jo Buluuidaq ayl e aduejeg
0zZ0T saqua3aq TE
ar ar ar ar
jeyoy € adejs Alenpinpu) Ajlenpiapu| uondulsaqg
z a%e1s 1 a8exs

1202 ¥38W303Q LE LV SY

SLNIWILVLS TVIONYNIH 3LVANMOSNOD 3HL OL S3LON

ANV LIVMNY Nvador



ol

S8T'S9B'TET 791°020° LLV'ETE'S 9rS 1TS'€2T Je3A ay) jo pua a3y} Je uejeq
{ucmisod (ejpueuy
# = J0 JUIWIBILLS 3Y]-)JO PALIJSUBI] PUR JJO UBTILM] $3131[108f O UINILM
. - . syuaunsnipe woly unnsau saduey)
EVB'3EY (tr6'22T) (zoe'D1E} £ 99e)s 01 paLajsuel)
. {ooo'z1) £08°T¥8"T {€08'0£9'T) z 29e1s 03 passaysuei]
- (005't6) (st0'LT6) SPS'TZ0'T 1 @3e1s 03 paasdjsues]
(€56'6E6°91} {zzz'L0€) (9v0'THs) ($89°060°97) Jeah ayy Buunp pred sanpoey
¥S5°L81'TF 000'st S69'ET 658'8P1'ZY Jeah ayl Bupunp sanioe) man
P89 LT9'9ET ro'orT'e ZI0'VS0'S TES'€ZV'6ZC Jeak ay jo Buuuidaq ayy Je aduejeg
0207 Jaquadag TE

ar ar ar ar
{eloL ¢ 9eis Ajlenpiapuy Alenpipuy ueydiiasag

Z 3deyg I 98e1s

¥86°189°€T2 200°sy8 £85°69S'¢E 8BE'L9Z'6TZ Jeah ayj Jo pua ay) je aduejeg
(00s'€90'T) (005'£90'T) 5 5 {uoniscd jepueuy
JO JUSLIBEYS DY) -JJO PALIJSUEIY PUE JJO UIIIIM) 53131(128) HO UM
7 - - sjuawsnipe woly Buiynsal sadueyd
2 OTZ'T0E {ot£'eze) (oos'¢e) £ 23e1s 01 pasaysuel)
= (0sT'61) LVE'TST (£BT°EET)  a8e1s 01 pa.iaysuesr|
2 (zvi'osy'e) TPL'08Y'T 1 99e3s 01 pasiajsuel)
{oge'1v6'8E) (v1:'e6€) (tze's2€) {969°212'8€) Jeah ay) Suunp pred sanied
629'1Z8'TE - SETLT £6V°v6L TE 1e3A 21 BuLinp s3dE) MaN
SBI'S9R'TET Z91°020'C LLV'ETED 9rS'TZS'ETT Jeah ay) jo Fuiuwidaq 3y 3 Fduejeq
1202 12qw222Q 1§

ar ar ar ar
Iezo) £ afe)s Ayenpiapuy Affenpiaspuy uondiasag

T 9% T 28e)5

0z07 pue T70Z 4aqwadag T papua siead ay3 Juunp saajuesend Jo saueleq ay) U0 JUIWIADW Y] JO AINSO[ISIP 3Y] SI MO|ag

L20Z ¥3aW3d3aqg L¢ 1v svY

SINIWALVYLS TVIONVNI4 O3LVAIMOSNOD 3HL OL S3ION

MNVE LIVAMOY NYQUor



irl

VEO'ZIV'E ST6'6KLT 8sL'08Y TSET8Y'T Jeak ay) jo pua ay) je dueleg
- = . $311j102§ }JO-UB1ILIM 10J UOISIADL]
& - - syuawisnipe wol 3unnsal saduey)d
. 687 (g0¢g) (tys'e) € a9e1s 0] passdjsuel|
: (q0£°t6) ¥69'S0T (886°L)  23e1s 01 passajsues|
- (895°6E) (eLe'd) StE'TY T 99e)5 01 palsajsuell
Jeak

(9v0'8LT) {gsb'Tt) (099°'46) {8Z6°8ET) ay3 Buunp pied sapi|17e) UO S3550| 1IPaAID PAIIFEXD WO} PBISA0IY
SETTLTT T9S'EET S9€°'T6 B9E'St6 1eaA ays Suunp sanyjoe) Mau U 53550| Jipasd paldadx]
S8L'8IH'Z SHTZ69'T PrO'es 964'Ep9 Jeah ays o BuiuBaq ay) je duejeg
0Z0T J2quiadag TE

ar ar ar ar
fel0L £ @derg Ajenpiapu) Allenpiapu) uondinsaa

2 9%e3g 1 23e35
POL LTE'T 650225 OST'SET S6¢'559'T deak ayy yo pua ay3 1e asuejeg
{00S'€90°T) (00s'c90°T) 5 5 SN[17) J4O-UILIIM J0) UOISIACL
- - - S syuawnsnipe wouy Buiynsal sadueyd
- 9£L'8 (66v°8) (ee2) £ 29e1s 01 pasiajsuel)
. (996°€) 188"y (s16) Z a9e1s 0] passajsuel)
3 (oog’s) 00£'S 1 29e1s 0) palsajsues]
{v86'818) (¥89'v62) (s£9°s8) (sz9'gey) Jeak

ay) Suunp pred sa11I8) U0 S3S50| 1IPRJI pRldadxa WUy PAIAA0IBY
YST'88L 8¥S'0ET S86'8Y 729809 234 3y1 Buunp SII2B) M3IU UO SBSSO| NP3JI PIRIadx]
PED'TIP'E STE'6PLT 85£'081 1SE'T8Y'T Jeah ay) jo Buiuwdaq ays Je asueeq
TTOZ 42qud3aQ 1€

af ar ar ar
|elol £ @3eig Ajjenpinpuy Ajlenpiatpu} uondudsag

7 3% 1 29e3g

:0Z07 Pue TZ0Z J9qwa3aqQ TE Papua sieak ayl Suunp saajuesend 1o} s3550] PaId Paladxa 10} uoISIAOI 3Y) UO JUIWIAOLW 3Y] JO 2INSOISIP 3L} 5| MOjag

1202 ¥38W323QJ LE LV SV

SINIWIALVLS TWIONVYNIJ a31VAINOSNOD 3HL O1 S3LON

MNVE LIVMNY NYQHOor



8l

8T'0v8'0E % T15'99T £€29'€£9°0E Jeah ay) Jo pua ay} Je 3duejeg
{uonisod jepueuy
- - - - JO JUBWS)EYS IY)-)J0 PIAIIJSULI) PUE JJO UITIIM]) SN2 O UM,
- - - syuswisnipe woly Bunynsal saduey)
- - € 23e)s 0] paudjsues]
- . 7 2de)s 0] pasiajsues)
- (900°15) 90015 T ade3s 0y pasiajsued)
{z6£'605°1) E (z6£'605°2) Jeak ay1 3uunp pred san)oey
T9P'ZEY'TT = 115991 0S6'59Z°2C Jeak 3y Bunnp sane) maN
STT'ZT6'ST 900'1S 801°998°ST Jeak aus jo Juiuuidaq 3yl 1e sdueeg
TZ0Z 12quadaq 1€
ar ar ar ar
|e10L ¢ @3eys Ajenpiaipu) Ajlenpiaipug uondisrsag
T 9dels T adeys
10Z07 PUe TZ0T 42qwadaq TE papud sJeaA 3y} Juunp sajueidadde JO 3due|eq a3 UO JUSWAAOLY 3] JO INSOISIP Y] 51 mOjag -
SIT'LI6'ST = 900°'1TS 801998'ST |eiol
- - - - pajeaun
- - (0T} 03 (8) w0y
81192 - FRET'T9L {2) 01 {9) wou4
0€6'5ST'ST . 900’15 yI6'POT'ST {5) o1 (1) wouy
070¢ 19quwad3ag TE
ar ar ar ar
jeyol £ wuﬁum >=m:v_>_ﬂ:_ >=mau_>_ﬂ:_ ;ﬂ_>n_ sjueg Iyl uo paseq mu_._OMﬂumu M..__«u._ UpID
Z 9deys 1 @de1s
¥eT'Ot8°0E = 115991 €L9°EL9°DE |elol
- - - - pajeun
- - (o1} 01 (8) wouy
08£'089'TT T15'99T 692'FIS'TT (¢) 01 (9) wouy
SOr'6ST'61 = SOFBST6T {s) 03 {1) wouy
1207 12qua33Q 1€
ar ar ar ar
|eyol € 9deys Ajjenpiaipu Ajlenpiaiput mejiq sjueg ay) uo paseq sajjodayes Juies ypal)
Z 23e1g T ade3s

10707 Pue 1z0Z Jeqwadag TE 1B se sauoBajen Sujes jewsdlul spueg 2yl o) Supiodde sadueldadde €101 Byl JO UOHNGUISIP Yl 4O JUNSOPSIP Y} S1 MOjSE

1Z0Z ¥38W303QJ LS LV SV

SLNIWILVYLS TVIONVYNI4 A31VAITOSNOD 3IHL OL S31ON

MNVE LIvMNY NYaQuor



148

090'vZE - 291 £68'EZE Jeah ayy jo pua 3y} 1E Azuejeg
- - g = 53131)198) JJO-U1IIM 10} UOISIADIY
. - z syuaunsnipe wouy Suiynsas saduey)d
- 2 ¥ ¢ 9de)s 0] pasiajsuer]
- . o 7 2de)s 03 passajsues]
5 £ {z8s) 85 1 a8e35 0) passagsuel)
1e2h

(£91°89) ; (£91°89) ay) Suunp pied saiij2ey U S3S50| HPRJI PIIIAdXa W)Y PRIAA0ITY
889°062 - 89T 075°06¢ 1e3ah ay) Suunp SaIPI2e) MAU UO $3$SO) 1IPALd paldadxy
6€5'T01 - 785 £56°001 JeaA 3ip) Jo Juuuidaq ay) e dueleg
1Z0Z 19qw32Q 1€

ar ar ar ar
LT € 2ders Alenpimpul Ajenpiaipu uondiuasag

Z 99eys T adeis

:0Z0Z PUE TZ0Z 12qWadag TE papua sJeah ay) Suunp $30ueIdaIR J0) $3SS0| PRI PIDRdxa 104 UoISIAGID 3y} UO JUSWIIAGLU 3] JO 2INSOIISIP Y1 S} MOJ39
STT'L16'ST c 900°1S 801°998'ST Jeah ayl Jo pud ayj} JE 2dueeg
{uonisod jedueuly
z - . 10 JUDWIDILIS AY)-J40 POLIDJSURIY PUE 1O LIDYILM) SINIORS IO UM
= v sjuawsnipe woyy Juninssl saduey)
] 2 = - € 99e15 0} paIsuel)
? {09'L6 {£09'L6) 7 @9e3s 01 pausasuel]
: 661'19) 66119 1 a8e1s 0] pasajsuel|
(68p'T15'21) {19v'88t) (£zo'vzO'2T) 183A 3y) Juunp pied sadey
LE6'TTE'L = - LEB'TTE'L Jeah ay) Sulnp sanlioe) maN
99991502 3 090'€05 909'€T0'DZ Jeah ayy jo uuuidaq ay) 1e aduejeg
0Z0Z 42quadag T

ar ar ar ar
leloL £ adeys Ajenpiaipu) Ajjenpiapul uonduisaq

z 3deys 1 28e3g

1 20¢ ¥38W3D3( LE 1V SV

SLINIWALYLS TVIONYNI4 A31vVAINTOSNOD 3H] 04 S31ON

MNYY LIVMNY NYador



051

£95095°902 TI¥'8ZS #59°€86°C 661'8P0'E0T |B3oL
T6E'856'EY STT'0TY S66°LL5 CBT'0LE'TY paiesun
862811 962811 ; . {01) 01(8) woyy
E££'60E'97 581°S8TT BYT P2 {¢£) 01 {9) woiy
LPS'rLT 9ET : 6LV0T2Z 890'¢56'SET {s) o3 {1} wouy
0ZOZ 19quuadaq 1€
ar ar ar ar
|ezoL € a8ei5 Ajlenpiaipu) Ajjlenpiapu) MmEejAQ s ueg 3y3 uo paseq sauodajes Juned 3pas)
7 @8ei5 1 93eis
L8T'TrT'S92 TTY'LET 070'L68 Sb9'L0T'b9T 1e10),
£98'9¢L ‘6t TT9'LET £LEY'ESS 809'5E6'8Y paleiun
. - = - (o1} 01 (8} woy
LLL'TETET 0€L't8 8Y0°L80°L {¢) o1 (9} woiy
TYYEPE R8T €59'85C 686'¥20'881 {5) 01{1) wouy
1207 19qwa23Q 1
ar ar ar ar
el £ a2eys Ajlenpiaput Allenpiapug me| Ag s ueq ay) uo paseq so1103331ed Bunes P
Z adeys T adeis

:070Z PUe TZOZ #5quwaag TE 1@ se sauodaled Jupes jeusaiu) sueq ay) 03 SuIpJodde s)w| $IIMII8Y JI2JIP PIZIIN-UOU [B101 3 JO UOIINGLISIP 3] JO 2INSOJISIP BY) 51 mojag -

6€S'TOT . 85 £56'00T 1e3A ayy Jo pud Ay} je auejeg
- - S = SI(M[1IE) JJO-USNIIM JO) UOISIAOLY
E 5 syuawisnipe wouy dunnsal saguey)
2 = - ¢ 98e)s 0] palsajsues)
% 06T'T (06T°T) 7 99e35 0] passdsuel|
: = (0£0'2) 0£0'C 1 9815 01 passaysuel]
Jeak

(EEL'29) - (vzv'st) (60g°ZS) ay) 2uuinp pled sa1j13e) UO SASSO) JPaJY PRLIRUXa WOL) PaJIaA0IY
1PE'T9 = TrE‘19 JeaA 3yl Buunp sanjIIB) M3U UO S3SSO| JIPALD pajdadxl
0£6'£0T - 98891 vt Jeah 2y3 Jo SujuwBag ayl 1e aouejeg
0Z0Z 19quwadaq It

ar ar ar ar
jewl € adeis Aljenpiaipu) Ajlenpiaipuy uolydisaq

Z ?de)g T ade1s

| Z0Z ¥38W323Q LE 1V SV

SINIWILVLS TVIONVYNI4 QILVANOSNOD FHL Ol S3I0N

MNVE LIvAMNY NYQNOr



LSk

£95095°902 TTV'8ZS 8S9°€86°'7 66'800'€02 Jeal a3 Jo pua ayj je asue|eg
{uonisod jelpueu))

= - 10 JUSWISIBLS 3YI-JJO PRLIJSULI] PUE JJO USLINM) SINIIDE) O UM,

. - - . swuawisnipe woly Buninsal saduey)
819'48¢ {£66'19) (tzo'zze) € ade1s 01 panajsuel|
(£59°£L) £55'9€8 (v0685L) Z #8e)s 0) passajsues)
" (z50°58) (s9z'ezs) LTE'§8L 1 @8e3s 0) paiasuel)
(¥99°'541°05) (696°Z8E) {tes'zzs) (591°0£0'6%) 1e3A ay3 Bupnp pred sanioey
908°9Z8'vr T99'€TT TZEBLY'T YZ8'FEQ'EY Jead 3yl Sunp saNDE) MIN
92606 TIZ 508755 £L5°646'T 8¥0°2LE'602 Jead sy jo Buiuwidaq sy 3e auejed
0Z0Z 19qwalaq T

ar ar ar ar
leloL € adeys Ajlenpiaipu) Ajjenpimpuy uoldiasaqg
7 adeys 1 2215

L82'THT'S9T TTYLET 0Z0°L68 St9'L0T'p9T Jeal ayl Jo pua 3\ ie ajuejeg
- - - - {uonisod enuewy

10 JUBLLUDIELS SYI-}J0 PRIIDJSURI] PUB JJO UIJILM) SILI[1DEY JJO UL

. = syuawisnipe woyy Sunnsas saduey?
= PPTPIZ {99g's6) (8££'81T) £ 9815 0} paJiajsuel]
: {004'sST) v69°099 (566'v0S) 7 98e3s 0] pasaysuel)

. (£25'vt) {gzZ'v11'1} SSL'8ST'T 1 adels o) pasijsuer]
{s0£'8T£'99) (€z9'ece) (204'tS8B'T) (086'6€T'v9) Jeah ayy duunp pied san)dey
t20°0T0'SCT £16'8C ¥96'91¢ £F1'y99'vZT 1eaA sy} urinp saiide) maN
£95°095'90 48214 859°€86'C 66b"'8¥0"€0¢ Jeah ay3 Jo SuuuiBaq ayj Je aduejeg
1202 43qwadaq 1€
ar ar ar ar
|elol £ adeys Ajlenpiaipug Ajjenpiaipul uoidi153Q
Z af%e)g 1 adeys

:0Z0Z PUE TZOT 42qWwa720 1€ 1e se sa110331es Junes (ewsajus s jueg ayy 01 FuIpioade sHWI Sa|13e) 1991 PaZIiIn-Uou |e10) 3y} JO UONNYLISIP BU) JO INSO[ISIP 3U} S MOJAE -

1202 ¥43aW303Q LE LV SY

SAINIWILVYLS TVIONYNI4 AILVANOSNOD 3HL O1 S310N

MNYG LIVAMNY NvadOr



25l

THP'TLT? vOL 18T ZETV6T 909'569'T Jeah 23 Jo pua 3y} 1e aauejeg
- = S - SR JJO-USNIIM JOJ UDISIAOY]
- - - suaunsnipe woiy Sunnsal sadueyd
S06'ST (e2v'0T) {zay's) € a8e)s 0) palsajsues)
(SLv'E) 090°tS {sgs'01) z 28e1s 01 paLsajsuel]
(rs0'sz) (o11°29) ¥91'/8 1 ade1s 01 padJajsuel)
Jeah
{9/¥'685) (98£pST) {cs8'vv) {/€8°68¢) ay1 Suunp pied sai11De) U0 S3SSO| WPII PIIBAXD WO PAIFADIFY
PSS'8r0’T SOP'TTT 0ST'60T 666°LTL 1e3A 3y} SuINp S311[198) M3U UD S3SS0| JIpaJd pajdadx]
YIEZTL'T 0TL'LLT £0E"8YT 8vE'98T'T Jeah 2y jo JuuiBaq ay) je aduejeq parsnipy
0Z0z 19qwadiaqg 1€
ar ar ar ar

lejol £ a8e)g Allenpiaipuy Ajjenpiapul uondiasag

zadeis 1 afes
SOT'E06'T £85'SET SET'S6 182'249'1 JeaA 3y3 Jo pua ay) je asuejeg
= S = e S3I|I3.Y JJO-UBNIIM JOJ UOISIAOL]
= * - swuawisnipe wouy Bunnsas saduey)
- ¥L5'T9 (s19'85) (656'7) £ 98e)s 0) passajsuei]
z {0£L'68) S59'66 (sz6'6) 7 99e1s 0] passajsuel|
- {12€'v2T) {10118 TP'sY T a8e1s 0] palsajsuel)

0z 18€T) {ss5'e91) (gzL'sP1) {LEF6£0'T) Jead

ay) Sunnp pred sa1311108) UO S3550] NP PAJIAAX2 WOIJ PRIDA0IFY

€8E'E80°T Z16'69 £68'6Y BL5'€96
Je3A 3y} unp $a13)(198) MBU UO SISSO| NPII Padadxy
P TLY'T ¥0L'T8C ZET'P6T 909'569°'T Jeah ay) jo BuiuuiBaq 3yl Je Iauejeq palsnipy
TZO0T 19qu333Q TE

ar ar ar ar

|eyoL € adeig Ajenpraipu Ajlenpiatpuy uodiisag

z adeys 1 a8e35

:0Z0Z PUe TZ0Z J2qwiadaq 15 PIPUa $JeaA ay) Sulinp siw S311138) 193.1p pazi|IIN-uUou J0j $5550) JPRJ3 Pa13adxa J0j UOISIAGIG 3Y) UO JUSWISAOW 3Y) JO BINSO|ISIP AY) SI MOJag -

L Z20¢ 438W323Q0 L€ LV SV

SINIWILVLS TVIONYNIJ A3LVvaAINOSNOD 3H]1 Ol S31ON

MNYY LIVMNY NYQAO™



£5k

8ZL'08E'V6 = - 8TL'08E't6 43k ay1 jo pua a3 1e 3duejeg
(vonisod |e1aueuny
> . - - 0 JUBWIAIEYS 3YI-JJO PAIISJSUEBI] PUE JJO UINLIM]) SIJI[10€) JJO UM
) . - syuaunsnipe woly Buinsal sedueyd
- - £ ode)s 0] panajsuel]
] . - 7 93eys 0] pauajsuely
= lo6z'902) 06290 T @dels o) pasajsues]
(S92°T18'vE) z (6EE'¥ET'T) {gzv'LLn’ze) leaA ay) Bunnp pred sayizey
S60'TST'ST : - S60'TST'9T Jedh ay) Bunnp sail|ney maN
66E THD'ETT . 629°0¥8'C 0LL'002'011 Jeah ay3 Jo Juiuuidaq ay) 1e aouejeg
1207 19quaiag 1€

ar ar ar ar
lelol € adelg Ajenpiatpui Ajlenpialpu) uonduasag

T adeys 1 ade)s

:0707 PUB TZOZ J3qWada( TE Papus siead ay) Suunp syw| sa1)1)10e) 13201puU) PIZIRN-UOU JO IJUBIEQ 3L} U0 JUBLLISAOW 3Y) JO 2UNSO|ISIP Y} 5) molag
66E'TPO'ETT - 679'0v8' 0L2'002°01T [e10L
- - - - pajeluny
: i (0T) 01 (8) wolg
8ZBT6T'ET 2 00S'615'C BZE'TLLOT {£) 1 (9) wouyy
1£5°6b4'66 x 6ZT'TZE Trh'8Tr'66 (5) o3 (1) wouy
020 J2quia02a T

ar ar ar ar
|ejoL £ adeys Ajjenpiapu) Ajenpimpu) mejAq s,yueg 243 uo paseq salodazed Sunes yupaid

P41 1 1 a3e)s

8ZL0BE'V6 e . BZL'08E'P6 |e1el
- - - - paesun
: 7 (01) 01 {8) wouy
690 T¥8'ST - = 690'TH8'ST (£) 0119} wouy
659'6£5°8L - - 659'6E5'8L (G) o1 (1) wouxy
TTOZ 12qwadeg 1€

ar ar ar ar
|eyor € adeys Ajenpiapu) Ajjenpiaipu) mejAq s)ueq ay) uo paseq sasodazedr Junes npald

z adeyg T adeys

:020Z pPue TZ0Z 18qwiadaq 1€ Je se sanodales Sunel

[eu1alul s jueg 3yl 031 SuIPJOdIL SHWIN| S3)YIFEY 1331PUI PAZIIIN-UOU [B10] Y} JO UOIINGLISIP Y] JO JMSO|ISIP BY) 5| MOIG

1Z0Z ¥39W3a23Q LE 1V SV

SINIWILYLS TVIONVYNI4 31vaITOSNOD 3HL OL S310N

HNVE LIVAMANY NYQROr



5l

680'TZL e - 680'1ZL JE3A 3y} Jo pu3 3y} 1e acuejeq
- C G = SNIIBY JJO-UINILIM 10) UOISIAOI]
: 2 . syuawnsnpe woyy Bunnsal sadueyd)
- . ¢ a9e1s 0] passasuelt
- d 7 98e15 0] passajsuel]
- {5p2'E) SYL'E 1 28e1s 0} pasiajsued]
JB3A
lzys'ves) {gsz'ete) (rBZ'18€) ayy Suninp pred $3131)108) UO 53SSO| NP3 PalIadxs WOl PAIIA0IDY
985'L82 = . 985'L8C Jeah 3y} Suunp san|ve) MAU U0 $3S50) JIPAI2 pardadiy
9v0'820'T ; £05°91Z EVS'TIR Jeah a3y jo uluuiBaq ay) Je arueleg
TT0Z 12qu=020 TE

ar ar ar ar
[ewel £ a8eis Alenpiapu) Ajjenpiaipu) uo13dlinsaq

7 adeys T 28e3g

10707 pue 1Z0Z Joquials( TE PIpua sJead ayy Juunp SHwi| S0} 1I31IpUI PAZINNUN- 10} $3550] HP31D Pal2adxa 10y UoISIACId 31 U JUILUBAOL 3Y) JO INSOPSIP 343 51 MOIE -

66E'TPOETT . 629°0V8'C 0LL002'01T Je3A 3y JO pua 3y} 1e duejeq
(uonisod |eueuy

= E - JO JUILWBIE)S BY)-JJO PRiJ3JSUBI) PUB 4G UINILM) S313113€) HO UM,

o 7 syuaunsnipe woly Bunnsas sadueyd
x e - £ afeys 0] paliajsues]
- 6¥2'3ST (6¥2'857) 7 98e3s 01 paJsajsues ]
: : (T6£'888) 16£'888 1 3815 0] paiajsuel]
(€p9'91v'sl) - losz'ezsT'T) (€6E'p9Z°8T) 1e3A 3y3 3uLinp pred sanyioed
684'849°2T : 864’922 TEO'TSY'2T Jead ayy Sunp sajuoey MaN
£52°6£4607 2 £92'96€"y 06678£'50T Jeak ayy jo Suluwdaq ay) e adsuejeg
0Z07 J2qwiadaqQ IE

ar ar ar ar
=301 £ adels Allenpiapul Ajlenpiapug uondiuosag
Z2ms T 98e1s

L1 Z0Z ¥3aw323Qq LE Lv sV
SINIWILVLS TVIONVYNIJ A3LVAITOSNOD FHL O] S3ION
MNVE LIVAMNY Nvador



551

SUIUOW MaJ I¥aU 3Y) Liylim palaidwod aq o paidadxa i ssazoud

19359wW 3y} pue ‘sassawsng a8euanolq pue JuUBWISIAUI S30Ndesd Jey) Auedwod B yiMm UDIIRYNSUD) [BIJUEUIJ PUB JUSWISIAL| JO) Auedwo? |euafeuely paziensds ayl pue Auedwo)
SIUBWISIAU| [BIDURULJ PANUA Y3 40 JaSiaw ayy anoidde o) papidap sem ) ‘0Z0T AJengad 7O U0 JUBWSIAU] pUE JUSWASeUEB 10§ 3311ILULIOD PJECE 3U] JO UOISIIIP 3} 0) Buipiodyy

:Auedwio?) SIUIWISAAU| [BIDUBUL] PATIUN U JUILISIAU] Y

suopesado panuijuodsip pue J)es J0} pjay S13ssy [IT]]

"0Z0Z 43qWa33Q TE U0 5B £60'65Y°T O 03 paseduiod

120z J2quIadag T VU0 S SZS'80/ T Af 01 PAIUNOLIE YIILUM ‘Il 10§ UINE) SIUEBMOJ[E Ay} PaadXa Jey) suoiedqo aaey 10U [{m jueq ay) ‘Josiape [e33) s jueq 3y) pue Juawadeuew ay) Jo
uoluido ay) SB 0ZOZ J2qWIadag TE U0 SE pOr 809°6 QF 03 paledwod 'TZ0Z J2qWalaQ TE U0 Se 6£8'pIE'0T Of 0} PAUNOWE AJEIPISqns s) pue yueq ay) Jsuiede pajly $3sed 3yl Jo anjea ayL

%ueq aya Jsuiede payiy sase)  [9F)

908201 - £05°9TZ EVS'TI8 Jeak 2yl jo pua ay3 je auejeg
- - - = SOIM|I3RY JJO-UDNLLIM IO} UOISIAOI
2 = syuauwnsnipe woyy Suynsal sadueyd
= . r £ a8e3s 01 paLiajsues ),
: : 890°C (g90'z) 7 afeis 0] paJsajsuel]
- : {zso'og) Z50°0€ 1 23e1s 0} passdjsuel|
Jeahk
{rog'sit) (z66'v2) (z18't6) ayl Juunp pied sadey U S35SO| 1IPALD PAIdFAXND WOJ) PAIAACIDY
pze'9zs 998'16 8SY'PEY 123A ayy BUpNp S3N|108) MAU VD SISSO| NPALD Pajaadx]
§75°029 : v19'LLT ZI6'ZHY Jeak ayy jo Suuwdag ay) je xuejeg
0Z0Z 49quwadaq TE

ar ar ar ar
jelol ¢ 28e1s Ajjenpialpuj Ajlenpiatpu) uondiarsaq

T 9dexs T @3ejs

1Z0Z ¥3aW323Q L€ LV SV

SINIWILYLS TVIONVNI4 A31LVAIMOSNOD 3H] Ol S31ON

MNVE LIVAMOY NVYQUOT



JORDAN KUWAIT BANK

NOTES To THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2021

Profit for the year from discontinued operations
Total revenue

Less: total expenses

Loss for the year before tax

Tax benefits

Net loss for the year

Parent’s share in the loss of the subsidiary

Assets held for sale

Cash on hand and bank balances

Direct credit facilities, net

Financial assets at fair value through statement of income
Property and equipment, net

Deferred tax assets

Other assets

Total assets

Less: impairment loss of assets held for sale

Liabilities associated with assets held far sale
Provision for Income tax

Other liabilities

Total liabilities

Equity directly associated with assets held for sale

31 December 2020

D
222,034
889,641

(667,607)
60,167

{607,440)
{379,547)

31 December 2020

Share of Parent

Company's data {The Bank)
D D
281,983 176,192
1,370,964 856,621
4,261,622 2,662,793
351,414 219,574
1,136,512 710,128
3,363,637 2,101,704
10,766,132 6,727,012

- {1,529,842)
10,766,132 5,197,170
59,454 37,149
2,180,051 1,362,163
2,239,505 1,399,312
{35,505} (22,185)

B. Investment in Specialized Managerial Company for Investment and Financial Consultation:

According to the decision of the Board Committee for Management and Investment on 02 February 2020, it was decided to approve the
merger of the Specialized Managerial Company for Investment and Financial Consultation and the United Financial Investments Company
with a company that practices investment and brokerage businesses, noting that the sale of the company to United Financial Investment

Company occurred during the last quarter of 2021.

Profit for the year from discontinued operations
Total revenues

Total expenses

Loss for the period before tax

Tax expense /[ tax {surplus)

Net profit for the year

For the year ended 31 December
2020
D

180,103
357,753
(177,650)
(18,382)
(159,268)

156



JORDAN KUWAIT BANK

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2021

"Share of Parent
Company's data (The Bank) "
D JD
Assets held for sale
Cash on hand and bank balances 232,319 232,319
Direct credit facilities, net 110,500 110,500
Property and equipment, net 10,026 10,026
Other assets 92,803 92,803
Total assets 445,648 445,648
Liabilities associated with assets held for sale
Payables 110,000 110,000
Other liabilities 19,852 19,852
Total liabilities 129,852 129,852
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